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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
The matters discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are forward-looking statements are based on current management
expectations that involve substantial risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. These statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate
strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as "expect," "intend," "plan," "believe," "project," "anticipate," "may,"
"will," "should," "would," "could," "estimate," "continue" and other words and terms of similar meaning in conjunction with a
discussion of future operating or financial performance. You should read statements that contain these words carefully, because they
discuss our future expectations, contain projections of our future results of operations or of our financial position or state other
"forward-looking" information.
The factors listed in "Item 1A. Risk Factors," as well as any cautionary language in this Annual Report, provide examples of
risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our
forward-looking statements. Although we believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, actual results may differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, those described in
"Item 1A. Risk Factors."
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. Except as required under federal securities laws and
the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, we do not have any intention, and do not undertake, to
update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the date of this Annual Report, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise. As a result of these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report or that may be made elsewhere from time to time by,
or on behalf of, us. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.
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PART I
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS.

Overview
We are the largest provider of payday cash advance services in the United States, as measured by the number of centers operated.
As of December 31, 2005, we operated 2,604 centers in 36 states. Payday cash advances are small-denomination, short-term,
unsecured advances that typically are due on the customer's next payday. We provide these services primarily to middle-income
working individuals. We do not franchise any of our centers. We focus primarily on payday cash advance services and do not provide
pawn lending, title lending or similar services. We believe our primary focus on payday cash advance services is a competitive
strength that has allowed us to better reach and service our primary market of middle-income customers. The table below shows
selected demographics of the customers we serve:
Customers(1)

Average age (years)
Percentage between 18-44
Median household income
Percentage homeowners
Percentage with high school degrees

$

39
66%
40,557
$
45%
86%

U.S. Census 2000

35.8
40%
41,994
66%
80%(2)

(1)
Based on a study performed for us of the approximately 52% of customers served during the twelve months ended
April 2005 for whom this information was available.
(2)
Percent of population 25 years old and older who are high school graduates or higher.
Our goal is to attract customers by offering straightforward, rapid access to temporary funding while providing high-quality,
professional customer service. We believe that our payday cash advance services represent a competitive source of liquidity to the
customer relative to other credit alternatives, which typically include overdraft privileges or bounced check protection, late bill
payments, checks returned for insufficient funds and short-term collateralized loans.
4
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The following table presents key operating data for our business:
Year Ended December 31,
2003

2004

2005

Number of centers (at year-end)
2,039
2,408
2,604
Number of payday cash advances provided and processed
(thousands)
10,179
11,586
11,620
Number of customers served (thousands)
1,174
1,412
1,534
Average duration of a payday cash advance (days)
15.1
15.4
15.8
Aggregate principal amount of payday cash advances
provided and processed (thousands)
$
3,271,235
$
3,804,096
$
3,943,815
Average amount of payday cash advance
$
321
$
328
$
339
Average charge to customers for providing and processing
a payday cash advance
$
52
$
52
$
55
Number of installment loans provided and processed
(thousands)


68
Average amount of installment loan


$
508
Average charge to customers for providing and processing
an installment loan


$
337
Our centers, which we design to have the appearance of a mainstream financial institution, are typically located in middle-income
shopping areas with high retail activity. As of December 31, 2005, we operated 2,524 centers under the "Advance America" brand and
80 centers under the "National Cash Advance" brand.
Our Industry
The payday cash advance services industry has grown steadily since the early 1990s in response to a shortage of available
short-term consumer credit alternatives from traditional banking institutions. The rapid increase in the charges associated with having
insufficient funds in one's bank account, as well as other late/penalty fees charged by financial institutions and merchants, have also
helped increase customer demand for payday cash advances. A payday cash advance typically involves a single charge, unlike other
alternatives that often require collateral, origination and administration fees, interest payments, additional incremental charges and
prepayment penalties and charges for other services such as credit life insurance. Other alternatives, such as bounced checks and late
bill payments, may also have negative credit consequences. We believe customers use short-term payday cash advances because they
provide a simple, quick and confidential way to meet short-term cash needs between paydays while avoiding the potentially higher
costs and negative credit consequences of other alternatives.
We believe many banks and other traditional financial institutions have reduced or eliminated their provision of
small-denomination, short-term consumer loans, in part due to the costs associated with originating these loans. As a result, a
significant number of companies have begun to offer these loans, or payday cash advances, to lower-income and middle-income
individuals. The providers of these types of loans are fragmented and range from specialty finance offices, like our centers, to retail
stores in other industries that offer these types of loans as ancillary services. Because of the relatively low cost of entry and the
regulatory safe harbor that many state statutes provide for payday cash advances, the payday cash advance services industry has
experienced significant growth in the number of payday cash advance centers. Businesses offering payday cash advances and
short-term loans over the internet as well as by telephone have also begun to compete in the payday cash advance services industry.
5
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We believe the payday cash advance services industry is growing, fueled by overall increases in the population and increased
consumer and legislative acceptance of payday cash advances. The number of jurisdictions with specific legislation and/or regulations
permitting payday cash advances or small loans has grown from 16 states in 1997, the year in which we commenced operations, to 39
states and the District of Columbia as of December 31, 2005.
Competitive Strengths
Market Leader with Economies of Scale. With 2,604 centers located in 36 states as of December 31, 2005, we are the largest
provider of payday cash advance services in the United States, as measured by the number of centers operated, with approximately
twice as many centers as the next largest provider of payday cash advance services. We believe our scale provides us with a leadership
position in the industry, allows us to leverage our brand name in opening centers in existing and new markets and enables us to benefit
from economies of scale and to enter favorable relationships with landlords, strategic vendors and other suppliers. We have centralized
most center support functions, including marketing and advertising, accounting and finance, treasury management, human resources,
regulatory compliance, information technology support and customer support systems. We believe these centralization efforts will
enable us to continue to expand our network of centers while controlling our costs.
Successful Execution of Growth Strategy. We believe we have successfully executed an effective growth strategy, including
identifying attractive locations for new centers, rapidly entering into new leases and establishing the necessary processes and systems
to manage the overall growth process. We use our database of over 3.5 million customer records to analyze market opportunities and
make management decisions regarding expanding our network of centers. In 2005, we opened 361 new centers in 32 states, and in
2004, we opened 469 new centers in 29 states.
Continued Focus on Government Affairs. We have experience with the legislative and regulatory environment in all of the
states in which we operate as well as at the federal level. We are a founding member of the Community Financial Services Association
of America ("CFSA"), an industry trade group comprised of our company and more than 100 other companies engaged in the payday
cash advance services industry. Our internal government affairs team, together with the CFSA, seeks to encourage favorable
legislation that permits us to operate profitably within a balanced regulatory framework. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, payday cash advance
legislation we supported was adopted in 9 states, 15 states and five states, respectively. We have added to the size of our internal
government affairs team to provide more complete coverage of state legislatures. Our approach is to continue to work with
policymakers and grass roots organizations to provide a predictable, favorable legislative environment for the payday cash advance
services industry.
Ability to Respond Rapidly to Regulatory Changes. Our regulatory department, along with our internal government affairs team
and outside counsel, monitors the various state and federal legislatures and rule-making bodies to keep abreast of changes in laws and
regulations relevant to our business. Our organization is designed to be able to respond rapidly to these regulatory developments. We
believe that our strong internal regulatory team enables us to seize opportunities for growth in new jurisdictions, permits us to conduct
our business in compliance with often changing laws and regulations and allows us to react quickly to those changes.
Rigorous Implementation of Center-Level Controls. We believe that our management information systems, our cash
management systems and our internal compliance systems are critical to our success and continued growth. We employ a proprietary
point-of-sale system used to record transactions in our centers. This information is recorded daily and analyzed at our centers and at
our headquarters. We also employ a third-party cash reconciliation software system to balance and monitor cash receipts and
disbursements. The principal benefits from our use of these two systems are our quick recognition of
6
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variances from expected operating results, our early detection of theft and fraud and our ability to monitor compliance with various
federal and state laws.
Geographical Diversification of Our Centers. With centers located in 36 states as of December 31, 2005, we believe we have
developed a significant presence throughout the United States that helps us to mitigate the risk and possible financial impact of
unfavorable changes in state legislation or in the economic environment of a particular region or state and allows us to take advantage
of competitive opportunities in those markets. For the year ended December 31, 2005, California, which accounted for approximately
11% of our total revenues, was the only state that accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues.
Business Strategy
Continue to Open Centers Systematically. A key objective of our growth strategy is to become the leading provider of payday
cash advance services in each market we enter by rapidly opening proprietary, wholly owned centers. We do not intend to franchise
our centers. We opened 361 centers in 2005, and we expect to continue our rapid roll-out of new centers. We believe that internal
development of new centers is currently more economical than acquiring and integrating existing centers. However, from time to time
we may also consider opportunities to acquire payday cash advance companies or businesses. We believe that by offering the
convenience of a high density of centers, as well as exceptional customer service, we will maintain a high level of customer
satisfaction.
Drive New Center Operating Performance. In our approximately 830 operating centers that opened in 2005 and 2004, we are
striving to match the operating performance of our centers that have been open at least 24 months. To do this, our employees are
evaluated and compensated, in part, based on their achievement of operational goals, which we adjust each year to account for the
continued improvement in our business. The three key metrics we reward are (1) maintaining a high level of compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, (2) meeting stated growth objectives and (3) meeting collection targets. We believe that by focusing
on these specific goals and tying them to employee compensation, we can achieve operating performance in our newer centers
comparable to the operating performance at our mature centers.
Maximize the Efficiency of Our Infrastructure. We have made significant investments in technology, infrastructure and
monitoring/compliance systems that we believe are highly scalable. As we expand our network of centers, we expect that our general
and administrative expenses will decline as a percentage of our net revenues.
Support Improvement of the Legislative and Regulatory Environment. As of December 31, 2005, 39 states and the District of
Columbia had specific laws that permitted payday cash advances or allowed a form of payday cash advances under small loan laws.
Our goal is to work with policymakers and grass roots organizations to facilitate the implementation of a balanced, visible and
predictable regulatory framework that protects the interests of the customers we serve while allowing us to operate profitably in every
state.
Our Services
In most states in which we conduct business we make payday cash advances directly to our customers (which we refer to as the
standard business model). In other states we have acted as a marketing, processing and servicing agent through our centers for Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") supervised, state-chartered banks that make payday cash advances and installment loans to
their customers pursuant to the authority of the laws of the state in which they are located and federal interstate banking laws,
regulations and guidelines (which we refer to as the agency business model). We refer to the banks for which we have acted as agent
as the lending banks. The
7
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lending bank for which we market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in Pennsylvania will cease
originating payday cash advances and installment loans in March 2006. The lending bank for which we market, process and service
payday cash advances and installment loans in Arkansas will cease originating installment loans in April 2006 and will cease
originating payday cash advances in June 2006.
We provide payday cash advances and charge fees and/or interest as specified by the laws of the states where we operate under
the standard business model. In the states where we have operated under the agency business model, the lending banks provide payday
cash advances and installment loans and charge fees and/or interest as specified by the laws of the states in which they are located and
consistent with the regulatory authority of the FDIC and federal banking law. The permitted size of a payday cash advance varies by
state and ranges from $50 to $1,000. The permitted fees and/or interest on a payday cash advance also varies by state and ranges from
10% to 22% of the amount of the payday cash advance.
Additional fees that we may collect include fees for returned checks and late fees. The returned check fee varies by state and
ranges up to $30. The lending bank or we, as the case may be, charge the customers this fee if the check is deposited and is returned
due to non-sufficient funds ("NSF") in the customers' accounts or other reasons. In three states, we are permitted to charge a late fee on
the payday cash advance, the amount of which varies by state. In Texas, where we provide credit services as a Credit Services
Organization ("CSO"), the third-party lender charges a late fee on its loan in accordance with state law. In two other states, a late fee is
charged by the lending bank on the installment loan, the amount of which is determined by the lending bank. For the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, total NSF fees collected by us, the third-party lender in Texas and the lending banks were
approximately $2.8 million and $2.4 million, respectively, and total late fees collected by us, the third-party lender in Texas and the
lending banks were approximately $254,000 and $75,000, respectively.
We provide payday cash advance services and small-denomination, short-term unsecured consumer credit because we believe
that many consumers have limited access to alternative sources of liquidity. To obtain a payday cash advance, a new customer first
completes an application that includes personal information such as his or her name, address, phone number, employment information
or source of income, and references. This information is entered into our information system. The new customer then presents the
required documentation, usually proof of identification, a pay stub or other evidence of income, and a bank statement, to our center
employee. In order for a new customer to be approved for a payday cash advance, he or she is required to have a bank account and a
regular source of income, such as a job.
Under the standard business model, we determine whether to approve a payday cash advance to our customers. Using this model,
we do not undertake any evaluation of the creditworthiness of our customers in determining whether to approve customers for payday
cash advances, other than requiring proof of identification, bank account and income source, as described above. However, we
consider the customer's income in determining the amount of the payday cash advance. Under the agency business model, the lending
banks use third-party credit scores to evaluate and approve each customer's application. We currently act as a CSO in our centers in
Texas. As a CSO, we offer a fee-based credit services package to assist customers in trying to improve their credit and in obtaining an
extension of consumer credit through a third-party lender, who determines whether to approve the loan and establishes all of the loan
underwriting criteria and terms, conditions and features of the loan agreement with the customer.
After the documents presented by the customer have been reviewed for completeness and accuracy and copied for record-keeping
purposes and the payday cash advance has been approved, the customer enters into an agreement governing the terms of the payday
cash advance. The customer then writes a
8
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personal check to cover the amount of the payday cash advance plus charges for applicable fees and/or interest, and makes an
appointment to return on a specified due date, typically his or her next payday, to repay the advance plus the applicable charges. At the
specified due date, the customer is required to pay off the payday cash advance in full, which is usually accomplished by the customer
returning to the center with cash.
In our CSO centers, we also assist the customer by agreeing to reimburse the lender for the full amount of the loan and all related
fees that are not collected from the customers. If the customer has chosen the consumer-reporting option, we report the repayment
information from the lender to Payment Reporting Builds Credit, Inc. ("PRBC"), a consumer credit reporting agency. Reporting to
PRBC may assist the customer in improving his or her credit if the customer repays the loan in accordance with its terms and if that
positive repayment is viewed favorably by users of the PRBC report. In addition, we provide access to free financial tools, services
and information to help customers with their personal finances, budgets and credit ratings.
Upon a repayment in full, we are obligated to return the customer's personal check to the customer. If the customer does not repay
the outstanding payday cash advance in full on or before the due date, we will seek to collect from the customer the amount of the
advance or loan and any applicable fees, including late and NSF fees due, and may deposit the customer's personal check.
Collection Procedures
As part of the closing process for each payday cash advance or loan, we typically establish the expectation with the customer that
they will return by scheduling an appointment for them to return to our center to repay their payday cash advance or loan on its due
date. The day before the due date, we generally call the customer to confirm their appointment.
If the customer does not return to repay the amount due, the center manager has the discretion to either (1) commence past-due
collection efforts, which typically may proceed for up to 14 days in most states, or (2) deposit the customer's personal check. If the
center manager has decided to commence past-due collection efforts in place of depositing the customer's personal check, center
employees typically contact the customer by telephone or in person to obtain a payment or a promise to pay, and attempt to exchange
the customer's check for a cashier's check if funds are available.
If at the end of this past-due collection period, the center has been unable to collect the amount due, the customer's check is then
deposited. Additional collection efforts are not required if the customer's deposited check clears. If the customer's check does not clear
and is returned because of non-sufficient funds in the customer's account or because of a closed account or a stop-payment order,
additional collection efforts begin. These additional collection efforts are carried out by the center employees and typically include
contacting the customer by telephone or in person to obtain payment or a promise to pay, sending a series of collection letters to the
customer, and attempting to exchange the customer's check for a cashier's check if funds become available.
9
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Center Operations
Centers
With 2,604 centers as of December 31, 2005, we operate the largest network of payday cash advance centers in the United States.
The following table illustrates the growth of our center network since December 31, 2003:
As of December 31,
State

2003

Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas(1)(2)
California
Colorado
Delaware
Florida
Georgia(1)(3)
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Michigan(1)
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Mexico
North Carolina(1)(4)
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania(1)(2)
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas(1)
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin
Wyoming
Total

2004

2005

86
38
30
240
30
4
161
89
2
52
56
20

30
60
85
48
54
5
14
8
15
11
118

137
53
5
100

90
10
58
157
92
47
30
4

127
49
30
290
56
10
173

8
61
91
21

33
64
87
51
62
8
25
10
15
12
118

178
68
42
101

105
10
59
204
109
90
37
4

140
53
30
298
62
13
211

13
60
116
35
42
39
75
111
53
70
9
25
10
16
12

7
210
67
56
101
3
112
11
62
207
120
105
45
5

2,039

2,408

2,604

(1)
We operated under the agency business model in Arkansas and North Carolina since April 14, 2001 and September 12,
2001, respectively. Prior to these dates, we operated in Arkansas and North Carolina under the standard business model. We
have only operated in Georgia and Pennsylvania under the agency business model. We operated in Texas under the agency
business model until July 2005, when we
10
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began operating as a CSO. We have operated in Michigan under the standard business model since June 27, 2005. Prior to
this date, we operated in Michigan under the agency business model.
(2)
The lending banks for which we market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in Arkansas and
Pennsylvania will discontinue offering advances and loans.
(3)
In May 2004, a Georgia law went into effect that essentially prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and
effectively restricts our ability to act as marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in the state. As a result,
we suspended operations and subsequently closed our 89 centers in Georgia.
(4)
As of December 22, 2005, we ceased operations as marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in North
Carolina.
Internal Compliance Audit
We have a staff of internal regulatory auditors based throughout the United States whose function is to monitor compliance by
our centers with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the CFSA's Best Practices and our company policies and
procedures. The auditors conduct periodic unannounced audits of our centers. They typically spend one to two days in each center,
although the time may vary if a more extensive investigation is needed. The auditors typically review customer files, reports, held
checks, cash controls and compliance with state specific legal requirements and disclosures. Upon completion of an audit, the auditor
will conduct an exit interview with the center personnel and/or the divisional director and discuss issues found during the review. As
part of the internal audit program, reports for management regarding audit results are prepared to help to identify compliance issues
that need to be addressed and areas for further training.
Relationship with the Lending Banks
Under marketing, processing and servicing agreements ("MP&S Agreements") with the lending banks under the agency business
model, we have been compensated by the lending banks for marketing, processing and servicing the payday cash advances and
installment loans the lending banks make to their customers. Approximately 15.9%, 24.4% and 26.0% of our total revenues in the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were derived from marketing, processing and servicing fees paid to us
by these lending banks. As of December 31, 2004, the lending banks were offering their payday cash advances in 540 of our centers in
Arkansas, Michigan, North Carolina, Pennsylvania and Texas. However, as of December 31, 2005, the lending banks were offering
their payday cash advances and installment loans in only 131 of our centers in Arkansas and Pennsylvania. In response to revised
guidance issued by the FDIC in March 2005 (the "Revised Guidance"), we began instead to offer check-cashing and
deferred-presentment services in our centers in Michigan in June 2005 and CSO services in our centers in Texas in July 2005.
Additionally, the lending bank in North Carolina ceased operations in December 2005. In response to a more recent communication
from the FDIC, the lending bank for which we market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in
Pennsylvania will cease originating payday cash advances and installment loans in March 2006 and the lending bank for which we
market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in Arkansas will cease originating installment loans and
payday cash advances in April 2006 and June 2006, respectively.
Although we have marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances offered, made and funded by the lending banks under
the agency business model, each lending bank is responsible for evaluating each of its customers' applications and determining
whether the payday cash advance or installment loan was approved. The lending banks for whom we have acted as agent utilize an
automated third-party credit scoring system to evaluate and approve each customer application. We are not involved in the lending
banks' payday cash advance and installment loan approval process, are not involved in determining the approval procedures or criteria
of the lending banks and generally do not
11
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fund or acquire any payday cash advances or installment loans from the lending banks. The payday cash advances and installment
loans are repayable solely to the lending banks and are assets of the lending banks. Consequently, the lending banks' payday cash
advances and installment loans are not included in our payday cash advance and installment loan portfolio nor are they reflected on
our balance sheet within our advances and fees receivable, net. Historically, the lending banks have been contractually obligated for a
portion of the payday cash advance and installment loan losses. Those obligations, denominated as a percent of fees and interest
charged to the customers, have typically ranged between 8% and 20%. Under our current MP&S Agreement with the lending bank in
Pennsylvania, the lending bank continues to be contractually obligated for losses up to 8.5% of fees and interest. Subsequent to
July 2005, under our MP&S Agreements with the lending bank in Arkansas and North Carolina, the lending bank has been
contractually obligated for all losses. In aggregate, this percentage was 11.5%, 13.2% and 10.1% for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. If the amount of uncollected payday cash advances and installment loans exceed the lending
bank's contractual obligation, we could be obligated to pay the lending bank the outstanding amount of the advances plus its fees
and/or interest receivable on the advances, less its contractually obligated portion of the losses. As of December 31, 2005, our
contingent liability to the lending bank in Pennsylvania amounted to $17.0 million, which was not included on our balance sheet. We
also could be obligated to pay this amount to the lending bank if, as a result of a change in law, regulation or otherwise, the lending
bank's payday cash advances and installment loans were to become uncollectible.
Competition
We believe that the principal competitive factors in the payday cash advance services industry are location, customer service,
convenience, speed and confidentiality. We face intense competition in an industry with low barriers to entry, and we believe that the
payday cash advance market is becoming more competitive as the payday cash advance services industry matures and consolidates.
We also compete with services offered by traditional financial institutions, such as overdraft protection, and with other payday cash
advance providers, small loan providers, credit unions, short-term consumer lenders and other financial services entities and retail
businesses that offer consumer loans or other products and services that are similar to ours. Businesses offering payday cash advances
and short-term loans over the internet as well as by phone have begun to compete with us in the business of making payday cash
advances.
The payday cash advance services industry is highly fragmented. In March 2006, Stephens, Inc. estimated that there were
approximately 23,000 outlets (including our own centers) in the United States. Our network of 2,604 centers as of December 31, 2005
represents the largest network of such centers in the United States. We believe that our two largest single service payday cash advance
company competitors, Check 'n Go and Check into Cash, have over 1,300 and 1,200 payday cash advance centers, respectively.
Another competitor is QC Holdings, Inc., which we believe has over 500 locations in the United States. The remaining competitors are
local chains and single-unit operators.
To a lesser extent, we compete with other companies that offer payday cash advances as an ancillary financial product to
complement their primary business of cashing checks, selling money orders, providing money transfer services or offering similar
financial services. These competitors include Dollar Financial Corp. and ACE Cash Express, Inc.
Our centers also have been facing increased competition from banks that offer their account holders payday cash advances as well
as other products such as overdraft privileges and bounced check protection, which are similar in effect to our payday cash advance
services.
Because of the relatively low cost of entry and the regulatory safe harbor that many state statutes provide for payday cash
advances, the payday cash advance services industry has experienced significant growth in the number of centers.
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Marketing and Advertising
We design our marketing efforts to increase our revenues by (1) introducing new customers to our services and (2) creating
customer loyalty. We believe that our mass media advertising campaigns (primarily through television, direct mail and the yellow
pages) increase demand for our payday cash advance services. Our advertising expenditures occur primarily during key seasonal
periods, such as the back-to-school and holiday seasons in the third and fourth quarters of each year, when consumers are most likely
to have short-term liquidity needs.
We utilize marketing promotions at our centers with, we believe, high-impact, consumer relevant, point-of-purchase materials. In
addition, we provide our centers with promotional materials such as brochures, pens, key chains and coupons for use in local
marketing. Local marketing also includes attendance at, and sponsorship of, community events such as blood drives, food drives, voter
registration programs and other charitable events.
Drawing on statistical data from our transaction database, we use direct marketing strategies to advertise to prospective customers
who have demographic characteristics similar to the customers we serve.
Information Systems
We employ a proprietary point-of-sale system that is used to record transactions in our centers. The point-of-sale system is also
used at our headquarters to develop information for management. We also employ a third-party cash reconciliation software system to
reconcile bank accounts and monitor cash receipts and disbursements.
The point-of-sale system is designed to facilitate customer service and speed the dissemination of information for cash flow
purposes. This system records and monitors the details of every transaction, reduces the risk of transaction errors, and provides
automated, integrated transactions that are designed to ensure standardization and compliance with applicable state and federal
regulations.
Transaction data gathered by our point-of-sale system is integrated into our management information system, general ledger and
cash reconciliation software. Our point-of-sale system and cash reconciliation software systems allow us to:

monitor daily revenue, deposits and disbursements on a company, state and center basis;

monitor and manage daily exception reports, which record cash shortages, late deposits, unusual disbursements
and other items;

determine, on a daily basis, the amount of cash needed at each center, enabling centralized treasury personnel to
maintain an optimum amount of cash in each location; and

facilitate compliance with regulatory requirements and company policies and procedures.
We maintain and test a disaster recovery plan for our critical networked systems, the documentation for which is hosted on a
third-party vendor website. Our back-up data tapes are housed by a third party at an off-site location. We also own backup computer
equipment and real-time data storage that is housed at an off-site facility to provide us with access to needed systems in the event of an
emergency that disables our headquarters' equipment.
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Security
Security and loss prevention play a critical role in the daily operations of our centers. Each center is provided with 24-hour
third-party monitoring. Physical security provided to each center includes: digital safes, wired hold-up alarm buttons and secure
locking systems. Additionally, most of our centers are equipped with 24-hour security cameras.
Because our business requires us to maintain a significant supply of cash in each of our centers, we are subject to the risk of cash
shortages resulting from employee and third-party theft and errors. Cash shortages from employee and third-party theft and errors were
approximately $1.6 million (0.25% of total revenues) in 2005, $1.2 million (0.21% of total revenues) in 2004 and $1.7 million (0.35%
of total revenues) in 2003.
Human Resources
Our center operations are divided into zones, regions and divisions, which we believe allows for a more effective management
process. A zone has approximately 450 to 600 centers and may include centers in more than one state. As of December 31, 2005, we
had five zones, each with a zone director who is responsible for the operations, administration, staffing and general supervision of the
centers in his or her zone. Regions typically include 50 to 150 centers organized into five to 10 divisions and are supervised by
regional directors who report to a zone director. Divisions typically include 7 to 18 centers and are supervised by divisional directors
who report to a regional director. Determination of region and division alignment is usually based upon geographic considerations.
Regions and divisions generally do not cross state lines. As of December 31, 2005, our five zones included 29 regions and 206
divisions.
A typical center is staffed with a manager and an assistant manager. Managers are responsible for the daily operations of the
center. As volume increases, additional personnel, called customer service representatives, are added. Our policy is to add a customer
service representative once a center has approximately 350 payday cash advances outstanding at one time. Thereafter, one additional
customer service representative is added for every 100 to 150 additional payday cash advances at a particular center.
Employees
As of February 28, 2006, we had approximately 6,500 employees, including approximately 6,000 center employees, 211
divisional directors, 27 regional directors, five zone directors and approximately 250 corporate employees and support personnel.
We consider our employee relations to be satisfactory. Our employees are not covered by a collective-bargaining agreement and
we have never experienced any organized work stoppage, strike or labor dispute.
Intellectual Property and other Proprietary Rights
We use a number of trademarks, logos and slogans in our business. AARC, Inc., one of our subsidiaries, owns all of our
intellectual property and has entered into a trademark license agreement with each of our operating subsidiaries to use this intellectual
property. Unauthorized use of our intellectual property by third parties may damage our brand and our reputation and could result in a
loss of customers. It may be possible for third parties to obtain and use our intellectual property without our authorization. Third
parties have in the past infringed or misappropriated our intellectual property or similar proprietary rights. For example, competitors of
ours have used our name and other trademarks of ours on their websites to advertise their financial services. We believe infringements
and misappropriations will continue to occur in the future.
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Other
Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated on August 11, 1997. Our
principal executive offices are located at 135 North Church Street, Spartanburg, South Carolina 29306. Our telephone number at that
location is (864) 342-5600. We maintain an internet website at www.advanceamericacash.com. We make available free of charge on
our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC").
Information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report. The SEC also maintains a website that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding us at www.sec.gov. In addition, any materials we file with
the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
Government Regulation
Payday cash advances are subject to extensive state and federal regulation. The regulation of payday cash advance companies is
intended primarily for the protection of consumers rather than investors in our common stock and our creditors and is constantly
changing as new regulations are introduced at the federal, state and local level and existing regulations are repealed, amended and
modified. This evolving regulatory landscape creates various uncertainties and risks for the operation of our business, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and
"Item 3. Legal Proceedings."
State Regulation
Our business is regulated under a variety of enabling state statutes, including payday advance, check cashing, small loan, and
credit services organization state laws, all of which are subject to change and which may impose significant costs or limitations on the
way we conduct or expand our business. As of December 31, 2005, 39 states and the District of Columbia had specific laws that
permitted payday cash advances or allowed a form of payday cash advances under small loan laws. As of December 31, 2005, we
operated in 35 of these 39 states. In one of these 35 states, we operated under the agency business model, serving as marketing,
processing and servicing agent through our centers for a lending bank. We do not currently conduct business in the remaining four
states or in the District of Columbia because we do not believe it is economically attractive to operate in these jurisdictions due to
specific legislative restrictions such as interest rate ceilings, an unattractive population density or unattractive location characteristics.
The remaining 11 states do not have laws specifically authorizing the payday cash advance business. Despite the lack of specific
payday advance laws, other laws may permit us to do business in these states. As of December 31, 2005, we operated in one of these
11 states under the agency business model, serving as marketing, processing and servicing agent through our centers for a lending
bank.
The scope of state regulation, including the terms on which payday cash advances may be made, varies from state to state. Most
states that regulate payday cash advances establish allowable fees and/or interest and other charges to consumers for payday cash
advances. In addition, many states regulate the maximum amount, maturity and renewal or extension of payday cash advances. The
terms of payday cash advances vary from state to state in order to comply with the laws and regulations of the states in which we
operate.
The states with specific payday cash advance laws typically limit the principal amount of a payday cash advance and set
maximum fees and interest rates that customers may be charged. Some states also
15

17

Edgar Filing: Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. - Form 10-K
limit a customer's ability to renew a payday cash advance and require various disclosures to consumers. State statutes often specify
minimum and maximum maturity dates for payday cash advances and, in some cases, specify mandatory cooling-off periods between
transactions. Our collection activities regarding past-due amounts are subject to consumer protection laws and state regulations
relating to debt collection practices. In addition, some states restrict payday cash advance advertising content.
During the last few years, legislation has been adopted in some states that prohibits or severely restricts payday cash advance
services. In May 2004, a new law became effective in Georgia that effectively prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and
effectively restricted our ability to act as marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in the state. See "Item 3. Legal
Proceedings." As a result, we closed our 89 centers in Georgia. Many bills have also been introduced in state legislatures. In 2005,
bills that severely restrict or effectively prohibit payday cash advance services were introduced in 26 states. In addition, two states
have sunset provisions in their payday cash advance laws that require renewal of the laws by the state legislatures at periodic intervals.
Future laws prohibiting payday cash advance services or making them unprofitable could be passed in any other state at any time or
existing payday cash advance laws could expire or be amended.
Statutes authorizing payday cash advance services typically provide state agencies that regulate banks and financial institutions
with significant regulatory powers to administer and enforce the law. In most states, we are required to apply for a license, file periodic
written reports regarding business operations and undergo comprehensive state examinations to ensure that we comply with applicable
laws. Under statutory authority, state regulators have broad discretionary power and may impose new licensing requirements, interpret
or enforce existing regulatory requirements in different ways or issue new administrative rules, even if not contained in state statutes,
that impact the way we do business and may force us to terminate or modify our operations in particular states. They may also impose
rules that are generally adverse to our industry.
In some cases, we may also rely on the interpretations of the staff of state regulatory bodies with respect to the laws and
regulations of their respective jurisdictions. These staff interpretations generally are not binding legal authority and may be subject to
challenge in administrative or judicial proceedings. Additionally, as the staff of state regulatory bodies change, it is possible that their
interpretations of applicable laws and regulations may also change and negatively affect our business.
State attorneys general and banking regulators have begun to scrutinize the payday cash advance services industry and may take
actions against the industry that could require us to cease or suspend operations in their respective states. On December 22, 2005, the
North Carolina Commissioner of Banks issued an order directing our North Carolina subsidiary to cease operation of our centers in the
state. As a result, our North Carolina subsidiary ceased all business activities in North Carolina and we closed our 117 centers. The
New Mexico attorney general proposed regulations in September 2005 that would effectively prohibit payday cash advances in the
state. If the regulations as written withstand legal challenge by the industry and are implemented, our New Mexico subsidiary may be
forced to cease all business activities in the state. It is possible that other actions taken against the industry in the future by other state
attorneys general could require us to suspend or cease operations in such jurisdictions and have a negative effect on our financial
condition.
State-specific legislative or regulatory action can reduce our revenues and/or margins in a state, cause us to temporarily operate at
a loss in a state, or even cause us to cease or suspend our operations in a state. From time to time, we may also choose to operate in a
state even if legislation or regulations cause us to lose money on our operations in that state. The passage of a 2002 Indiana statute
established a prohibitive rate structure for making payday cash advances in the state. Beginning on May 1, 2002, we provided payday
cash advances in that state while experiencing a consistent loss in revenue until a new, less restrictive, law was passed in March 2004.
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Federal Regulation
Our payday cash advance services are subject to a variety of federal laws and regulations, such as the Truth-in-Lending Act
("TILA"), the Equal Credit Opportunity Act ("ECOA"), the Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA"), the Fair Debt Collection Practices
Act ("FDCPA"), the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act ("GLBA") and the regulations promulgated for each. Among other things, these laws
require disclosure of the principal terms of each transaction to every customer, prohibit misleading advertising, protect against
discriminatory lending practices and proscribe unfair credit practices. TILA and Regulation Z, adopted under TILA, require disclosure
of, among other things, the pertinent elements of consumer credit transactions, including the dollar amount of the finance charge and
the charge expressed in terms of an annual percentage rate ("APR").
Our marketing efforts and the representations we make about our payday cash advance services also are subject to federal and
state unfair and deceptive practices statutes. The Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") enforces the Federal Trade Commission Act and
the state attorneys general and private plaintiffs enforce the analogous state statutes. In December 2002, the FTC requested that certain
payday cash advance providers, including us, respond to a series of questions and document requests concerning their operations.
Additionally, since 1999, various anti-payday cash advance legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Congress, with recent
legislation specifically targeting the agency relationships between banks and payday cash advance companies. Congressional members
continue to receive pressure from consumer advocates and other industry opposition groups to adopt such legislation.
The lending banks for which we have acted as marketing, processing and servicing agent are subject to extensive federal and state
banking regulations. As state-chartered banks, the lending banks are subject to supervision by the FDIC. Additionally, the lending
banks are subject to regular examination by other state and federal regulatory authorities.
In July 2003 and March 2005, the FDIC issued guidance governing permissible agency arrangements between state-chartered
banks and marketing, processing and servicing agents for the banks' payday cash advances, such as us. In July 2005, the lending banks
implemented new procedures and limits in response to the FDIC guidance and began offering installment loans as an alternative credit
product. In February 2006, we became aware that the FDIC is further investigating the offering of payday cash advances and
alternative credit products by agency banks and has instructed certain lending banks, including the lending banks for whom we act as a
marketing, processing and servicing agent, to discontinue offering payday cash advances and alternative credit products if they cannot
adequately address the FDIC's continuing concerns regarding those products. In response to the FDIC's latest actions, BankWest, Inc.
("BankWest"), the lending bank for whom we act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent in Pennsylvania, has decided to
discontinue offering payday cash advances and installment loans as of the close of business on March 27, 2006, and First Fidelity
Bank ("Fidelity"), for whom we act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent in Arkansas, has decided to discontinue offering
installment loans on April 8, 2006 and payday cash advances on June 24, 2006. We will continue servicing any payday cash advances
and installment loans in Arkansas and Pennsylvania that are outstanding at the time the respective lending banks cease originations.
We are studying alternative methods for conducting business in Arkansas and Pennsylvania. We are currently not able to estimate
what operational changes would be required or the impact of those changes. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and "Note 17. Subsequent
Events" contained in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Local Regulation
In addition to state and federal laws and regulations, our business is subject to various local rules and regulations such as local
zoning regulations. These local rules and regulations are subject to change
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and vary widely from state to state and city to city. In October 2005, for example, the Jacksonville, Florida, City Council passed an
ordinance attempting to regulate payday cash advances in the city, which, if enforced, will substantially impair our ability to transact
business in that area. As a result, we filed an action against Jacksonville for declaratory and injunctive relief. This action is still
pending. See "Item 3. Legal Proceedings."
Environmental, Health and Safety Matters
We are subject to general provisions of federal laws and regulations to ensure a safe and healthful work environment for
employees. In addition, we comply with those state laws that require a written health and safety program or other mandated safety
requirements. To reduce the possibility of physical injury or property damage resulting from robberies, our Loss Prevention
department has established operational procedures, conducts periodic safety training and awareness programs for employees, hires
security guards as needed and regularly monitors the marketplace for new technology or methods of improving workplace safety.
Other than standard cleaning products, we do not use chemicals or other agents governed by federal, state or local environmental
laws in conducting business operations. Based upon these measures, we believe that our centers are in substantial compliance with all
applicable environmental, health and safety requirements.

ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry
The closure of our centers in North Carolina and the lending banks ceasing to originate payday cash advances and
installment loans in Pennsylvania and Arkansas will adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
The closure of our centers in North Carolina in December 2005, the planned cessation of originations by BankWest, the lending
bank for whom we act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent in Pennsylvania, effective as of the close of business on
March 27, 2006, and the planned cessation of installment loan and payday cash advance originations by Fidelity, the lending bank for
whom we act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent in Arkansas, in April 2006 and June 2006, respectively, will result in a
significant loss of revenue. Those three states collectively accounted for $72.5 million and $59.0 million in net revenues during 2004
and 2005, respectively. We estimate that our net revenues will be reduced by approximately $2.3 million for each month that we are
not able to operate under the agency business model in Pennsylvania and $0.5 million for each month that we are not able to operate
under the agency business model in Arkansas. Furthermore, center expenses average approximately $1.3 million per month in
Pennsylvania and $0.4 million per month in Arkansas. These expenses will continue to be incurred while we service payday cash
advances and installments loans that are outstanding when the lending banks stop originating additional advances and loans. We
estimate that severance, lease cancellation, write-down of the undepreciated costs of fixed assets and the cost to vacate the premises
will approximate $2.9 million if it becomes necessary to shut down operations in Pennsylvania and $0.7 million if it becomes
necessary to shut down operations in Arkansas. In 2005, we incurred approximately $2.7 million in expenses related to closing our
North Carolina centers. The amount of impairment of goodwill, if any, cannot be determined at this time.
At this time it is unclear what options may be available to us to meet customer demand for small-denomination, short-term loans
in these states. Defending the legality of the agency business model, finding new lending bank partners and pursuing alternative
products and services may take significant time, management attention and financial resources. Further, we may not be successful in
any of these efforts.
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Our agency relationships with the lending banks are highly regulated and subject to the oversight of the FDIC and any
changes in laws and regulations governing these relationships or the position of the FDIC could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
The lending banks for which we have acted as marketing, processing and servicing agent are subject to extensive federal and state
banking regulations. Additionally, as state-chartered banks, the lending banks are subject to supervision by the FDIC as well as regular
examination by other state and federal regulatory authorities.
In July 2003 and March 2005, the FDIC issued guidance governing permissible agency arrangements between state-chartered
banks and marketing, processing and servicing agents for the banks' payday cash advances, such as us. In July 2005, the lending banks
for whom we act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent implemented new policies, limits and procedures and began offering
installment loans as an alternative credit product in response to the FDIC guidance. In February 2006, we became aware that the FDIC
is further investigating the offering of payday cash advances and installment loans by agency banks and has instructed certain lending
banks to discontinue offering payday cash advances and alternative credit products if they cannot adequately address the FDIC's
continuing concerns regarding those products. Despite the decision of the lending banks to stop originating payday cash advances and
installment loans in response to the FDIC's instructions, it is possible that the FDIC or other regulators could take further action
against the lending banks and us. Any such further action could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.
Our failure to efficiently and profitably introduce or manage a check-cashing, credit services business or other
alternative methods for conducting business could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.
In June 2005, we began offering check-cashing and deferred-presentment services directly to customers in Michigan and in
July 2005 we began offering credit services as a CSO to customers in Texas. In addition, in response to the FDIC's most recent
instruction to certain banks to discontinue offering new payday cash advances and alternative credit products, we are studying
alternative methods for conducting business in Arkansas and Pennsylvania. Each of these changes and alternative methods of
conducting business are subject to risk and uncertainty and require significant investment in time and capital. Due to our lack of
experience in offering these alternative services, we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully implement any of these
changes. We also cannot assure you that we will be able to identify or implement any alternative methods of conducting business in
Arkansas or Pennsylvania. Furthermore, we cannot anticipate the demand for any of these new services, nor do we know if we will be
able to offer these new services in an efficient manner or on a profitable or as profitable basis. Our failure to do so, or low customer
demand for any of these new services, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
The payday cash advance services industry is highly regulated under state law. Changes in state laws and regulations
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Our business is regulated under a variety of enabling state statutes, including payday advance, check-cashing, small loan, and
credit services organization state laws, all of which are subject to change and which may impose significant costs or limitations on the
way we conduct or expand our business. As of December 31, 2005, 39 states and the District of Columbia had specific laws that
permitted payday cash advances or allowed a form of payday cash advances under small loan laws. As of December 31, 2005, we
operated in 35 of these 39 states. In one of these 35 states, we operated under the agency business model, serving as marketing,
processing and servicing agent through our centers for a lending bank. We do not currently conduct business in the remaining four
states or in the District of
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Columbia because we do not believe it is economically attractive to operate in these jurisdictions due to specific legislative restrictions
such as interest rate ceilings, an unattractive population density or unattractive location characteristics. The remaining 11 states do not
have laws specifically authorizing the payday cash advance business. Despite the lack of specific payday advance laws, other laws
may permit us to do business in these states. As of December 31, 2005, we operated in one of these 11 states under the agency
business model, serving as marketing, processing and servicing agent through our centers for a lending bank.
During the last few years, legislation has been adopted in some states that prohibits or severely restricts payday cash advance
services. In May 2004, a new law became effective in Georgia that essentially prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and
restricted our ability to act as marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in the state. See "Item 3. Legal
Proceedings." As a result, we closed our 89 centers in Georgia. Many bills have also been introduced in state legislatures. In 2005,
bills that severely restrict or effectively prohibit payday cash advance services were introduced in 26 states. In addition, two states
have sunset provisions in their payday cash advance laws that require renewal of the laws by the state legislatures at periodic intervals.
Future laws prohibiting payday cash advance services or making them unprofitable could be passed in any other state at any time or
existing payday cash advance laws could expire or be amended, any of which would have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.
Statutes authorizing payday cash advance services typically provide state agencies that regulate banks and financial institutions
with significant regulatory powers to administer and enforce the law. In most states, we are required to apply for a license, file periodic
written reports regarding business operations and undergo comprehensive state examinations to ensure that we comply with applicable
laws. Under statutory authority, state regulators have broad discretionary power and may impose new licensing requirements, interpret
or enforce existing regulatory requirements in different ways or issue new administrative rules, even if not contained in state statutes,
that impact the way we do business and may force us to terminate or modify our operations in particular states. They may also impose
rules that are generally adverse to our industry. Any new licensing requirements or rules could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.
In some cases, we rely on the interpretations of the staff of state regulatory bodies with respect to the laws and regulations of their
respective jurisdictions. These staff interpretations generally are not binding legal authority and may be subject to challenge in
administrative or judicial proceedings. Additionally, as the staff of state regulatory bodies change, it is possible that their
interpretations of applicable laws and regulations also may change and negatively affect our business. As a result, our reliance on staff
interpretations could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Additionally, state attorneys general and banking regulators have begun to scrutinize payday cash advance services and take
actions that could require us to modify, suspend or cease operations in their respective states. See "Item 3. Legal Proceedings."
The payday cash advance services industry is also regulated under federal law and subject to federal and state unfair and
deceptive practices statutes. Our failure to comply with such regulations or changes in federal laws and regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Although states provide the primary regulatory framework under which we offer payday cash advance services, certain federal
laws also impact our business. See "Item 1. Business-Federal Regulation." Because payday cash advances are viewed as extensions of
credit, we must comply with the federal Truth-in-Lending Act and Regulation Z adopted under that Act. Additionally, we are subject
to the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Fair Credit
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Reporting Act and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Any failure to comply with any of these federal laws and regulations could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Additionally, since 1999, various anti-payday cash advance legislation has been introduced in the U.S. Congress. Congressional
members continue to receive pressure from consumer advocates and other industry opposition groups to adopt such legislation. Any
federal legislative or regulatory action that restricts or prohibits payday cash advance services could have a material adverse impact on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Our marketing efforts and the representations we make about our payday cash advance services also are subject to federal and
state unfair and deceptive practices statutes. The Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") enforces the Federal Trade Commission Act and
the state attorneys general and private plaintiffs enforce the analogous state statutes. If we are found to have violated any of these
statutes, that violation could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
The payday cash advance services industry is subject to various local rules and regulations. Changes in these local
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
In addition to state and federal laws and regulations, our business can be subject to various local rules and regulations such as
local zoning regulations. Any actions taken in the future by local zoning boards or other local governing bodies to require special use
permits for, or impose other restrictions on, payday cash advance service providers could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.
Current and future litigation and regulatory proceedings against us could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.
Our business is subject to lawsuits and regulatory proceedings that could generate adverse publicity and cause us to incur
substantial expenditures. See "Item 3. Legal Proceedings." Adverse rulings in some of these lawsuits or regulatory proceedings could
significantly impair our business or force us to cease doing business in one or more states.
We are likely to be subject to further litigation and proceedings in the future. The consequences of an adverse ruling in any
current or future litigation or proceeding could cause us to have to refund fees and/or interest collected on payday cash advances,
refund the principal amount of payday cash advances, pay treble or other multiple damages, pay monetary penalties and/or modify or
terminate our operations in particular states. We may also be subject to adverse publicity. Defense of any lawsuits or proceedings,
even if successful, would require substantial time and attention of our senior officers and other management personnel that would
otherwise be spent on other aspects of our business and would require the expenditure of significant amounts for legal fees and other
related costs. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Legislative or regulatory action or an adverse result in litigation or regulatory proceedings could cause us to cease,
suspend or modify our operations in a state, potentially resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
If we close our centers in a state, in addition to the loss of net revenues attributable to that closing, we would incur closing costs
such as severance payments and lease cancellation payments and we would have to write off assets that we could no longer use. If we
were to suspend rather than
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permanently cease our operations in a state, we may also have continuing costs associated with maintaining our centers and our
employees in that state, with little or no revenues.
From time to time, we may also choose to operate in a state even if legislation or regulations cause us to lose money on our
operations in that state. The passage of a 2002 Indiana statute established a rate structure at which we could not operate on a profitable
basis. However, we continued to provide payday cash advances in the state while experiencing operating losses until a new, less
restrictive, law was passed in March 2004. Any of these actions or events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.
We lack product and business diversification; as a result, our future revenues and earnings may be disproportionately
negatively impacted by external factors and may be more susceptible to fluctuations than more diversified companies.
Our primary business activity is offering payday cash advance services. If we are unable to maintain and grow our payday cash
advance services business, our future revenues and earnings could decline. Our lack of product and business diversification could
inhibit our opportunities for growth, reduce our revenues and profits and make us more susceptible to earnings fluctuations than many
of our competitors who are more diversified and provide other services such as pawn lending, title lending or other similar services.
External factors, such as changes in laws and regulations, new entrants and enhanced competition, could also make it more difficult for
us to operate as profitably as a more diversified company could operate. Any internal or external change in the payday cash advance
services industry could result in a decline in our future revenues and earnings, which could have a material adverse effect on our stock
price.
Competition in the retail financial services industry could cause us to lose market share or reduce our interest and fees,
possibly resulting in a decline in our future revenues and earnings.
The industry in which we operate has low barriers to entry and is highly fragmented and very competitive. We believe that the
market may become even more competitive as the industry grows and/or consolidates. We compete with services provided by
traditional financial institutions, such as overdraft protection, and with other payday cash advance providers, small loan providers,
credit unions, short-term consumer lenders, other financial service entities and other retail businesses that offer consumer loans or
other products and services that are similar to ours. We also compete with companies offering payday cash advances and short-term
loans over the internet as well as by phone. Some of these competitors have larger local or regional customer bases, more locations and
substantially greater financial, marketing and other resources than we have. As a result of this increasing competition, we could lose
market share or we may need to reduce our interest and fees, possibly resulting in a decline in our future revenues and earnings.
The concentration of our revenues in certain states could adversely affect us.
Our centers operated in 37 states (prior to the closure of our centers in North Carolina) during the year ended December 31, 2005,
and our five largest states (measured by total revenues) accounted for approximately 41% of our total revenues, with California, our
largest state (measured by total revenues), representing approximately 11% of our total revenues. While we believe we have a diverse
geographic presence, for the near term we expect that significant revenues will continue to be generated by certain states, largely due
to the currently prevailing economic, demographic, regulatory, competitive and other conditions in those states. Furthermore, our five
largest states, as measured by revenues, are not in all instances our five largest states as measured by the number of centers operated.
Changes to prevailing economic, demographic, regulatory or any other conditions in the markets in which we operate could lead to a
reduction in demand for our payday cash advance services, a decline in our revenues or an increase in our provision for doubtful
accounts and agency bank losses that could result in a deterioration of our financial condition.
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Media reports and public perception of payday cash advances as being predatory or abusive could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Over the past few years, consumer advocacy groups and certain media reports have advocated with increasing frequency
governmental and regulatory action to prohibit or severely restrict payday cash advances. The consumer groups and media reports
typically focus on the cost to a consumer for a payday cash advance. The consumer groups and media reports typically characterize
these payday cash advances as predatory or abusive toward consumers. If this negative characterization of payday cash advances
becomes widely accepted by consumers, demand for payday cash advance services could significantly decrease, which could
materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Negative perception of payday cash advances or
other activities could also result in increased regulatory scrutiny and increased litigation, and encourage restrictive local zoning rules
and make it more difficult to obtain government approvals necessary to open new centers. These trends could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
The provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses may increase and net income may decrease if we are unable
to collect customers' personal checks that are returned due to non-sufficient funds ("NSF") in the customers' accounts
or other reasons.
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we deposited approximately 5.5% and 5.0%, respectively, of all the customer
checks we received and approximately 79% and 78%, respectively, of these deposited customer checks were returned unpaid because
of non-sufficient funds in the customers' bank accounts or because of closed accounts or stop-payment orders. Total charge-offs, net of
recoveries, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were approximately $100.5 million and $83.4 million, respectively. If the
number of customer checks that we deposit increases or the percent of the customers' returned checks that we charge-off increases, our
provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses will increase and our net income will decrease.
We are subject to credit risk as a result of our arrangements with lending banks. The lending banks' failure to honor
their obligations to us could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Under the agency business model, all charges of fees and/or interest paid by a lending bank's customers are deposited directly in
the lending bank's bank account. We invoice the lending bank for the marketing, processing and servicing fees payable to us by such
bank. In addition, the lending bank in Pennsylvania is responsible for making payments to us if actual payday cash advance and
installment loan losses are less than the bank's contractually obligated portion of the losses. We are subject to the risk that the lending
banks may fail to pay all or a portion of the amounts due to us or that they fail to pay us on a timely basis. Any such failure could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
If our estimates of payday cash advance, installment loan or check-cashing, deferred-presentment or credit services
losses are not adequate to absorb losses, our provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses would increase. This
would result in a decline in our future revenues and earnings, which could have a material adverse effect on our stock
price.
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses for payday cash advances we make directly to consumers
and check-cashing, deferred-presentment and other credit services we offer under the standard business model and an accrual for
excess bank losses for our share of losses on payday cash advances and installment loans we market, process and service for lending
banks under the agency business model. To estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank
losses, we consider the amount of outstanding payday cash advances owed to us, the amount of payday cash advances and installment
loans owed to the lending banks and serviced by us,
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the contract with each lending bank, historical payday cash advances or installment loans we have charged off, our current collection
patterns and the current economic trends in the markets we serve.
As of December 31, 2005, our allowance for doubtful accounts was $45.6 million and the accrual for excess bank losses that was
reported in our current liabilities in our balance sheet was $1.4 million. These amounts, however, are estimates, and we have less
experience upon which to base our estimates of losses from installment loans, check-cashing, deferred-presentment or credit services.
If our actual payday cash advance, check-cashing, deferred-presentment or credit services losses are greater than our allowance for
doubtful accounts, our provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses would increase. This would result in a decline in our
future revenues and earnings, which could have a material adverse effect on our stock price.
With respect to the payday cash advances and installment loans that we market, process and service for the lending bank in
Pennsylvania, as of December 31, 2005, our aggregate contingent liability was $17.0 million, and this amount was not included on our
balance sheet. We could be obligated to pay this amount to the lending bank if the lending bank's payday cash advances and
installment loans were to become uncollectible.
Our ability to manage our growth may deteriorate, and our ability to execute our growth strategy may be adversely
affected.
We have experienced substantial growth in recent years. Our growth strategy, which is based on rapidly opening a large number
of centers in existing and new markets, is subject to significant risks. We cannot assure you that we will be able to expand our market
presence in our current markets or successfully enter new markets through the opening of new centers or acquisitions. Moreover, the
start-up costs and the losses from initial operations attributable to each newly opened center place demands upon our liquidity and cash
flow, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to satisfy these demands.
In addition, our ability to execute our growth strategy will depend on a number of other factors, some of which may be beyond
our control, including:

the prevailing laws and regulatory environment of each state in which we operate or seek to operate, which are
subject to change at any time;

our ability to obtain and maintain any regulatory approvals, government permits or licenses that may be required;

our ability to manage a check-cashing and deferred-presentment business and credit service organization business
and identify and implement alternative methods for doing business in Pennsylvania, Arkansas or any other state;

the degree of competition in new markets and its effect on our ability to attract new customers;

our ability to compete for expansion opportunities in suitable locations;

our ability to recruit, train and retain qualified personnel;

our ability to adapt our infrastructure and systems to accommodate our growth; and

our ability to obtain adequate financing for our expansion plans.
We cannot assure you that our systems, procedures, controls and existing space will be adequate to support expansion of our
operations. Our growth has placed significant demands on all aspects of our business, including our administrative, technical and
financial personnel and systems. Additional expansion may further strain our management, financial and other resources. Our future
results of operations will substantially depend on the ability of our officers and key employees to manage changing business
conditions and to implement and improve our technical, administrative, financial
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control and reporting systems. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will be able to implement our business strategy profitably in
geographic areas we do not currently serve.
We may incur substantial additional debt, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition by limiting our ability to obtain financing in the future and react to changes in our business.
We may incur substantial additional debt in the future. As of December 31, 2005, our total debt was approximately $44.6 million
and our stockholders' equity was approximately $303.0 million. Due to the seasonal nature of our business, our total debt is historically
the lowest during the first calendar quarter and then increases during the remainder of the year. If we incur substantial additional debt,
it could have important consequences to our business. For example, it could:

restrict our operational flexibility through restrictive covenants that will limit our ability to make acquisitions,
explore certain business opportunities, dispose of assets and take other actions;

limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business;

limit our ability to borrow additional funds in the future, if we need them, due to applicable financial and
restrictive covenants in our debt instruments;

make us vulnerable to interest rate increases, because a portion of our borrowings is, and will continue to be, at
variable rates of interest;

require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt obligations,
which will reduce our funds available for working capital, capital expenditures and our growth strategy; and

place us at a disadvantage compared to our competitors that have proportionately less debt.
The terms of our debt limit our ability to incur additional debt but do not prohibit us from incurring additional debt. When debt
levels increase, the related risks that we now face will also increase.
If we fail to generate sufficient cash flow from future operations to meet our debt service obligations, we may need to seek
refinancing of all or a portion of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing in order to meet our obligations with respect to our
indebtedness. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing on
satisfactory terms or at all.
We depend on loans and cash management services from banks to operate our business. If banks decide to stop making
loans and/or providing cash management services to companies in the payday cash advance services industry, it could
have a material adverse affect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
We depend on borrowings under our revolving credit facility to fund payday cash advances, capital expenditures to build new
centers and other needs. One major regional bank announced that it had revised its credit policies to prohibit future loans to companies
engaged in the payday cash advance services or car title lending industries in a letter that the bank filed with the Federal Reserve
Board in connection with the bank's application for approval of an acquisition. The bank's letter referred to comments filed by certain
consumer advocacy organizations in connection with the bank's application, and stated that it had revised its credit policies "after
considering the potential reputational risks and consumer harm" that could result from lending to companies in these industries. While
this bank is not one of our existing lenders under our revolving credit facility, if our current or potential credit banks decided not to
lend money to companies in the payday cash advance services industry, we could face higher borrowing costs, limitations on our
ability to grow our business as well as possible cash shortages, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and
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financial condition. This bank also no longer provides cash management services, including operating depository accounts, to payday
advance companies. There are other banks that have notified us and other companies in the payday cash advance and check cashing
industries that they will no longer maintain bank accounts for these companies due to reputational risks and increased compliance
costs of servicing money services businesses and other cash intensive industries. While none of our larger depository banks has
requested that we close our bank accounts or put other restrictions on how we use their services, if any of our larger current or future
depository banks were to take such action, we could face higher costs of managing our cash and limitations on our ability to grow our
business, both of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
We depend to a substantial extent on borrowings under our revolving credit facility to fund our liquidity needs.
We have an existing revolving credit facility that allows us to borrow up to $265.0 million, assuming we are in compliance with a
number of covenants and conditions. Because we typically use substantially all of our available cash generated from our operations to
repay borrowings on our revolving credit facility on a current basis, we have limited cash balances and we expect that a substantial
portion of our liquidity needs, including any amounts to pay any future cash dividends on our common stock, will be funded primarily
from borrowings under our revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $212.5 million available for
future borrowings under this facility. Due to the seasonal nature of our business, our borrowings are historically the lowest during the
first calendar quarter and increase during the remainder of the year. If our existing sources of liquidity are insufficient to satisfy our
financial needs, we may need to raise additional debt or equity in the future.
Our revolving credit facility contains restrictions and limitations that could significantly affect our ability to operate our
business.
Our revolving credit facility contains a number of significant covenants that could adversely affect our business. These covenants
restrict our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other things:

incur additional debt;

create liens;

effect mergers or consolidations;

make investments, acquisitions or dispositions;

pay dividends or make other payments;

enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions;

become subject to further restrictions on the creation of liens; and

have foreign subsidiaries.
The breach of any covenants or obligation in our revolving credit facility will result in a default. If there is an event of default
under our revolving credit facility, the lenders under the revolving credit facility could cause all amounts outstanding there under to be
due and payable, subject to applicable grace periods. This could trigger cross-defaults under our other existing or future debt
instruments. As a result, our ability to respond to changing business and economic conditions and to secure additional financing, if
needed, may be significantly restricted, and we may be prevented from engaging in transactions that might further our growth strategy.
If we are unable to repay, refinance or restructure our indebtedness under our revolving credit facility, the lenders under that facility
could proceed against the collateral securing that indebtedness. Our obligations under the revolving credit facility are
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guaranteed by each of our existing and future subsidiaries. The borrowings under the revolving credit facility and the subsidiary
guarantees are secured by substantially all of our assets and the assets of the subsidiary guarantors. In addition, borrowings under the
revolving credit facility are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the capital stock, or similar equity interests, of the subsidiary
guarantors. In the event of our insolvency, liquidation, dissolution or reorganization, the lenders under our revolving credit facility and
any other existing or future debt of ours would be entitled to payment in full from our assets before distributions, if any, were made to
our stockholders.
Our business is seasonal in nature, which causes our revenues, collection rates and earnings to fluctuate. These
fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and stock price.
Our business is seasonal due to the impact of fluctuating demand for payday cash advances and fluctuating collection rates
throughout the year. Demand has historically been highest in the third and fourth quarters of each year, corresponding to the
back-to-school and holiday seasons, and lowest in the first quarter of each year, corresponding to our customers' receipt of income tax
refunds. Our provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses, allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank
losses are historically lowest as a percentage of revenues in the first quarter of each year, corresponding to our customers' receipt of
income tax refunds, and increase as a percentage of revenues for the remainder of each year. This seasonality requires us to manage
our cash flows over the course of the year. If our revenues or collections were to fall substantially below what we would normally
expect during certain periods, our ability to service our debt, pay dividends on our common stock and meet our other liquidity
requirements may be adversely affected, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and stock price.
In addition, our quarterly results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future because of the
seasonal nature of our business. Therefore, our quarterly revenues and results of operations are difficult to forecast, which, in turn
could cause our future quarterly results to not meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors. Our failure to meet expectations
could cause a material drop in the market price of our common stock.
Because we maintain a significant supply of cash in our centers, we may be subject to cash shortages due to employee
and third-party theft and errors. We also may be subject to liability as a result of crimes at our centers.
Because our business requires us to maintain a significant supply of cash in each of our centers, we are subject to the risk of cash
shortages resulting from employee and third-party theft and errors. Although we have implemented various programs to reduce these
risks, maintain insurance coverage for theft and provide security for our employees and facilities, we cannot assure you that employee
and third-party theft and errors will not occur. Cash shortages from employee and third-party theft and errors were approximately
$1.6 million (0.25% of total revenues) in 2005, $1.2 million (0.21% of total revenues) in 2004 and $1.7 million (0.35% of total
revenues) in 2003. Theft and errors could lead to cash shortages and could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. It is also possible that crimes such as armed robberies may be committed at our centers. We could experience
liability or adverse publicity arising from such crimes. For example, we may be liable if an employee, customer or bystander suffers
bodily injury, emotional distress or death. Any such event may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.
Any disruption in the availability of our information systems could adversely affect operations at our centers.
We rely upon our information systems to manage and operate our centers and business. Each center is part of an information
network that is designed to permit us to maintain adequate cash inventory, reconcile cash balances on a daily basis and report revenues
and expenses to our headquarters. Our back-up systems and security measures could fail to prevent a disruption in our
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information systems. Any disruption in our information systems could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
Our centralized headquarters functions are susceptible to disruption by catastrophic events, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Our headquarters building is located in Spartanburg, South Carolina. Our information systems and administrative and
management processes are primarily provided to our zone and regional management and to our centers from this centralized location,
and they could be disrupted if a catastrophic event, such as a tornado, power outage or act of terror, destroyed or severely damaged our
headquarters. Any of these catastrophic events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
Potential future acquisitions could be difficult to integrate, divert the attention of key management personnel, disrupt our
business, dilute stockholder value and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
We may consider acquisitions of companies, technologies and products that we feel could accelerate our ability to compete or
allow us to enter new markets. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:

difficulties in integrating operations, technologies, accounting and personnel;

difficulties in supporting and transitioning customers of our acquired companies;

diversion of financial and management resources from existing operations;

risks of entering new markets;

potential loss of key employees; and

inability to generate sufficient revenues to offset acquisition costs.
Acquisitions also frequently result in the recording of goodwill and other intangible assets that are subject to potential
impairments in the future that could harm our financial results. In addition, if we finance acquisitions by issuing convertible debt or
equity securities, our existing stockholders may be diluted, which could affect the market price of our stock. As a result, if we fail to
properly evaluate acquisitions or investments, we may not achieve the anticipated benefits of any such acquisitions, and we may incur
costs in excess of what we anticipate, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.
Regular turnover among our managers and employees at our centers makes it more difficult for us to operate our centers
and increases our costs of operations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.
The annual turnover as of December 31, 2005, among our center managers was approximately 54% and among our other center
employees was approximately 102%. Approximately 50% of the turnover has traditionally occurred in the first six months following
the hire date of our center managers and employees. This turnover increases our cost of operations and makes it more difficult to
operate our centers. If we are unable to retain our employees in the future, our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.
We used to be taxed as an S corporation under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code and claims of taxing
authorities related to our prior status as an S corporation could harm us.
Between October 1, 2001, and the closing of our initial public offering ("IPO") on December 21, 2004, we were taxed as a
"pass-through" entity under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Currently, we are taxed as a C corporation under Subchapter C of the Internal Revenue Code, which is applicable to most corporations
and treats the corporation as an entity that is separate and distinct from its stockholders. If our tax returns for the years in which we
were an S corporation were to be audited by the Internal Revenue Service or another taxing authority and we were determined not to
have qualified for, or to have violated, our S corporation status, we could be obligated to pay back taxes, interest and penalties. These
amounts could include taxes on all of our net income while we were an S corporation. We currently estimate that the net income
during the period we were an S corporation was approximately $225.0 million to $235.0 million. Any such claims could result in
additional costs to us and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Until we file our final income tax return as an S corporation, the amount of deferred income tax liability recorded as a result of
our conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation remains an estimate. Any change in this deferred income tax liability will
result in a change in income tax expense when the final S corporation income tax return is filed. This should occur in the third quarter
of 2006.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Our executive officers and directors may be able to exert significant influence over our future direction.
Our executive officers and directors together with certain trusts for the benefit of some of the family members of certain directors,
control approximately 35% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders, if they act together, may be able to
influence any matter requiring our stockholders' approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate
transactions. As a result, this concentration of ownership may delay, prevent or deter a change in control, could deprive our
stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our company or its assets and might
reduce the market price of our common stock.
Applicable laws and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage takeovers and business combinations
that our stockholders might consider in their best interest.
State laws and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may delay, defer, prevent or render more difficult a takeover attempt
that our stockholders might consider in their best interests. For instance, they may prevent our stockholders from receiving the benefit
from any premium to the market price of our common stock offered by a bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absence of a
takeover attempt, the existence of these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock if they are
viewed as discouraging takeover attempts in the future.
State laws and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may also make it difficult for stockholders to replace or remove our
directors. These provisions may facilitate entrenchment of directors that may delay, defer or prevent a change in our control, which
may not be in the best interests of our stockholders.
The following provisions that are included in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws have anti-takeover effects and may
delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt that our stockholders might consider in their best interests. In particular, our certificate of
incorporation and bylaws:

permit our board of directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock;

prohibit stockholders from filling vacancies on our board of directors;

prohibit stockholders from calling special meetings of stockholders and from taking action by written consent;

impose advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and nominations of directors to be considered at
stockholder meetings; and
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require the approval by the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of our outstanding capital stock entitled to
vote on the matter for the stockholders to amend the provisions of our bylaws and certificate of incorporation
described in the second through fourth bullet points above and in this bullet point.
In addition, many of our subsidiaries are licensed by, and subject to, the regulatory and supervisory jurisdiction of the states
where they do business. Under change in control statutes of some of these states, any person, acting alone or with others, who is
seeking to acquire, directly or indirectly, 5% or more of our outstanding common stock may need to be approved by the authorities
within those states. As a result, prospective investors who intend to acquire a substantial portion of our common stock may need to be
aware of and to comply with those state requirements, to the extent applicable.
In addition, Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware may limit the ability of an "interested
stockholder" to engage in business combinations with us. An interested stockholder is defined to include persons owning 15% or more
of our outstanding voting stock.
We can redeem your common stock if you are or if you become a disqualified person.
Federal and state laws and regulations applicable to providers of payday cash advance services may now or in the future restrict
direct or indirect ownership or control of providers of payday cash advance services by disqualified persons (such as convicted felons).
Our certificate of incorporation provides that we may redeem shares of your common stock to the extent deemed necessary or
advisable, in the sole judgment of our Board of Directors, to prevent the loss of, or to secure the reinstatement or renewal of, any
license or permit from any governmental agency that is conditioned upon some or all of the holders of our common stock possessing
prescribed qualifications or not possessing prescribed disqualifications. The redemption price will be the average closing sale price per
share of our common stock during the 20-trading-day period ending on the second business day preceding the redemption date fixed
by our Board of Directors. At the discretion of our Board of Directors, the redemption price may be paid in cash, debt or equity
securities or a combination of cash and debt or equity securities.

ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES.

Our average center size is approximately 1,500 square feet. We try to locate our centers in highly visible, accessible locations.
Our centers, which we design to have the appearance of a mainstream financial institution, are typically located in middle-income
shopping areas with high retail activity. Other tenants in these shopping areas typically include grocery stores, discount retailers and
national video rental stores. All of our centers are leased, with typical lease terms of three years with an option to renew at the end of
the lease term. Our leases usually require that we pay all maintenance costs, insurance costs and property taxes.
See "Item 1. BusinessCenter OperationsCenters" for a listing of the number of centers we operated in the various states as of
December 31, 2005.
We own our corporate headquarters in Spartanburg, South Carolina. Our headquarters building, which is approximately 75,000
square feet, and related land are subject to a mortgage payable to a lender, the principal amount of which was approximately
$6.2 million at December 31, 2005. The mortgage is payable in 180 monthly installments of approximately $66,400, including
principal and interest, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.30% over its term. The mortgage matures on June 10, 2017. The carrying
amount of our corporate headquarters (land, land improvements and building) was approximately $5.6 million and $5.4 million at
December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
30

32

Edgar Filing: Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. - Form 10-K

We believe that our facilities, equipment, furniture and fixtures and aircraft are in good condition and well maintained, and that
our offices are sufficient to meet our present needs.

ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are involved in several active lawsuits, including lawsuits arising out of actions taken by state regulatory authorities and are
involved in various other legal proceedings with state and federal regulators. The use of the terms "we," "us" or "our" in this Item 3
include the parent Company and the respective subsidiary where the context so requires.
BankWest, Inc. et al. vs. Baker et al.
A Georgia statute, effective May 2004, essentially prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and effectively restricts our
ability to act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in the state. In April 2004, we, along with a lending
bank, BankWest, and other banks and agents involved in providing payday cash advances in Georgia, filed an action in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia against the Attorney General of Georgia and the Georgia Secretary of State seeking
a declaration that the Georgia anti-payday cash advance law is unconstitutional, preempted by federal law and should not be enforced.
The District Court denied the request. As a result, BankWest and our Georgia subsidiary suspended operations in Georgia in 2004. The
District Court's order was appealed to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, and in June 2005, a two judge majority of a
three judge panel affirmed the District Court's order. In December 2005, the Eleventh Circuit granted Petitions for Rehearing En Banc,
vacated the majority's opinion and set the matter for oral argument in June 2006.
Kucan et al. vs. Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of North Carolina, Inc. et al.
On July 27, 2004, John Kucan, Welsie Torrence and Terry Coates, each of whom was a customer of Republic Bank & Trust
Company ("Republic"), a lending bank for whom we marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances in North Carolina, filed
a putative class action lawsuit in the General Court of Justice for the Superior Court Division for New Hanover County, North
Carolina, against us and William M. Webster, IV, our Vice Chairman, alleging, among other things, that the relationship between our
North Carolina subsidiary and Republic was a "rent a charter" relationship and therefore Republic was not the "true lender" on the
payday cash advances it offered. The lawsuit also claims that the payday cash advances were made, administered and collected in
violation of numerous North Carolina consumer protection laws. The lawsuit seeks an injunction barring the subsidiary from
continuing to do business in North Carolina, the return of the principal amount of the payday cash advances made to the plaintiff class
since August 2001, the return of any interest or fees associated with those advances, treble damages, attorneys' fees and other
unspecified costs. On December 30, 2005, the court issued an Order granting defendants' motion for arbitration, staying the
proceedings and denying class certification. The plaintiffs have appealed this Order to the North Carolina Court of Appeals.
King and Strong vs. Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of Georgia, Inc. et al.
On August 6, 2004, Tahisha King and James E. Strong, who were customers of BankWest, the lending bank for whom we
marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances in Georgia, filed a putative class action lawsuit in the State Court of Cobb
County, Georgia, against us, Mr. Webster and other unnamed officers, directors, owners and "stakeholders," alleging various causes of
action including that our Georgia subsidiary made illegal payday loans in Georgia in violation of Georgia's usury law, the Georgia
Industrial Loan Act and Georgia's Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act. The complaint alleges that BankWest was not
the "true lender" on the advances that were marketed, processed and serviced for BankWest in Georgia and we were the "de facto"
lender. The complaint seeks compensatory damages, attorneys' fees, punitive damages and the trebling
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of any compensatory damages. We removed the state court action to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia,
Atlanta Division, however the action was remanded back to the State Court of Cobb County in December 2005. The action will now
proceed in state court.
Glasscock vs. Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of Georgia, Inc. et al.
Our Georgia subsidiary is involved in another case in Georgia that, although not a class action lawsuit, contains essentially the
same allegations as the King and Strong case. On March 10, 2003, Angela Glasscock, a customer of BankWest, filed an adversary
proceeding in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Georgia alleging that the Georgia subsidiary was making payday
cash advances in Georgia in violation of the Georgia Industrial Loan Act. BankWest intervened into the case and subsequently both
our Georgia subsidiary and BankWest filed a motion for summary judgment that was granted in September 2005. In its holding, the
court ruled that BankWest, was the "true lender." Plaintiffs have appealed this ruling and briefing is being completed. Although the
amount in controversy in the case is only $350, the underlying claims of Ms. Glasscock, if validated by the appellate court, could serve
as a basis for future claims against us.
Betts and Reuter vs. McKenzie Check Advance of Florida, LLC et al.
We, our subsidiary McKenzie Check Advance of Florida, LLC ("McKenzie"), and certain of our officers, directors and
employees are defendants in a putative class-action lawsuit commenced by former customers, Wendy Betts and Donna Reuter, in
Florida. This putative class action was filed by Ms. Betts and Ms. Reuter in February 2001 in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County
and alleges that McKenzie, by and through the actions of certain of our officers, directors and employees, engaged in unfair and
deceptive trade practices and violated Florida's criminal usury statute, Consumer Finance Act, and Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act. The suit seeks unspecified damages, and McKenzie or the other defendants could be required to refund fees and/or
interest collected, refund the principal amount of payday cash advances, pay multiple damages and pay other monetary penalties.
Defendants' motion for summary judgment was originally granted as to Ms. Betts' claims but later reversed by a Florida appellate
court. This decision is currently on appeal to the Florida Supreme Court. Ms. Reuter's claims were originally dismissed and
defendants' motion to compel arbitration granted by the state trial court. This ruling is currently on appeal to the Florida Supreme
Court. The Florida Supreme Court stayed the appeal of Ms. Reuter's claims pending the U.S. Supreme Court's review of Buckeye
Check Cashing, Inc., v. Cardegna, et al. ("Buckeye"), which held that a substantially similar arbitration agreement was unenforceable.
On February 21, 2006, the U.S. Supreme Court reversed the Florida Supreme Court's holding in Buckeye. The U.S. Supreme Court
held that where a contract contained an arbitration clause, any challenge to the validity of the contract is a question for an arbitrator
rather than a state or federal court. We believe the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Buckeye should be binding on Ms. Reuter's claims
and that the Florida Supreme Court will reach a decision that is consistent with the U.S. Supreme Court's ruling in Buckeye.
Reuter and Betts vs. Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of Florida, Inc. et al.
A second Florida lawsuit was filed in August 2004 in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County by former customers Gerald Betts
and Ms. Reuter against us, our subsidiary Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of Florida, Inc., and certain of our officers and
directors. The allegations are nearly identical to those alleged in the first Betts and Reuter lawsuit. We have filed motions to dismiss,
to stay the proceedings pending determination of dispositive actions by the Florida Supreme Court in the original Betts and Reuter
case, and to compel arbitration. Proceedings in this case have been stayed pending the disposition of the appeals in the original Betts
and Reuter case.
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North Carolina Commissioner of Banks Investigation
In August 2004, the North Carolina Attorney General's Office, in conjunction with the Commissioner of Banks for North
Carolina, issued a subpoena to us to produce documents, respond to written questions and have a corporate representative appear for a
deposition regarding the relationship between our North Carolina subsidiary and the lending bank in North Carolina, Republic, to
determine whether our operations in North Carolina are in compliance with North Carolina law. On February 1, 2005, the
Commissioner of Banks initiated a contested case against our North Carolina subsidiary for alleged violations of the North Carolina
Consumer Finance Act. On December 22, 2005, at the conclusion of the contested case, the Commissioner of Banks ordered that our
North Carolina subsidiary immediately cease and desist operating. A Notice of Appeal to the North Carolina State Banking
Commission was immediately filed and is pending. In accordance with the Commissioner of Bank's Order, we ceased all business
operations in North Carolina on December 22, 2005.
New Mexico Attorney General Proposed Rules and Regulations Governing the Extension of Credit For Small Loans
On February 10, 2006, we joined four other payday cash advance service providers in a lawsuit against the New Mexico Attorney
General requesting immediate injunctive relief from the enforcement of the Proposed Rules and Regulations Governing the Extension
of Credit for Small Loans. The Proposed Rules recently promulgated by the Attorney General attempt to severely limit the payday
loan industry in New Mexico. If we are unsuccessful in our attempt to obtain temporary or permanent relief from the Proposed Rules,
we will be unable to operate profitably in New Mexico.
United States Department of Labor Investigations
In 2005, the United States Department of Labor initiated three investigations from its district offices in the field regarding the
payment of overtime wages to certain employees. We have been cooperating with these ongoing investigations that could result in the
payment of back wages, civil monetary penalties and other enforcement action.

ITEM 4.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.

PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.
Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol "AEA." Our common stock was
initially offered to the public on December 15, 2004 at a price of $15.00. The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low
sales prices of our common stock as reported by NYSE since our initial public offering ("IPO"), as well as the quarterly cash dividend
declared per share since our IPO:
Sales Prices
High

2004:
Period ended December 31, 2004
2005:
Quarter ended March 31, 2005
Quarter ended June 30, 2005
Quarter ended September 30, 2005
Quarter ended December 31, 2005
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Cash
Dividend

Low

$

23.74

$

15.00

$

23.94
16.85
17.85
14.17

$

14.20
11.45
12.06
11.58



$

0.09
0.09
0.09
0.11
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At March 8, 2006, there were approximately 200 holders of record of our common stock, and there were approximately 6,500
beneficial holders of the common stock held in nominee or street name.
We are not required to pay any dividends. Any determination to pay dividends, and the amounts of any dividends, will be at the
sole discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on a number of factors, including: our subsidiaries' payment of dividends to
us; our net income, results of operations and cash flows and our other cash needs; our financial position and capital requirements;
general business conditions and the outlook for our company; any legal, tax, regulatory and any other factors our Board of Directors
deems relevant. In addition, our revolving credit facility restricts our ability to pay dividends depending on the absence of any default
or event of default, our net income, the ratio of our consolidated senior funded debt to our consolidated EBITDA and our consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in our revolving credit facility). Our Board of Directors may at any time modify or revoke our
dividend policy.
Prior to our IPO in December 2004, we paid cash dividends to our existing stockholders of approximately all of the income we
earned while we were an S corporation and on which the existing stockholders were taxed. These cash dividends included
approximately $79.8 million and $101.5 million in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We paid no dividends
in 2004 following our IPO.
On February 17, 2006, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.11 per common share, which was paid on
March 10, 2006, to stockholders of record on February 27, 2006.
The following table sets forth information about our stock repurchases for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased(1)

Period(1)

May 1 to May 31
June 1 to June 30
July 1 to July 31
August 1 to August 31
September 1 to September 30
October 1 to October 31
November 1 to November 30
December 1 to December 31
Total

Average Price
Paid per Share(1)

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs(2)

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That
May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or
Programs(2)

50,000
317,200

276,212
375,846
908,375
35,400


$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

12.45
12.02

13.76
12.99
13.28
11.94


50,000
317,200

276,212
375,846
908,375
35,400


$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

49,377,500
45,563,449
45,563,449
41,763,292
36,879,951
24,818,008
24,395,309
24,395,309

1,963,033

$

13.04

1,963,033

$

24,395,309

(1)
Based on trade date.
(2)
On May 4, 2005, we announced a stock repurchase program pursuant to which we were authorized to repurchase up to
$50.0 million of our outstanding common stock.
See "Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters," for
information about our equity compensation plans.

ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following tables set forth our summary consolidated financial information and other financial and statistical data for the
periods ended and as of the dates indicated. The financial information for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, has been derived from our audited financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The
financial
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information for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, and as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 has been derived from our
audited financial statements not included in this report. The historical selected financial information may not be indicative of our
future performance and should be read in conjunction with the information contained in "Item 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the consolidated financial statements and related notes in "Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
Year ended December 31,
2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data
and other financial data)

Consolidated Financial Information
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees

$

307,894
66,666

$

298,432
113,894

$

362,262
127,272

$

430,859
139,329

$

529,953
100,113

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency
bank losses

374,560

412,326

489,534

570,188

630,066

(55,978)

(54,842)

(64,681)

(89,236)

(115,060)

Net revenues

318,582

357,484

424,853

480,952

515,006

97,490
36,369
8,619
17,828
32,520

117,036
43,620
10,416
23,921
35,078

131,369
51,798
11,603
23,857
41,300

160,047
67,305
13,719
26,082
47,087

171,092
80,540
14,902
24,137
52,712

Total center expenses

192,826

230,071

259,927

314,240

343,383

Center gross profit
Corporate and other expenses (income):
General and administrative expenses
Corporate depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Options purchase expense
Lending bank contract termination expense
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of assets
Transaction related expense

125,756

127,413

164,926

166,712

171,623

Center expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses

36,598
2,256
9,796


15,529
(110)
1,632



33,578
2,796

21,462

14,973
(318)
739



36,434
3,433

3,547
6,525
15,983
(86)
990



44,102
3,942



17,165
(161)
814
1,288
2,466

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense(1)

60,055
22,779

54,183
638

98,100
1,925

97,096
14,041

Income before income of consolidated variable
interest entity
Income of consolidated variable interest entity

37,276


53,545


96,175


83,055


Net income

$

37,276

$
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53,545

$

96,175

$

83,055

51,758
4,483



4,331
(351)
715
2,918

107,769
43,776

63,993
(1,003)
$

62,990
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Year Ended December 31,
2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data
and other financial data)

Consolidated Financial Information (continued)
Per Share Data:
Net income per common share
Basic
$
Diluted
$
Cash dividends paid per common share

$

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding:
Basic
Effect of dilutive options and unvested
restricted stock
Diluted

0.47
0.44

$
$

0.78
0.71

$
$

1.40
1.40

$
$

1.20
1.20

$
$

0.76
0.76



$

0.58

$

1.48

$

1.15

$

0.38

79,797

69,042

68,667

69,126

83,124

4,108

5,896

120





83,905

74,938

68,787

69,126

83,124

Pro Forma Data (unaudited)(1):
Historical income before taxes
Pro forma income tax expense(2)
Net income adjusted for pro forma income tax
expense
Pro forma net income per common
sharebasic
Pro forma net income per common
sharediluted
Weighted average pro forma number of shares
outstanding:
Basic
Effect of dilutive options

$

97,096
39,247

$

57,849

$

0.84

$

0.84

69,126


Diluted

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):
Cash and cash equivalents
Advances and fees receivable, net
Goodwill
Total assets
Total debt
Total stockholders' equity
Cash Flow Data:
Cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

69,126

$

18,052
93,715
122,324
293,146
161,842
108,698

$

$

119,207 $
(59,330)
(59,395)
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6,675
116,941
122,324
316,455
184,589
95,007

$

123,787 $
(91,960)
(43,204)

10,484
138,204
122,324
348,043
219,259
91,039

$

163,455 $
(93,329)
(66,317)

18,224
155,009
122,324
397,539
46,637
296,290

$

178,223 $
(111,368)
(59,115)

27,259
193,468
122,586
436,388
44,621
303,025

200,743
(151,241)
(40,467)

Edgar Filing: Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. - Form 10-K
Year Ended December 31,
2001

Consolidated Financial Information (continued)
Other Financial and Statistical Data
Aggregate principal amount of payday cash
advances provided and processed (millions)
Aggregate principal amount of installment loans
provided and processed (millions)
Average amount of payday cash advance
Average amount of installment loan
Average charge to customers for providing and
processing a payday cash advance
Average charge to customers for providing and
processing an installment loan
Centers (at end of period)
Number of payday cash advances provided and
processed (thousands)
Number of installment loans provided and
processed (thousands)
Average duration of a payday cash advance (days)

2002

2003

2004

2005

$

2,556

$

2,744

$

3,271

$

3,804

$

3,944

$


300


$


313


$


321


$


328


$
$
$

35
339
508

$

46

$

51

$

52

$

52

$

55

$

337
2,604


1,558


1,741


2,039


2,408

8,513

8,766

10,179

11,586

11,620


14.2


14.5


15.1


15.4

68
15.8

(1)
Effective October 1, 2001, we filed an election to convert to S corporation status for federal and most state income tax
purposes under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under Subchapter S, our stockholders pay federal and state
income tax on our taxable income. In connection with our initial public offering on December 21, 2004, we revoked our
Subchapter S election and once again became a C corporation taxed under Subchapter C of the Internal Revenue Code. We
have provided unaudited proforma data as if we were a C corporation for the year ended December 31, 2004.
(2)
Pro forma income tax expense shown here has been determined as if we had been a C corporation rather than an
S corporation in 2004. Proforma income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes actual income tax
expense of $3.8 million for subsidiaries that continued to be taxed as C corporations. Proforma income tax expense for 2004
includes income tax expense of $8.4 million due to our conversion to a C corporation on December 21, 2004. The effective
tax rates used are based on the statutory federal income tax rate plus applicable state income taxes (net of federal benefit)
plus the non-deductibility of certain expenses (principally lobbying and meals and entertainment) less income from our
special purpose entity not included in our tax returns.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.
The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and the related notes in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." This discussion contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by
these forward-looking statements. Please see "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and "Forward-Looking Statements" for discussions of the
uncertainties, risks and assumptions associated with these statements.
Overview
Headquartered in Spartanburg, South Carolina, we are the largest provider of payday cash advance services in the United States
as measured by the number of centers operated. Our centers provide, directly or on behalf of a lending bank, small-denomination,
short-term, unsecured cash advances that are typically due on the customers' next payday. As of December 31, 2005, we operated
2,604 centers in 36 states.
Our payday cash advance centers provide, directly or on behalf of a lending bank, small-denomination, short-term, unsecured
cash advances that are typically due on the customers' next payday. In most states we conduct our business under the authority of a
variety of enabling state statutes including payday advance, check-cashing, small loan and credit services organization state laws
(which we refer to as the standard business model). In other states in which we conduct business, we act as a marketing, processing
and servicing agent through our centers for FDIC supervised, state-chartered banks that make payday cash advances and installment
loans to their customers pursuant to the authority of the laws of the states in which they are located and federal interstate banking laws,
regulations and guidelines (which we refer to as the agency business model). In the agency business model, we refer to the banks for
which we act as agent as the lending banks. As of December 31, 2005, we were offering payday cash advances under enabling state
statutes in 2,473 of our 2,604 centers and serving as agent for the lending banks under the agency business model in our 131 centers
located in Arkansas and Pennsylvania.
We have historically derived our revenues from (1) fees and/or interest paid to us directly by our customers under the standard
business model including, beginning in July 2005, in our capacity as a CSO, and (2) marketing, processing and servicing fees paid to
us by the lending banks under the agency business model. We in turn are paid a marketing, processing and servicing fee by the lending
bank. Our total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 consisted of:
2003
Dollars

2004
%

Dollars

2005
%

Dollars

%

(Dollars in millions)

Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees
Total revenues

$

362.3
127.2

74.0
26.0

$

430.9
139.3

75.6
24.4

$

530.0
100.1

84.1
15.9

$

489.5

100.0

$

570.2

100.0

$

630.1

100.0

Our expenses relate primarily to the operation of our centers. These expenses include salaries and related payroll costs, occupancy
expense related to our leased centers, center depreciation expense, advertising expense and other center expenses that consist
principally of costs related to center openings and closings, communications, delivery, supplies, travel, bank charges, various
compliance and collection costs and costs associated with theft.
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Recent Changes in Agency Business Model States
We have modified our operations in several states in response to the FDIC's increased scrutiny of the agency business model. In
late June and early July 2005, we underwent several operational changes in the five states where we previously conducted business
under the agency business model as a result of the Revised Guidance issued by the FDIC in March 2005 to FDIC supervised
institutions that offer payday cash advances, including the lending banks for which we then acted as agent. The Revised Guidance
limits the frequency of customer usage of payday cash advances and the period that a customer may have payday cash advances
outstanding from any lender. In response to the Revised Guidance, lending banks began offering alternative longer-term credit
products, which have generally taken the form of installment loans. These changes affected our operations in Arkansas, Michigan,
North Carolina, Pennsylvania and Texas.
We historically operated in Pennsylvania as a marketing, processing and servicing agent for BankWest, in Arkansas as a
marketing, processing and servicing agent for Venture Bank, a Washington bank ("Venture"), and in North Carolina as a marketing,
processing and servicing agent for Republic Bank & Trust, a Kentucky bank ("Republic"). Effective July 1, 2005, we amended our
MP&S Agreement with BankWest with respect to Pennsylvania, primarily to allow us to also act as a marketing, processing and
servicing agent for a new installment loan product offered by BankWest in our 101 centers in Pennsylvania. On June 30, 2005, we
terminated our MP&S Agreement with Venture and we entered into a new MP&S Agreement with Fidelity to operate as a marketing,
processing and servicing agent for payday cash advances and installment loans made by Fidelity in our 30 centers in Arkansas.
Effective July 6, 2005, we terminated our MP&S Agreement with Republic and entered into a new MP&S Agreement with Fidelity to
operate as a marketing, processing and servicing agent for payday cash advances and installment loans made by Fidelity in our 117
centers in North Carolina.
Pursuant to our MP&S Agreements with Fidelity, Fidelity has been contractually obligated for all losses on payday cash advances
and installment loans to its customers in Arkansas and North Carolina.
Under the terms of the revised MP&S Agreements with BankWest and Fidelity, we have acted as marketing, processing and
servicing agent for payday cash advances and installment loans that were offered by them in Pennsylvania, Arkansas and North
Carolina during the second half of 2005 pursuant to policies and procedures that were adopted by the lending banks in response to the
Revised Guidance. The installment loans generally have bi-weekly payments amortized over a four-month period. Depending on the
lending bank, fees charged to the customer for the installment loan product range from $55 to $65 per $100 advance plus an additional
origination fee of $25 to $30 per transaction. Although the total fee is higher than for a payday cash advance, total revenues are
reduced because of the longer duration of the installment product. The Revised Guidance limits the number of payday cash advances
that may be made and requires more stringent underwriting standards to qualify for an installment loan. Accordingly, our marketing,
processing and servicing fees decreased during the last half of 2005 and are expected to continue to decrease through the first quarter
of 2006 when the installment loan product becomes fully implemented.
We have historically operated in Michigan as marketing, processing and servicing agent for Fidelity. Effective June 26, 2005, we
terminated our MP&S Agreement with Fidelity regarding Michigan. Under the terminated agreement, Fidelity was the lender and
recorded advances and fees receivable on its balance sheet, and Fidelity was contractually obligated for uncollectible accounts in
amounts determined as a percentage of fees and interest charged by Fidelity to its customers. The amount by which losses exceeded
Fidelity's contractual obligation was included on our balance sheet as an accrual for excess bank losses. In connection with terminating
the MP&S Agreement with Fidelity, we purchased from Fidelity its payday cash advance accounts receivable for Michigan for
approximately $7.7 million and Fidelity no longer has any obligations for losses with respect to those accounts.
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In late June 2005, we began offering check-cashing and deferred-presentment services directly to customers in our centers in
Michigan. The approval process for us to provide customers with check-cashing and deferred-presentment services in Michigan is
similar to the process we use to provide payday cash advances under our standard business model. The amount of the fee charged by
us varies based on whether the check cashed is a government check, a payroll check or a personal check, and for a personal check we
charge interest for the period of time that we agree with the customer to hold the check before presenting it to the bank. Customers
also have the opportunity to repurchase the check from us. The profitability of our check-cashing and deferred-presentment business
and average fees, check amounts and duration for which we hold checks is similar to the corresponding amounts under our standard
business model. Following this change in operations, we include our Michigan centers and our check-cashing and
deferred-presentment business under our standard business model.
Because of the recent adoption of a new affirmative payday lending law in Michigan, we expect to begin offering payday cash
advances in Michigan some time in the middle of 2006. Due to the limits on fees and charges included in the initial version of that law,
we expect that our revenues in Michigan will be lower when the law is initially implemented.
Beginning in July 2005, we ceased conducting business under the agency business model in our 208 centers in Texas, and began
conducting business in those centers through a wholly owned subsidiary that has registered as a CSO under Texas law. As a CSO, we
offer a fee-based credit services package to assist customers in trying to improve their credit and in obtaining an extension of
consumer credit through a third-party lender. In connection with commencing operations as a CSO in Texas, we have entered into a
credit services organization agreement ("CSO Agreement") with an unaffiliated third-party lender. The CSO Agreement governs the
terms by which we refer customers in Texas to that lender, on a non-exclusive basis, for a possible extension of credit, process loan
applications, and commit to reimburse the lender for any loans or related fees that are not collected from such customers.
Under the CSO model, the third-party lender determines whether to approve the loan and establishes all of the loan underwriting
criteria. All of the terms, conditions and features of the loan agreements between the lender and the customers are determined by the
lender. The customer writes a personal check payable to the lender in the amount of the loan, including interest for the anticipated
duration of the loan and the credit services fee owed to us, which we hold on behalf of the lender pending repayment of the loan. We
also assist customers by agreeing to reimburse the lender for the full amount of the loan and all related fees that are not collected from
the customers.
When the loan becomes due, the customer returns to the CSO center to repay the loan and we return to the customer his or her
check. If the customer does not return to the CSO center to repay the loan we may then begin collection efforts to obtain from the
customer payment of the loan and any applicable late and non-sufficient funds ("NSF") fees due. If we are unsuccessful in collecting
the payments, we will reimburse the lender, and we then may continue our collection efforts.
Under our prior MP&S Agreement with the lending bank in Texas for payday cash advances, the lending bank was contractually
obligated for uncollectible payday cash advance accounts in amounts determined as a percentage of fees and interest charged by the
lending bank to its customers, which historically have been sufficient to cover all losses incurred. Under the CSO Agreement, we are
contractually obligated for all losses incurred by the lender with respect to loans it makes to customers referred by us. The profitability
of the CSO product is similar to the results historically generated under our standard business model.
Recent Suspensions and Closings
In May 2004, a Georgia law became effective that prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and restricts our ability to
act as marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in
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the state. Accordingly, we suspended operations at our 89 centers in Georgia, three of which we closed in 2004 and the remaining 86
of which we closed in 2005. Our Georgia operations have not generated revenue since we ceased operations there in May 2004. We
recorded an impairment of assets charge in 2004 of approximately $1.3 million to write-off the undepreciated costs of the Georgia
centers, and the lease cancellation and other closing costs were approximately $0.4 million in 2005.
The following is a summary of financial information for our operations in Georgia for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

19,851
11,548

$

Center gross profit/(loss)

$

8,303

$

2005

5,160
8,778

$

(3,618) $


2,594
(2,594)

In August 2004, the North Carolina Attorney General's office, in conjunction with the Commissioner of Banks for North
Carolina, commanded an investigation of the agency business model operations of our centers in North Carolina. In September 2005,
the lending bank for which we marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances and installment loans in our North Carolina
centers suspended its payday cash advance and installment loan originations. On December 22, 2005, the North Carolina
Commissioner of Banks issued an order directing us to cease operations in the state. As a result, we ceased all of our business
activities in North Carolina and closed 117 centers. We estimate that severance, lease cancellation, write-down of the undepreciated
costs for fixed assets and the cost to vacate the premises will be approximately $3.1 million, of which $2.7 million was recorded as of
December 31, 2005.
The following is a summary of financial information for our operations in North Carolina for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

23,628
15,525

$

26,450
15,889

$

17,856
16,118

Center gross profit

$

8,103

$

10,561

$

1,738

On March 1, 2005, the FDIC issued Revised Guidance to FDIC supervised institutions that offer payday cash advances, including
the lending banks for which we then acted as an agent. In February 2006, the FDIC instructed BankWest, the lending bank for which
we market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in Pennsylvania, and Fidelity, the lending bank for which
we market, process and service payday cash advances and installment loans in Arkansas, to discontinue offering payday cash advances
and alternative credit products if they cannot adequately address the FDIC's concerns.
BankWest has elected to cease its payday cash advance and installment loan originations as of the close of business on March 27,
2006. We expect to continue, through August 2006, to service all of BankWest's payday cash advances and installment loans that are
outstanding as of March 27, 2006.
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The following is a summary of financial information for our operations in Pennsylvania for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

35,337
15,217

$

39,421
15,481

$

35,083
16,038

Center gross profit

$

20,120

$

23,940

$

19,045

In addition, Fidelity has decided to discontinue offering installment loans in April 2006 and discontinue offering payday cash
advances in June 2006. We expect to continue, through September 2006, to service all of Fidelity's payday cash advances and
installment loans that are outstanding as of these dates.
The following is a summary of financial information for our operations in Arkansas for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

5,528
3,718

$

6,638
3,741

$

6,073
4,134

Center gross profit

$

1,810

$

2,897

$

1,939

We estimate that our net revenues will be reduced by approximately $2.3 million for each month that we are not able to operate
under the agency business model in Pennsylvania and $0.5 million for each month that we are not able to operate under the agency
business model in Arkansas. Furthermore, center expenses average approximately $1.3 million per month in Pennsylvania and
$0.4 million per month in Arkansas. These expenses will continue to be incurred while we service payday cash advances and
installments loans that are outstanding when the lending banks stop originating additional advances and loans. We estimate that
severance, lease cancellation, write-down of the undepreciated costs of fixed assets and the cost to vacate the premises will
approximate $2.9 million if it becomes necessary to shut down operations in Pennsylvania and $0.7 million if it becomes necessary to
shut down operations in Arkansas. In 2005, we incurred approximately $2.7 million in expenses related to closing our North Carolina
centers. The amount of impairment of goodwill, if any, cannot be determined at this time.
We are studying alternative methods for conducting business in Pennsylvania and Arkansas and we currently do not intend to
close our centers in those states.
New centers
We opened 330, 469 and 361 new centers in the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The capital cost of
opening a new center varies depending on the size and type of center, but typically averages approximately $39,000. This capital cost
includes leasehold improvements, signage, fixtures, furniture, computer equipment and a security system. In addition, the typical
center that has been operating for at least 24 months under the standard business model requires average working capital of
approximately $93,000 to fund the center's payday cash advance portfolio.
For the 1,023 centers opened in 2002, 2003 and 2004, 963 centers remain open as of December 31, 2005. Of these, 809 have
reached the point where, for at least one month, the center generated sufficient revenues to cover the center's expenses exclusive of
corporate overhead (the "Breakeven Point"). The time a center reaches this Breakeven Point is affected by a number of factors
including, but not limited to, the time of the year the center opens, the seasonal nature of the business and the regulatory environment
of the state in which the center is opened. It is not uncommon for a center that
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has reached the Breakeven Point to temporarily drop below that point and then again exceed the Breakeven Point. Given the relatively
fixed nature of most center expenses, the main determinant of the Breakeven Point for a given center is the number of payday cash
advances outstanding.
On average, the 809 centers reached the Breakeven Point between their ninth and twelfth month of operations and had on average
approximately 115 payday cash advances outstanding at that time. Cumulative operating losses to breakeven for these centers
averaged approximately $60,000. We have experienced a general trend of an increase in the time it takes a center to reach the
Breakeven Point and, consequently, an increase in the cumulative operating losses to breakeven.
The remaining 154 centers opened in 2002, 2003 and 2004, 138 of which were opened in 2004, have yet to reach the Breakeven
Point. These centers are on average approximately 18 months old at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2005, a seasonally high
point in payday cash advances outstanding, these centers had on average approximately 90 payday cash advances outstanding.
Approximately 65% of the 361 centers we opened in 2005 were opened in the last half of the year. As a result, we do not have
sufficient data to determine average Breakeven Points for these centers. Our existing data, however, indicates that the ramp up, which
is the general increase in payday cash advances outstanding as a center ages, is slightly better than the ramp up for centers opened in
2004 but is below the ramp up for centers opened prior to 2004.
We will need to generate adequate capital internally or have adequate availability under our revolving credit facility to fund our
growth, primarily the capital cost of the new centers, the working capital required to fund the loan portfolio and the funding of losses
prior to the Breakeven Point. In addition, depending upon when and how many new centers we open during any period, the losses
incurred before a new center breaks even may significantly impact our results of operations.
Closed centers
We closed 32, 14 (including 3 in Georgia) and 251 (including 86 in Georgia and 118 in North Carolina) centers in the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The expenses related to closing centers typically include the undepreciated costs of
fixtures and signage that cannot be moved and reused at another center, moving costs, severance payments and any lease cancellation
costs. We recorded expenses related to center closures of approximately $0.8 million, $0.1 million and $5.1 million in the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Principles of consolidation
Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc., all of our wholly
owned subsidiaries and, prior to its acquisition on December 21, 2004, our one consolidated special purpose entity related to our
corporate headquarters. At December 31, 2005, our consolidated financial statements also include the accounts of a variable interest
entity (the third-party lender's subsidiary related to our CSO operations in Texas) for which we are the primary beneficiary. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Seasonality
Our business is seasonal due to the impact of fluctuating demand for payday cash advances and fluctuating collection rates
throughout the year. Demand has historically been highest in the third and fourth quarters of each year, corresponding to the
back-to-school and holiday seasons, and lowest in the first quarter of each year, corresponding to our customers' receipt of income tax
refunds. Our provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses, allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank
losses are historically lowest as a percentage of revenues in the first quarter of each year,
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corresponding to customers' receipt of income tax refunds, and increase as a percentage of revenues for the remainder of each year.
The growth of the payday cash advance industry has been and continues to be significantly affected by increasing acceptance of
payday cash advances by state legislatures. However, to the extent that states enact legislation that negatively impacts payday cash
advances, whether through preclusions, interest rate ceilings, fee reductions, mandatory extensions of term length, limits on the
amount or term of payday cash advances or limits on consumers' use of the service, our business could be materially adversely
affected. We are very active in monitoring and evaluating regulatory initiatives in all of the states and are closely involved with the
efforts of the CFSA.
Prior S Corporation Status
From October 1, 2001 through December 20, 2004, Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. ("AACACI") and
substantially all of its subsidiaries (the "Subchapter S Companies") were treated for federal and most state income tax purposes as an S
corporation under the Internal Revenue Code and comparable state laws. As a result, the Subchapter S Companies' earnings were taxed
for federal and most state income tax purposes directly to AACACI's stockholders rather than to the Subchapter S Companies. On
December 21, 2004, the Subchapter S Companies terminated their status as S corporations and are now taxed as C corporations. As a
result of the termination of the Subchapter S Companies' S corporation status, we recorded a net deferred tax liability and
corresponding income tax expense on the termination date of $8.4 million.
Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
In the ordinary course of business, we have made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of our results of
operations and financial condition in the preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States ("GAAP"). We evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis and we base these estimates on the
information currently available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results could vary from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant estimates and assumptions used in the
preparation of our financial statements:
Provision for Doubtful Accounts and Agency Bank Losses, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Accrual for Excess
Bank Losses
We believe the most significant estimates made in the preparation of our accompanying consolidated financial statements relate
to the determination of:

an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated probable losses for payday cash advances under the standard
business model, and

the amount we accrue for probable excess bank losses for our share of the losses on payday cash advances and
installment loans we market, process and service for the lending banks under the agency business model.
The allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses are primarily based upon models that analyze specific
portfolio statistics and also reflect, to a lesser extent, management's judgment regarding overall accuracy. The analytical models take
into account several factors including the number of transactions customers complete and charge-off and recovery rates. Additional
factors such as changes in state laws, center closings, length of time centers have been open in a state, relative mix of new centers
within a state and other relevant factors are also evaluated to determine whether the results from the analytical models should be
revised.
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For those states where we operate under the standard business model, this estimate of probable losses on receivables is recorded
as a reduction of advances and receivables, net on our balance sheet.
Historically, the lending banks have been contractually obligated for a portion of the payday cash advance and installment loan
losses. Those obligations, denominated as a percent of fees and interest, have typically ranged between 8% and 20%. Under our
MP&S Agreement with the lending bank in Pennsylvania, the lending bank continues to be contractually obligated for loan losses up
to 8.5% of fees and interest. Subsequent to July 2005, under our MP&S Agreements with the lending bank in Arkansas and North
Carolina, the lending bank has been contractually obligated for all loan losses.
For those states in which we have operated as a marketing, processing and servicing agent, the estimate of probable losses is
reduced by the lending bank's contractual obligation, as described above, to arrive at an estimate of excess loan losses. This is recorded
as an accrual for excess loan losses, a current liability on our balance sheet. Since they are payable solely to the lending banks, the
outstanding receivables in these states are not reflected on our balance sheet.
The portion of payday cash advances, installment loans and fees deemed to be uncollectible is charged against the allowance for
doubtful accounts or the accrual for excess bank losses, as appropriate, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance
for doubtful accounts or the accrual for excess bank losses, as appropriate.
Charge-offs include (1) the unpaid portion of checks deposited and subsequently returned due to non-sufficient funds in the
customers' accounts or other reasons and (2) unpaid loans of customers who file for bankruptcy. Under the standard business model,
unpaid payday cash advances and the related fees and/or interest are generally charged off if a customer does not make a payment of at
least 15% of his or her outstanding balance within 60 days of the date the check was returned by the customer's bank for non-sufficient
funds or other reasons. Under the agency business model, unpaid payday cash advances and the related fees and/or interest generally
have been charged off 60 days from the due date. Under the agency business model, unpaid installment loans and the related fees
and/or interest generally have been charged off 60 days from the deposit date if the check is returned by the customer's bank for
non-sufficient funds or other reasons. Unpaid payday cash advances of customers who file for bankruptcy are charged off upon receipt
of the bankruptcy notice. Although management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the
allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from our
assumptions used in assessing their adequacy.
To the extent historical credit experience is not indicative of future performance or other assumptions used by management do not
prevail, our loss experience could differ significantly, resulting in either higher or lower future provisions for doubtful accounts and
agency bank losses. As of December 31, 2005, if average default rates were 5% higher or lower, the allowance for doubtful accounts
and accrual for excess bank losses would change by approximately $2.3 million.
Intangible Assets
As a result of our acquisition of the National Cash Advance group of affiliated companies in October 1999, we recorded
approximately $143.0 million of goodwill. Due to the significance of goodwill and the reduction of net income that would occur if
goodwill were impaired, we assess the impairment of our long-lived and intangible assets annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors considered important that could trigger an impairment
review include significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future cash flows, significant changes in the manner of
use of the acquired assets or the strategy of the overall business and significant negative industry trends. To identify potential
impairment, we compare the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting
unit does not exceed its carrying amount, we measure the amount of
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impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The
amount of any impairment would lower our net income.
Accrued Healthcare and Workers' Compensation Expenses
Accrued liabilities in our December 31, 2004 and 2005 financial statements include accruals of approximately $3.4 million at the
end of both periods, for the self-insured portion of our health and dental insurance and approximately $3.5 million and $4.1 million,
respectively, for workers' compensation. We recognize our obligations associated with those benefits in the period the claim is
incurred. The costs of both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported, up to specified deductible limits, are estimated based
on historical data, current enrollment, employee statistics and other information. Our estimates and the resulting reserves are reviewed
and updated periodically and any necessary adjustments are reflected in earnings currently. To the extent historical claims are not
indicative of future claims, there are changes in enrollment or employee history, workers' compensation loss development factors
change or other assumptions used by management do not prevail, our expense and related accrued liabilities could increase or
decrease.
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entity
In connection with our CSO operations in Texas, we entered into an agreement with an unaffiliated third-party lender. We have
determined that the third-party lender's subsidiary is a variable interest entity ("VIE") under Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 46 (Revised) ("FIN 46R"). We have neither an equity interest nor voting rights in the lender's subsidiary and have
no input into the management of the lender's subsidiary. However, we determined that we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE
because we have committed to reimburse the lender for the full amounts of the loans and all related fees that are not paid by the
customers. As a result, we have consolidated the lender's subsidiary as of December 31, 2005. See "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary DataNote 16. Transactions with Variable Interest Entity" for the impact of adopting FIN 46R on our results of
operations and financial condition.
Accounting for Share-Based Employee Compensation
In 2004, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123(R)").
Accordingly, we measure the cost of our share-based employee compensation at the grant date based on fair value and recognize such
cost in the financial statements over each award's requisite service period. As of December 31, 2005, the total compensation cost not
yet recognized related to nonvested stock awards under our share-based employee compensation plans is approximately $10.5 million.
The weighted average period over which this expense is expected to be recognized is approximately 6.5 years. See "Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary DataNote 11. Stock-Based Compensation Plans" for a description of our restricted stock and stock
option awards and the assumptions used to calculate the fair value of such awards including the expected volatility assumed in valuing
our stock option grants.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005
The following tables set forth our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2005:
Year Ended December 31,
2004

2005
Variance

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

%

(Dollars in thousands, except center information)

Revenues:
Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees

$

430,859
139,329

89.6% $
29.0%

529,953
100,113

102.9% $
19.4%

99,094
(39,216)

23.0%
(28.1)%

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency
bank losses

570,188

118.6%

630,066

122.3%

59,878

10.5%

(89,236)

(18.6)%

(115,060)

(22.3)%

25,824

28.9%

Net revenues
Center Expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses

480,952

100.0%

515,006

100.0%

34,054

7.1%

160,047
67,305
13,719
26,082
47,087

33.3%
14.0%
2.9%
5.4%
9.8%

171,092
80,540
14,902
24,137
52,712

33.2%
15.6%
2.9%
4.7%
10.2%

11,045
13,235
1,183
(1,945)
5,625

6.9%
19.7%
8.6%
(7.5)%
11.9%

314,240

65.4%

343,383

66.6%

29,143

9.3%

166,712

34.6%

171,623

33.4%

4,911

2.9%

Total center expenses
Center gross profit
Corporate and Other Expenses (Income):
General and administrative expenses
Corporate depreciation expense
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of assets
Transaction related expense

44,102
3,942
17,165
(161)
814
1,288
2,466

9.2%
0.8%
3.5%

0.2%
0.2%
0.5%

51,758
4,483
4,331
(351)
715
2,918


10.0%
0.9%
0.9%

0.1%
0.6%


7,656
541
(12,834)
(190)
(99)
1,630
(2,466)

17.4%
13.7%
(74.8)%
(118.0)%
(12.2)%
126.6%
(100.0)%

69,616

14.4%

63,854

12.5%

(5,762)

(8.3)%

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

97,096
14,041

20.2%
2.9%

107,769
43,776

20.9%
8.5%

10,673
29,735

11.0%
211.8%

Income before income of consolidated variable
interest entity
Income of consolidated variable interest entity

83,055


17.3%


63,993
(1,003)

12.4%
(0.2)%

(19,062)
(1,003)

(23.0)%
(100.0)%

83,055

17.3% $

62,990

12.2% $

(20,065)

(24.2)%

Total corporate and other expenses

Net income

$
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Year Ended December 31,
2004

2005

Center Information:
Number of centers open at beginning of period
Opened
Acquired
Closed (excluding Georgia)
Suspended (Georgia)

2,039
469

(11)
(89)

2,408
358
3
(165)


Number of centers open at end of period

2,408

2,604

2,194
11,586
328



2,487
11,620
339
68
508

Weighted average number of centers open during the period
Number of payday cash advances provided and processed (in thousands)
Average amount of payday cash advance provided and processed
Number of installment loans provided and processed (in thousands)
Average amount of installment loan provided and processed

$

$
$

Year Ended December 31,
2004

2005
Variance

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

%

(Dollars in thousands)

Per Center (based on weighted average number of
centers open during the period):
Center net revenues
Center expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses

$

Total center expenses
Center gross profit

$

219.2

100.0% $

207.1

100.0% $

(12.1)

(5.5)%

72.9
30.7
6.3
11.9
21.5

33.3%
14.0%
2.9%
5.4%
9.8%

68.8
32.4
6.0
9.7
21.2

33.2%
15.6%
2.9%
4.7%
10.2%

(4.1)
1.7
(0.3)
(2.2)
(0.3)

(5.6)%
5.5%
(4.8)%
(18.5)%
(1.4)%

143.3

65.4%

138.1

66.6%

(5.2)

(3.6)%

33.4% $

(6.9)

(9.1)%

75.9

34.6% $

69.0

Revenue Analysis
The increase in total revenues during 2005 was primarily due to the opening of new centers and the full year impact of the 469
centers opened in 2004. Total revenues increased approximately $59.9 million in 2005. Total revenues for the 1,801 centers opened
prior to January 1, 2004 and still open as of December 31, 2005 increased $29.1 million from $512.7 million in 2004 to $541.8 million
in 2005. Total revenues for the 803 centers opened after January 1, 2004 and still open as of December 31, 2005 increased
$49.2 million from $12.7 million in 2004 to $61.9 million in 2005.
Total revenues for the 265 centers closed in 2004 and 2005 represented a decrease of approximately $18.4 million for 2005
compared to 2004. This decrease includes approximately $7.2 million from our 89 Georgia centers for which operations were
suspended in May 2004 and then subsequently permanently closed.
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In addition to the closed centers mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the increase in total revenues in 2005 was partially offset
by:

the suspension and subsequent closure of operations in North Carolina during the fourth quarter of 2005. Total
revenues in North Carolina decreased approximately $8.9 million from $31.1 million in 2004 to $22.2 million in
2005;

the implementation of the FDIC's Revised Guidance in Pennsylvania and Arkansas, beginning during the third
quarter. The installment loan as offered by the two lending banks generates approximately 50% of the revenue
generated by a payday cash advance outstanding for the same period. During the fourth quarter, the ratio of
installment loans to payday cash advances increased, impacting revenues even more significantly. Total revenues
for the fourth quarter of 2005 in Pennsylvania and Arkansas were approximately $5.4 million less than the fourth
quarter of 2004; and

the total revenues lost during the fourth quarter of 2005 in the centers negatively impacted by Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita were approximately $3.0 million.
As a percentage of total revenues, the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses increased to 18.3% in 2005 from
15.7% in 2004. The increase in the provision is due primarily to increased loss rates. In addition to a general increase in loss rates, the
provision was impacted by the following:

a charge of approximately $4.2 million related to the contractual changes in Texas, Michigan, North Carolina and
Arkansas;

an increase in bankruptcy filings primarily during the fourth quarter as a result of the implementation of the
amendments to the federal bankruptcy laws;

the conversion to the lending banks' installment loan product resulting in higher than normal denial rates on the
lending banks' customers who had exceeded their 90-day limit of payday cash advances. This, coupled with the
lower revenue generated by the lending bank's installment loan product, resulted in an increase in losses as a
percent of total revenues. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the losses as a percent of total revenues increased
approximately 50% in Pennsylvania; and

the increase in the provision was partially offset by the sale of certain customer debt originated between September
2003 and September 2004. The proceeds from the sale of debt were approximately $3.7 million and were recorded
as a reduction in the provision.
As a result of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita during the last half of 2005, we incurred property and equipment losses and the
interruption of our business at certain centers. Accordingly, we recorded a receivable for insurance recoveries as of December 31,
2005 of $1.0 million, which is included as an other receivable in advances and fees receivable, net. Of this amount, approximately $0.8
million was recorded as a reduction of the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses.
The provision in 2004 included an expense of approximately $1.3 million related to the expected losses in connection with the
suspension of operations at our 89 Georgia centers.
Center Expense Analysis
Salaries and related payroll costs. The increase in salaries and related payroll costs in 2005 was due primarily to the addition of
361 new centers in 2005 and the full year impact in 2005 of the 469 centers opened in 2004. Salaries and related payroll costs per
center decreased in 2005 due primarily to lower bonus and health insurance expenses. We averaged approximately 2.14 and 2.24
full-time equivalent field employees, including district directors, per center during 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Occupancy costs, center depreciation expense and other center expenses. The increases in occupancy costs, center depreciation
expense and other center expenses in 2005 were due primarily to the addition of new centers in 2005 and the full year impact in 2005
of centers opened in 2004.
Advertising expense. Advertising expense decreased in 2005 due primarily to a decision to conduct less advertising in Texas
and the agency business model states during the fourth quarter of 2005.
Corporate and Other Expense (Income) Analysis
General and administrative expenses.

The increase in general and administrative expenses in 2005 was due primarily to:


higher legal fees of approximately $3.0 million primarily related to ongoing legal issues in North Carolina and
various other cases as well as costs to develop the new installment loan and CSO products;

higher expenses of approximately $2.2 million related to SEC reporting and compliance as a result of becoming a
public company;

an increase in stock-based compensation expense of approximately $1.2 million;

higher insurance expense of approximately $1.0 million, primarily directors and officers insurance as a result of
becoming a public company; and

expenses incurred to support the growth in the number of centers, offset by a decrease in airplane operating
expenses.
Interest expense. The decrease in interest expense is due to the repayment in the fourth quarter of 2004 of all long-term debt
with related parties and the reduction of advances under our revolving credit facility.
Income tax expense. The increase in 2005 income tax expense compared to 2004 is primarily due to our conversion to a C
corporation for tax purposes.
Loss on impairment of assets. Loss on impairment of assets in 2004 represents the write-down of the undepreciated costs of our
Georgia centers for which we suspended operations in May 2004 and subsequently permanently closed in the third quarter 2005. The
loss on impairment of assets in 2005 represents a write-down of approximately $1.5 million to market value of an aircraft we sold in
October 2005, a write-down of approximately $0.4 million of the undepreciated costs of certain fixed assets in our centers identified
for closure, as well as the write-down of approximately $1.0 million of the undepreciated costs of our 117 centers in North Carolina
which we closed at the end of 2005.
Transaction related expense.

Transaction related expense in 2004 represents the cost associated with our initial public offering.
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Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004
The following tables set forth our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004:
Year Ended December 31,
2003

2004
Variance

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

%

(Dollars in thousands, except center information)

Revenues:
Fees and interest charged to customers
Processing, marketing and servicing fees

$

362,262
127,272

85.3% $
29.9%

430,859
139,329

89.6% $
29.0%

68,597
12,057

18.9%
9.5%

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency
bank losses

489,534

115.2%

570,188

118.6%

80,654

16.5%

(64,681)

(15.2)%

(89,236)

(18.6)%

24,555

38.0%

Net revenues
Center Expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses

424,853

100.0%

480,952

100.0%

56,099

13.2%

131,369
51,798
11,603
23,857
41,300

30.9%
12.2%
2.7%
5.6%
9.7%

160,047
67,305
13,719
26,082
47,087

33.3%
14.0%
2.9%
5.4%
9.8%

28,678
15,507
2,116
2,225
5,787

21.8%
29.9%
18.2%
9.3%
14.0%

259,927

61.1%

314,240

65.4%

54,313

20.9%

164,926

38.9%

166,712

34.6%

1,786

1.1%

Total center expenses
Center gross profit
Corporate and Other Expenses (Income):
General and administrative expenses
Corporate depreciation expense
Options purchase expense
Lending bank contract termination expense
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of assets
Transaction related expense
Total corporate and other expenses
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

$

36,434
3,433
3,547
6,525
15,983
(86)
990



8.6%
0.8%
0.9%
1.5%
3.8%

0.2%



44,102
3,942


17,165
(161)
814
1,288
2,466

9.2%
0.8%


3.5%

0.2%
0.2%
0.5%

7,668
509
(3,547)
(6,525)
1,182
(75)
(176)
1,288
2,466

66,826

15.8%

69,616

14.4%

2,790

98,100
1,925

23.1%
0.5%

97,096
14,041

20.2%
2.9%

(1,004)
12,116

(1.0)%
629.4%

96,175

22.6% $

83,055

17.3% $

(13,120)

(13.6)%
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Year Ended December 31,
2003

2004

Center Information:
Number of centers open at beginning of period
Opened
Closed (excluding Georgia)
Suspended (Georgia)

1,741
330
(32)


2,039
469
(11)
(89)

Number of centers open at end of period

2,039

2,408

1,817
10,179
321

2,194
11,586
328

Weighted average number of centers open during the period
Number of payday cash advances provided and processed (in thousands)
Average amount of payday cash advance provided and processed

$

$

Year Ended December 31,
2003

2004
Variance

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

% Net
Revenues

Dollars

%

(Dollars in thousands)

Per Center (based on weighted average number of
centers open during the period):
Center net revenues
Center expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses

$

Total center expenses
Center gross profit

$

233.8

100.0% $

219.2

100.0% $

(14.6)

(6.2)%

72.3
28.5
6.4
13.1
22.7

30.9%
12.2%
2.7%
5.6%
9.7%

72.9
30.7
6.3
11.9
21.5

33.3%
14.0%
2.9%
5.4%
9.8%

0.6
2.2
(0.1)
(1.2)
(1.2)

0.8%
7.7%
(1.6)%
(9.2)%
(5.3)%

143.0

61.1%

143.3

65.4%

0.3

0.2%

(14.9)

(16.4)%

90.8

38.9% $

75.9

34.6% $

Revenue Analysis
The increase in total revenues during 2004 was primarily due to the opening of new centers and the full year impact of the 330
centers opened in 2003.
Total revenues for the 1,486 centers opened prior to December 31, 2001 increased $18.3 million, or 4.1%, from $443.8 million in
2003 to $462.1 million in 2004. Total revenues for the 1,022 centers opened after December 31, 2001 increased $62.4 million from
$45.7 million in 2003 to $108.1 million in 2004. Total revenues in 2004 were negatively impacted by the loss of revenues from our 89
Georgia centers for which operations were suspended in May 2004. Georgia total revenues in 2004 were approximately $7.2 million
compared to approximately $23.5 million in 2003.
As a percentage of total revenues, the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses increased to 15.7% in 2004 from
13.2% in 2003. The increase in the provision is due primarily to increased loss rates, the implementation of statewide databases in two
states and the imposition of cooling-off periods in six states. The provision in 2004 also included an expense of approximately
$1.3 million related to the expected losses related to the suspension of operations at our 89 Georgia centers.
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Center Expense Analysis
Salaries and related payroll costs. This increase in salaries and related payroll costs in 2004 was due primarily to the addition
of 469 new centers in 2004 and the full year impact in 2004 of the 330 centers opened in 2003. We averaged approximately 2.1 and
2.2 full-time equivalent field employees (excluding our Georgia centers), including district directors, per center during 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
Occupancy costs, center depreciation expense and other center expenses. The increases in occupancy costs, center depreciation
expense and other center expenses in 2004 were due primarily to the addition of new centers in 2004 and the full year impact in 2004
of centers opened in 2003.
Advertising expense. Advertising expense increased due to the number of new centers opened in 2004 compared to 2003 and
the increased spending to support the increase in revenue.
Corporate and Other Expense (Income) Analysis
General and administrative expenses.

The increase in general and administrative expenses in 2004 was due primarily to:


an increase of approximately $1.4 million related to the addition of two new zone executives and six regional
directors of operations to support the increase in the number of centers;

an increase of approximately $1.0 million related to the addition of professional positions in our real estate
department;

higher legal fees of approximately $1.3 million;

an increase of approximately $0.9 million in our aviation department expenses primarily related to the addition of
a third plane (the lease for which was terminated effective September 1, 2004);

an increase of approximately $1.1 million related to additional staff and higher expense for third-party consultants,
political contributions and trade association dues in our public and government relations department; and

higher expenses incurred to support the growth in the number of centers.
Options purchase expense. Options purchase expense in 2003 represents the cost to purchase all remaining options outstanding
under our former stock option plan.
Lending bank contract termination expense. The 2003 expense was due to a payment in 2003 to Peoples National Bank, a
former agency business model lending bank, to terminate two contracts that required us to market, process and service payday cash
advances on behalf of the bank in Pennsylvania and North Carolina.
Interest expense. The increase in interest expense is due primarily to borrowing $50.0 million on our revolving credit facility in
July 2004 to pay a special $50.0 million dividend.
Income tax expense.
purposes.

The increase in income tax expense in 2004 is primarily due to our conversion to a C corporation for tax

Loss on impairment of assets. Loss on impairment of assets in 2004 represents the write-down of the undepreciated costs of our
Georgia centers for which we suspended operations in May 2004.
Transaction related expense.

Transaction related expense in 2004 represents the cost associated with our initial public offering.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table presents a summary of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005:
2004 vs 2003
Variance
2003

Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

$

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period

$

2004

2005

Dollars

2005 vs 2004
Variance
%

%

163,455 $
(93,329)
(66,317)

178,223 $
(111,368)
(59,115)

200,743 $
(151,241)
(40,467)

14,768
(18,039)
7,202

3,809

7,740

9,035

3,931

103.2%

1,295

16.7%

6,675

10,484

18,224

3,809

57.1%

7,740

73.8%

18,224 $

27,259 $

7,740

73.8% $

9,035

49.6%

10,484 $

9.0% $
(19.3)%
10.9%

Dollars

22,520 12.6%
(39,873) (35.8)%
(18,648) 31.5%

Our principal sources of cash are from operations and from borrowings under our revolving credit facility. We anticipate that our
primary uses of cash will be to provide working capital, finance capital expenditures, meet debt service requirements, fund payday
cash advances under the standard business model, finance center growth, pay dividends on our common stock and repurchase shares of
our currently outstanding stock.
We borrow under our $265.0 million revolving credit facility to fund our payday cash advances and other liquidity needs. Our
day-to-day balances under our revolving credit facility, as well as our cash balances, vary because of seasonal and day-to-day
requirements resulting from making and collecting payday cash advances. For example, if a month ends on a Friday (a typical
payday), our borrowings and our cash balances will be high compared to a month that does not end on a Friday. This is because a
substantial portion of the payday cash advances will be repaid in cash on that day but sufficient time will not yet have passed for the
cash to reduce the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Our borrowings under our revolving credit facility will
also increase as the demand for cash advances increases during our peak periods such as the back-to-school and holiday seasons.
Conversely, our borrowings typically decrease during the tax refund season when cash receipts from customers peak or the customer
demand for new payday cash advances decreases.
On May 4, 2005, we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a program authorizing the repurchase of up to
$50.0 million of our currently outstanding common stock. Our Board of Directors determined that the stock repurchase program
served the best interest of us and our stockholders by returning capital to our stockholders, by providing an attractive investment
opportunity for our funds, and by reducing the dilutive impact of employee stock incentive programs and potential acquisitions.
Share repurchases will continue to be made from time to time and will be effected on the open market, in block trades, or in
privately negotiated transactions, and in compliance with applicable laws, including Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 10b-18 and Regulation M. The program does not generally require us to purchase any specific number of shares, and any
purchases under the program depend on market and other conditions. Our Board of Directors may suspend or cancel the stock
repurchase program at any time.
During the year ended December 31, 2005, we repurchased 1,963,033 shares of our common stock at a cost of approximately
$25.7 million.
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Although our revolving credit facility places restrictions on our capital expenditures and acquisitions, we believe that these
restrictions do not prohibit us from pursuing our growth strategy as currently planned. Cash that is restricted due to certain states'
regulatory liquidity requirements is not included in cash and cash equivalents. Instead, the restricted cash is shown on our consolidated
balance sheet as a non-current asset under the line item "Restricted cash."
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
The increase in net cash provided by operating activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was due primarily to a $25.8 million increase
in the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses. The net increase from all other non-cash adjustments and changes in
operating assets and liabilities was approximately $16.8 million, and was offset by a $20.1 million decrease in net income.
The increase in net cash provided by operating activities in 2004 compared to 2003 was due primarily to a $24.6 million increase
in the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses and a $7.8 million increase in deferred income taxes resulting primarily
from our conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation for income tax purposes. The net decrease from all other non-cash
adjustments and changes in operating assets and liabilities was approximately $4.5 million, and was offset by a $13.1 million decrease
in net income.
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
The increase in net cash used in investing activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily due to a $53.8 million increase in
cash invested in advances and fees receivable, net, a $9.5 million decrease in purchases of property and equipment, related principally
to opening new and remodeling existing centers and purchases of computer hardware and software and a $6.8 million increase in
proceeds from the sale of property and equipment, related principally to the sale of one of our aircraft in the fourth quarter 2005.
The increase in net cash used in investing activities in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily due to a $16.2 million increase in
cash invested in advances and fees receivable, net and a $7.0 million increase in purchases of property and equipment, related
principally to opening new and remodeling existing centers and purchases of computer hardware and software.
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
The decrease in net cash used in financing activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily due to a $48.2 million decrease in
dividends paid to stockholders, a $171.4 million reduction in payments on our revolving credit facility and debt with related parties
and a $20.0 million increase in the non-controlling interest of the variable interest entity. These changes are partially offset by a
$195.1 million reduction in net proceeds from issuance of our common stock and a $25.7 million increase in the purchase of treasury
stock.
The decrease in net cash used in financing activities in 2004 compared to 2003 was due primarily to a $21.7 million decrease in
dividends paid to stockholders and net proceeds of approximately $194.9 million from our issuance of common stock, offset by higher
payments on our revolving credit facility and debt with related parties of approximately $208.4 million.
Capital Expenditures
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, we spent $21.4 million, $28.4 million and $18.9 million, respectively,
on capital expenditures. Capital expenditures included expenditures (1) for the 330, 469 and 361 new centers opened during 2003,
2004 and 2005, respectively, (2) center remodels and (3) computer equipment replacements in our centers and at our corporate
headquarters.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements with the Lending Banks
On December 31, 2005, we operated as marketing, processing and servicing agent for payday cash advances and installment
loans offered, made and funded by FDIC supervised, state-chartered banks through 131 of our centers located in two states. Prior to
July 2005, we operated as an agent for lending banks in five states. We were the marketing, processing and servicing agent for payday
cash advances offered, made and funded by Venture in Arkansas, Republic in North Carolina and Texas, and BankWest in
Pennsylvania. Under our prior MP&S Agreements with these lending banks, the lending banks were contractually obligated for the
losses on their payday cash advances in an amount established as a percentage of the fees and interest charged by the lending banks to
their customers. Therefore, under our prior MP&S Agreements, our marketing, processing and servicing fee increased by the lending
bank's contractual obligation for losses. If actual payday cash advance losses by the lending bank exceeded the percentage specified in
its MP&S Agreement with us, we were potentially obligated to pay the lending bank the outstanding amount of the advances and loans
plus the lending bank's fees and/or interest receivable on the advances, less the lending bank's contractually obligated portion of the
losses.
Prior to June 26, 2005, we were also the marketing, processing and servicing agent for Fidelity in Michigan. Effective June 26,
2005, however, we terminated our MP&S Agreement with Fidelity relating to Michigan and began to offer check-cashing and
deferred-presentment services directly to our customers in Michigan. As a result, we no longer accrue any amounts for excess bank
losses relating to our operations in Michigan, however, we still accrue amounts for doubtful accounts for these operations. On June 30,
2005, we terminated our MP&S Agreement with Venture relating to Arkansas and entered into a new MP&S Agreement with Fidelity
relating to Arkansas. Pursuant to this replacement MP&S Agreement with Fidelity, we are no longer contractually obligated for any
losses on payday cash advances and installment loans made in Arkansas, and as a result we no longer accrue any amounts for excess
bank losses relating to our operations in Arkansas. Effective July 6, 2005, we terminated our MP&S Agreement with Republic relating
to North Carolina and entered into a new MP&S Agreement with Fidelity relating to North Carolina. Pursuant to this replacement
MP&S Agreement with Fidelity, we were no longer contractually obligated for any losses on payday cash advances and installment
loans made in North Carolina, and as a result we no longer accrue any amounts for excess bank losses relating to our operations in
North Carolina.
Beginning in July 2005, we ceased conducting business under the agency business model in our 208 centers in Texas and began
conducting business in those centers as a CSO. Under our prior MP&S Agreement with the lending bank in Texas for payday cash
advances made under the agency business model, the lending bank was contractually obligated for uncollectible payday cash advance
accounts in amounts determined as a percentage of fees and interest charged by the lending bank to its customers, which historically
have been sufficient to cover all losses incurred. Under the CSO Agreement with the unaffiliated third-party lender in Texas, we are
contractually obligated for all losses incurred by the lender with respect to loans it makes to its customers that are referred by us.
Approximately 24.4% and 15.9% of our total revenues and 22.6% and 15.8% of our total center gross profit, in the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively, was derived from marketing, processing and servicing fees paid to us by the lending
banks.
Although we market, process and service payday cash advances and, as of July 2005, installment loans offered, made and funded
by the lending banks under the agency business model in Pennsylvania, North Carolina (prior to closing our North Carolina centers on
December 22, 2005) and Arkansas, each lending bank is responsible for evaluating each of its customers' applications and determining
whether the payday cash advance and/or installment loan is approved. The lending banks for which we act as agent, utilize an
automated third-party credit scoring system to evaluate and approve each customer application. We are not involved in the lending
banks' payday cash advance or installment
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loan approval process, we are not involved in determining the approval procedures or criteria of the lending banks and, in the normal
course of business, we do not fund or acquire any payday cash advances or installment loans from the lending banks. The payday cash
advances and installment loans are repayable solely to the lending banks and are assets of the lending banks. Consequently, the lending
banks' payday cash advances and installment loans are not included in our payday cash advance and installment loan portfolios nor are
they reflected on our balance sheet within our advances and fees receivable, net. Under our MP&S Agreements with lending banks
that were offering payday cash advances in Michigan, Texas, North Carolina and Arkansas prior to July 2005, the lending banks were
contractually obligated for the losses on payday cash advances in an amount established as a percentage of the fees and/or interest
charged by the banks to their customers. This continues to be the case under our amended MP&S Agreement with BankWest with
respect to Pennsylvania, but not under our MP&S Agreements with Fidelity with respect to North Carolina and Arkansas, pursuant to
which Fidelity is responsible for any and all losses on payday cash advances and installment loans. If the amount of uncollected
payday cash advances and installment loans exceeds BankWest's contractual obligation, we could be obligated to pay the lending bank
the outstanding amount of the advances or installment loan plus its fees and/or interest receivable, less its contractually obligated
portion of the losses. As of December 31, 2005, our aggregate contingent liability to BankWest with respect to Pennsylvania amounted
to $17.0 million, which was not included on our balance sheet. We could also be obligated to pay this amount to the lending bank if, as
a result of a change in law, regulation or otherwise, the lending bank's payday cash advances and installment loans were to become
uncollectible.
Because of our economic exposure for excess bank losses related to the lending banks' payday cash advances and installment
loans, we have established an accrual for excess bank losses, to reflect our probable losses related to uncollected lending bank payday
cash advances and installment loans. The accrual for excess bank losses that was reported in our balance sheet was $3.2 million and
$1.4 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The accrual for excess bank losses has been established on a basis
similar to the allowance for doubtful accounts for the standard business model payday cash advances. If BankWest's payday cash
advance and installment loans losses are materially greater than our accrual for excess bank losses, our business, results of operations
and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.
Certain Contractual Cash Commitments
Our principal future contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2005, including periodic interest payments,
included the following (dollars in thousands)
Payment due by period

Contractual Cash Obligations

Long-term debt obligations:
Revolving credit facility
Mortgage payable
Note payable
Operating lease obligations(1)
Purchase obligations
Total

Total

2007 and
2008

2006

2009 and
2010

2011 and
thereafter

$

37,933
9,161
554
124,002
1,864

$


797
174
53,644
1,864

$


1,594
276
59,325


$

37,933
1,594
104
10,699


$


5,176

334


$

173,514

$

56,479

$

61,195

$

50,330

$

5,510

(1)
Includes leases for aircraft hangar space, centers, security equipment and fax equipment.
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Long-Term Debt Obligations
Revolving Credit Facility. On July 16, 2004, we entered into an amendment and restatement of our prior credit facility with a
syndicate of banks. As amended and restated, our revolving credit facility provides us with a $265.0 million revolving line of credit,
which amount includes the ability to issue up to $20.0 million in letters of credit. Our revolving credit facility matures on July 16,
2009. We have the option to (i) increase our revolving credit facility by an additional $10.0 million and (ii) extend its maturity date to
July 16, 2010, in each case upon our satisfaction of certain covenants and conditions. Any portion of our revolving credit facility that
is repaid may be borrowed again. In May 2005, we amended our revolving credit facility to allow the repurchase of up to $50.0 million
of our outstanding common stock. In June 2005, we further amended our revolving credit facility to permit us to operate as a CSO in
Texas.
As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $37.9 million outstanding on the revolving portion of our credit facility and
approximately $14.6 million of letters of credit outstanding, leaving approximately $212.5 million available for future borrowings
under our credit facility.
In general, our borrowings under our revolving credit facility bear interest, at our option, at either a base rate plus an applicable
margin or a LIBOR-based rate plus an applicable margin. The base rate equals the greater of (i) the prime rate announced by Bank of
America, the administrative agent under the revolving credit facility, and (ii) the sum of the federal funds rate plus 0.50%. The
applicable margin is determined each quarter by a pricing grid based on our senior leverage ratio of our consolidated senior debt to
consolidated EBITDA. The base rate applicable margin ranges from 0.75% to 1.50% based upon our senior leverage ratio. The
LIBOR-based applicable margin ranges from 2.50% to 3.25% based upon our senior leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2005, the
applicable margin for the prime-based rate was 0.75% and the applicable margin for the LIBOR-based rate was 2.5%.
The applicable rate is chosen at the time a draw down is requested under the revolving credit facility and is based on the
forecasted working capital requirements and the required notice period for each type of borrowing. LIBOR-based rates can be selected
for one-, two-, three- or six-month terms. In the case of a base rate loan, notice must be given to the bank on the business day prior to
the date of the required borrowing and in the case of a LIBOR-based loan notice must be given to the bank on the third business day
prior to the date of the requested borrowing. Base rate loans are variable, and the rates on those loans are changed whenever the
underlying rate changes. LIBOR-based loans bear interest for the term of the loan at the rate set at the time of borrowing for that loan.
Our obligations under the revolving credit facility are guaranteed by each of our subsidiaries. Our borrowings under the revolving
credit facility are secured by substantially all of our assets and the assets of our subsidiaries. In addition, our borrowings under the
revolving credit facility are secured by a pledge of all of the capital stock, or similar equity interests, of our subsidiaries. Our revolving
credit facility contains various financial covenants that require, among other things, the maintenance of a minimum net worth and
leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. The revolving credit facility contains customary covenants and events of default, including
covenants that restrict our ability to encumber assets, to create indebtedness and to declare and pay dividends. The revolving credit
facility also includes cross default provisions where an event of default with respect to any other indebtedness in excess of $1.0 million
in the aggregate could cause all amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility to become due and payable. We were in
compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2005.
We borrow under our $265.0 million revolving credit facility to fund our payday cash advances and other liquidity needs. Our
day-to-day balances under our revolving credit facility, as well as our cash balances, vary because of seasonal and day-to-day
requirements resulting from making and collecting payday cash advances. For example, if a month ends on a Friday (a typical
payday), our borrowings and our cash balances will be high compared to a month that does not end on a Friday. This is because a
substantial portion of the payday cash advances will be repaid in cash on that day but sufficient time
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will not yet have passed for the cash to reduce the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Our borrowings under
our revolving credit facility will also increase as the demand for payday cash advances increases during our peak periods such as the
back-to-school and holiday seasons. Conversely, our borrowings typically decrease during the tax refund season when cash receipts
from customers peak or the customer demand for new payday cash advances decreases.
Mortgage Payable. Our corporate headquarters building and related land are subject to a mortgage, the principal amount of
which was approximately $6.5 million and $6.2 million at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005, respectively. The mortgage is
payable to an insurance company and is collaterized by our corporate headquarters building and related land. The mortgage is payable
in 180 monthly installments of approximately $66,400, including principal and interest, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.30% over
its term. The mortgage matures on June 10, 2017. The carrying amount of our corporate headquarters (land, land improvements and
building) was approximately $5.6 million and $5.4 million at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005, respectively.
Operating Lease Obligations
We lease all but three of our centers from third-party lessors under operating leases. These leases typically have initial terms of
three to five years and may contain provisions for renewal options, additional rental charges based on revenue and payment of real
estate taxes and common area charges. In addition, we lease aircraft hangar space and have certain other leases for security and office
equipment. The lessor under three center leases, the aircraft hanger space lease and other office and warehouse space leases are
companies controlled by our Chairman. See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary DataNote 13. Related Party
Transactions."
Purchase Obligations
We enter into agreements with vendors to purchase furniture, fixtures and other items used to open new centers. These purchase
commitments typically extend for a period of two to three months after the opening of a new center. As of December 31, 2005, our
purchase obligations totaled approximately $1.9 million.
Critical Estimates, Uncertainties or Assessments in the Financial Statements
The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. In applying the accounting principles, we must often
make individual estimates and assumptions regarding expected outcomes or uncertainties. As might be expected, the actual results or
outcomes are generally different than the estimated or assumed amounts. These differences are usually minor and are included in our
consolidated financial statements as soon as they are known. Estimates, judgments and assumptions are continually evaluated based on
available information and experience. Because of the use of estimates inherent in the financial reporting process, actual results could
differ from those estimates.
Actual results related to the estimates and assumptions made in preparing our consolidated financial statements will emerge over
periods of time, such as estimates and assumptions underlying the determination of allowance for doubtful accounts. These estimates
and assumptions are monitored and periodically adjusted as circumstances warrant. These amounts may be adjusted based on higher or
lower actual loss experience. Although there is greater risk with respect to the accuracy of these estimates and assumptions because of
the period over which actual results may emerge, such risk is mitigated by the ability to make changes to these estimates and
assumptions over the same period.
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We periodically review the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets when events and circumstances warrant such a
review. One of the methods used for this review is performed using estimates of future cash flows. If the carrying value of goodwill or
other intangible assets is considered impaired, an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of the
goodwill or intangible assets exceeds its fair value. We believe that the estimates of future cash flows and fair value are reasonable.
Changes in estimates of those cash flows and fair value, however, could affect the evaluation.
Impact of Inflation
We believe our results of operations are not dependent upon the levels of inflation.
Impact of New Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities ("FIN 46"). In December 2003, a revised version of FIN 46 ("FIN 46R") was issued. FIN 46R addresses reporting and
disclosure requirements for Variable Interest Entities ("VIE"). It defines a VIE as an entity that either does not have equity investors
with voting rights or has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. FIN
46R requires consolidation of a VIE by the enterprise that has the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership, referred to as the
primary beneficiary. It also requires additional disclosures for an enterprise that holds a significant variable interest in a VIE, but is not
the primary beneficiary. See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary DataNote 16. Transactions with Variable Interest
Entity" for the impact of adopting FIN 46R on our results of operations and financial condition as well as other disclosures required by
FIN 46R.
In May 2005, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error CorrectionsA
Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3 ("SFAS No. 154"). SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in
accounting principle and changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154
requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle unless it is
impracticable. In addition, SFAS No. 154 carries forward without change the guidance contained in APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting
Changes, for reporting a correction of an error in previously issued financial statements and a change in accounting estimate. We do
not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 in January 2006 to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements. All statements other than historical information or
statements of current condition contained in this Annual Report, including statements regarding our future financial performance, our
business strategy and expected developments in the payday cash advance services industry, are forward-looking statements. The words
"expect," "intend," "plan," "believe," "project," "anticipate," "may," "will," "should," "would," "could," "estimate," "continue" and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
We have based these forward-looking statements on management's current views and expectations. Although we believe that the
current views and expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, those views and expectations, and the
related statements, are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are not under our control and may not
even be predictable. These risks, uncertainties and other factors could cause the actual results, performance or achievements to differ
materially from any future results, performance or achievements
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expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. These risks, uncertainties and factors include, but are not limited to:

the closing of centers in North Carolina;

the lending banks in Pennsylvania and Arkansas ceasing to originate payday cash advances and installment loans;

our ability to identify and implement any alternative methods of doing business in Pennsylvania and Arkansas;

current and future litigation and regulatory proceedings against us, including but not limited to those against us in
Florida, Georgia and North Carolina;

federal and state governmental regulation of payday cash advance services, consumer lending and related financial
services businesses;

our ability to efficiently and profitably manage a credit services organization business and a check-cashing
business;

customer demand and response to services and products offered at our centers;

the uncertainty of consumer and investor reception to our involvement with credit services, check-cashing services
and other alternative methods for conducting business;

the accuracy of our estimates of losses;

our relationships with the lending banks and with the banks party to our revolving credit facility;

theft and employee errors;

the availability of adequate financing, suitable centers and experienced management employees to implement our
growth strategy;

increases in interest rates, which would increase our borrowing costs;

the fragmentation of the payday cash advance services industry and competition from various other sources, such
as other payday cash advance providers, small loan providers, short-term consumer lenders, banks, savings and
loans and other similar financial services entities, as well as retail businesses that offer consumer loans or other
products or services similar to those offered by us;

our lack of product and business diversification; and

the other matters set forth under "Item 1A. Risk Factors" above.

We expressly disclaim any obligation to update or revise any of these forward-looking statements, whether because of future
events, new information, a change in our views or expectations, or otherwise. We make no prediction or statement about the
performance of our shares of common stock.
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You are cautioned not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties are discussed in more
detail elsewhere in this Annual Report, including under "Item 1A. Risk Factors," "Item 1. Business" and this Item 7.

ITEM 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We have no market-risk-sensitive instruments entered into for trading purposes, as defined by GAAP.
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Interest Rate Risk
We are exposed to interest rate risk on our revolving credit facility. We may from time to time enter into interest rate swaps,
collars or similar instruments with the objective of reducing our volatility in borrowing costs. We do not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative or trading purposes. We had no derivative financial instruments outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and
2005. In addition, our variable interest expense is sensitive to changes in the general level of interest rates. The weighted average
interest rate on our $39.5 million of variable interest debt as of December 31, 2004 was approximately 6.35%. The weighted average
interest rate on our $37.9 million of variable interest debt as of December 31, 2005 was approximately 7.38%.
We had total interest expense of $16.0 million, $17.2 million and $4.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005, respectively. The estimated change in interest expense from a hypothetical 200 basis-point change in applicable variable interest
rates would have been approximately $1.7 million in 2003, $2.4 million in 2004 and $0.4 million in 2005.
Credit Risk
Under the agency business model, all charges of fees and/or interest paid by a lending bank's customers are deposited directly to
the lending bank's bank account. We invoice each bank for the marketing, processing and servicing fees payable to us by such bank. In
addition, the lending bank in Pennsylvania is responsible for making payments to us if actual payday cash advance and installment
loan losses are less than the payday cash advance and installment loan losses retained by the lending bank. We are subject to the risk
that the lending banks will fail to pay all or a portion of the amounts due to us or that they will fail to pay us on a timely basis. Any
such failure could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.:
We have completed an integrated audit of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.'s 2005 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our
opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.
Consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders'
equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Internal control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005
based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on
criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company's management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
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control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Spartanburg, South Carolina
March 15, 2006
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Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
2004

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Advances and fees receivable, net
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

$

Total current assets
Restricted cash
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other assets

2005

18,224
155,009
3,141
9,887

$

186,261
9,110
72,247
122,324
7,597

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Accrual for excess bank losses
Current portion of long-term debt

397,539

$

436,388

$

13,911
23,027
2,169
3,219
471

$

9,306
29,895
11,349
1,373
503

Total liabilities

42,797
39,506
6,660
12,286


52,426
37,933
6,185
15,706
44

101,249

112,294



21,069





968
280,553
52,492

968
282,840
83,842

(37,723)

(64,625)

296,290

303,025

Non-controlling interest in variable interest entity
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 25,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 250,000 shares authorized; 96,821 shares issued
and 83,958 outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and 96,821 shares issued and 82,219
outstanding at December 31, 2005
Paid in capital
Retained earnings
Common stock in treasury (12,863 and 14,602 shares at cost at December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2005, respectively)
Total stockholders' equity
$

397,539

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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232,127
10,034
64,990
122,586
6,651

$

Total current liabilities
Revolving credit facility
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

27,259
193,468
6,367
5,033

$

436,388
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Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
2003
Revenues:
Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees

$

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses
Net revenues
Center Expenses:
Salaries and related payroll costs
Occupancy costs
Center depreciation expense
Advertising expense
Other center expenses
Total center expenses
Center gross profit
Corporate and Other Expenses (Income):
General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses with related parties
Corporate depreciation expense
Options purchase expense
Lending bank contract termination expense
Interest expense
Interest expense with related parties
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of assets
Transaction related expense

362,262
127,272

2004

$

430,859
139,329

630,066
(115,060)

424,853

480,952

515,006

131,369
51,798
11,603
23,857
41,300

160,047
67,305
13,719
26,082
47,087

171,092
80,540
14,902
24,137
52,712

259,927

314,240

343,383

164,926

166,712

171,623

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

98,100
1,925

97,096
14,041

Income before income of consolidated variable interest entity
Income of consolidated variable interest entity

96,175


83,055


51,151
607
4,483


4,331

(351)
715
2,918

107,769
43,776
63,993
(1,003)

$

96,175

$

83,055

$

62,990

$
$
$

1.40
1.40
1.48

$
$
$

1.20
1.20
1.15

$
$
$

0.76
0.76
0.38

68,667
68,787

69,126
69,126

Pro Forma Data (unaudited):
Historical income before taxes
Pro forma income tax expense

$

97,096
39,247

Net income adjusted for pro forma income tax expense

$

57,849

Pro forma net income per common sharebasic and diluted

$

0.84

71

529,953
100,113

570,188
(89,236)

42,081
2,021
3,942


7,303
9,862
(161)
814
1,288
2,466

Net income per common share
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per common share
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

$

489,534
(64,681)

35,066
1,368
3,433
3,547
6,525
5,971
10,012
(86)
990



Net income

2005

83,124
83,124
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Weighted average pro forma number of shares outstandingbasic and diluted

69,126

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
Common Stock

Shares
Balances, January 1, 2003
Comprehensive income
Net income
Changes in fair value and
amortization of interest rate swap

81,530 $

Par
Value

Common Stock
In Treasury
Paid-In
Capital

815 $

Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Retained
Earnings

78,719 $

54,546 $

Shares

(1,350) (12,863) $

Amount

Total

(37,723) $

95,007







96,175







96,175









1,350





1,350











(101,493)










Balances, December 31, 2003
Net income
Dividends paid ($1.15 per share)
Issuance of restricted stock
Amortization of restricted stock
Issuance of common stock
Common stock issuance costs
Issuance of common stock for for
purchase of aircraft
Issuance of common stock for
acquisition of Church & Commerce

81,530


233

14,333


815


3

143


49,228
83,055
(79,791)













686

7

7,030









7,037

39















Balances, December 31, 2004
Net income
Dividends paid ($0.38 per share)
Dividends payable
Purchases of treasury stock
Issuance of restricted stock
Forfeitures of restricted stock
Amortization of restricted stock
Stock option expense
Common stock issuance costs

96,821










968










280,553





1,217
1,053
186
(169)

Balances, December 31, 2005

96,821 $

968 $

282,840 $

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid ($1.48 per share)

78,719


(3)
49
214,857
(20,099)

52,492
62,990
(31,575)
(65)






83,842 $

(12,863)
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91,039
83,055
(79,791)

49
215,000
(20,099)












(12,863)



(1,963)
305
(81)




(37,723)



(25,685)

(1,217)




296,290
62,990
(31,575)
(65)
(25,685)


1,053
186
(169)



(14,602) $

(64,625) $

303,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005
(in thousands)
2003
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities, net of
acquisition
Income of consolidated variable interest entity
Depreciation
Non-cash interest expense
Provisions for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses
Agency bank charge-offs, net of recoveries
Deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of assets
Amortization of restricted stock
Stock option expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable

$

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Changes in advances and fees receivable, net
Changes in restricted cash
Proceeds from note receivable
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Increase in non-controlling interest of variable interest entity
Proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit facility, net
Common stock issuance costs
Payments on mortgage payable
Proceeds from note payable
Payments on note payable
Payments of financing costs
Purchases of treasury stock
Payments of dividends
Changes in book overdrafts
Proceeds from debt with related parties
Payments on debt with related parties
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

$

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:

74

96,175

2004

$

83,055

2005

$

62,990


15,036
1,065
64,681
(18,369)
1,060
990





17,661
906
89,236
(22,471)
8,843
814
1,288
49


1,003
19,385
981
115,060
(17,445)
194
715
2,437
1,053
186

4,382
(1,862)
681
1,245
(1,629)

(6,768)
3,908
5,507
(5,939)
2,134

4,881
(13)
(3,633)
3,768
9,181

163,455

178,223

200,743

(67,815)
(6,520)
2,400

43
(21,437)

(83,974)
1,031


23
(28,448)

(137,808)
(925)

(352)
6,774
(18,930)

(93,329)

(111,368)

(151,241)



28,455

(287)


(220)

(101,493)
228
7,000


215,000

(89,136)
(20,099)
(307)
610

(3,068)

(79,791)
1,465

(83,789)


19,973
(1,572)
(169)
(334)

(110)
(23)
(25,685)
(31,575)
(972)



(66,317)

(59,115)

(40,467)

3,809
6,675

7,740
10,484

9,035
18,224

10,484

$

18,224

$

27,259
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Interest, net of amounts capitalized
Income taxes
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activity:
Property and equipment purchases included in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Issuance of note payable related to purchase of software
Issuance of common stock for purchase of aircraft
Deferred tax liability resulting from difference in book and tax basis of aircraft acquired
Restricted stock dividends payable
Issuance of restricted common stock
Net assets acquired through acquisition of business

$

15,217
2,494
1,452







$

19,236
2,271
1,818
610
7,037
3,257

3,500


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

3,179
34,402
3,071
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Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005
1. Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation, Principles of Consolidation and Description of Business
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
("AACACI"), its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") and, prior to its acquisition on December 21, 2004, the one
consolidated special purpose entity related to its corporate headquarters. At December 31, 2005, the Company's consolidated financial
statements also include the accounts of a variable interest entity for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
At December 31, 2005, the Company operated 2,604 centers throughout the United States under the brand names Advance
America ("Advance America") and National Cash Advance ("National Cash"). In each state, separate wholly owned subsidiaries own
the centers operating as Advance America and as National Cash. In most states in which the Company conducts business, it makes
payday cash advances directly to customers (which is referred to as the standard business model). In other states in which the
Company conducts business, it acts as marketing, processing and servicing agent through its centers for Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") supervised, state-chartered banks that make payday cash advances and installment loans to their customers
pursuant to the authority of the laws of the states in which they are located and of federal interstate banking laws, regulations and
guidelines (which is referred to as the agency business model). The banks for which the Company acts as an agent are referred to as
the lending banks. As of December 31, 2005, the Company was operating under the standard business model in 2,473 centers in 34
states and serving as agent for the lending banks under the agency business model in 131 centers located in Arkansas and
Pennsylvania.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. The
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents is the estimated fair value at December 31, 2004 and 2005. The Company invests excess
funds in certificates of deposit and in overnight sweep accounts with commercial banks, which in turn invest these funds in short-term,
interest-bearing reverse repurchase agreements or overnight Eurodollar deposits. Due to the short-term nature of these investments, the
Company does not take possession of the securities, which are instead held by the financial institution. The market value of the
securities held pursuant to these arrangements approximates the carrying amount. Deposits in excess of $100,000 are not insured by
the FDIC.
Restricted Cash
Restricted cash includes cash in certain money market accounts and certificates of deposit. Restricted cash is restricted due to
certain states' liquidity requirements.
Revenue Recognition and Advances and Fees Receivable
Revenues on payday cash advances (and as of July 2005, installment loans under the agency business model) can be characterized
as fees and/or interest depending upon various state laws. Revenue is recognized on payday cash advances made by the Company
under the standard business model on a constant-yield basis ratably over the term of each payday cash advance. Under the agency
business model, all charges of fees and/or interest paid by the lending banks' customers are deposited directly to the respective lending
bank's bank account, and the Company's revenues consist of the marketing, processing and servicing fees payable to the Company by
the lending banks. Prior to
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July 2005, these fees included the losses for which the lending banks were contractually obligated in each of the states where the
Company operated its agency business model. As of July 2005, these fees include only the losses for which the lending bank operating
in Pennsylvania is contractually obligated. The Company recognizes revenue under the agency business model on a constant-yield
basis ratably over the term of each payday cash advance and installment loan.
Advances and fees receivable are carried at cost less unearned revenues and the allowance for doubtful accounts.
When the bank returns a customer's check for non-sufficient funds, closed account or other reasons, the account is recognized as a
returned item receivable and is included in advances and fees receivable, net. Returned item receivables were $25.7 million and
$35.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Accrual for Excess Bank Losses
The allowance for doubtful accounts represents management's estimate of the amount necessary to absorb probable inherent
losses in advances and fees receivable and the accrual for excess bank losses relates to the contingent liability associated with
advances and fees receivable made by the lending banks. The total estimated losses consist of (1) an allowance for doubtful accounts
for estimated losses for payday cash advances under the standard business model and (2) the amount accrued for excess bank losses
for the Company's share of the losses on payday cash advances and installment loans the Company markets, processes and services for
the lending banks under the agency business model.
The payday cash advances and installment loans made and funded by the lending banks under the agency business model are not
reflected on the Company's balance sheet within the advances and fees receivable, net because these advances and installment loans
are repayable solely to the lending banks and are assets of the lending banks.
Historically, the lending banks have been contractually obligated for a portion of the payday cash advance and installment loan
losses. Those obligations, denominated as a percent of fees and interest, have typically ranged between 8% and 20%. Under the
Company's current marketing, processing and servicing agreement with the lending bank in Pennsylvania, the lending bank continues
to be contractually obligated for loan losses up to 8.5% of fees and interest. Subsequent to July 2005, under the Company's marketing,
processing and servicing agreements with the lending bank in Arkansas and North Carolina, the lending bank has been contractually
obligated for all loan losses. The portion of payday cash advances, installment loans and fees deemed to be uncollectible is charged
against the allowance for doubtful accounts or the accrual for excess bank losses, as appropriate, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are
credited to the allowance for doubtful accounts or the accrual for excess bank losses, as appropriate.
Management believes that the allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses are adequate. Management's
ongoing evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses is based on its
evaluation of the payday cash advances and installment loans outstanding, historical experience and such other factors that, in
management's judgment, deserve consideration in estimating probable losses.
The Company segregates its accounts receivable into payday advances receivable, fees and interest receivable, returned item
receivables, lending bank receivables and other receivables. Payday advances receivable and fees and interest receivable include
payday cash advances that have not been repaid. Returned item receivables include payday cash advances for which the customer's
personal check has been deposited and the check has been returned due to non-sufficient funds in the customers' accounts or other
reasons. Lending bank receivables include amounts due from the lending banks. Other receivables include other miscellaneous
receivables.
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The allowance for doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses are primarily based upon models that analyze specific
portfolio statistics and also reflect, to a lesser extent, management's judgment regarding overall accuracy. The analytical models take
into account several factors including the number of transactions customers complete and charge-off and recovery rates. Additional
factors such as changes in state laws, center closings, length of time centers have been open in a state, relative mix of new centers
within a state and other relevant factors are also evaluated to determine whether the results from the analytical models should be
revised. For those states where the Company operates under the standard business model, this estimate of future losses on receivables
is recorded as a reduction of advances and receivables, net on the Company's balance sheet.
Charge-offs include (1) the unpaid portion of checks deposited and subsequently returned due to non-sufficient funds in the
customers' accounts or other reasons and (2) unpaid loans of customers who file for bankruptcy. Under the standard business model,
the amount of the unpaid payday cash advances and the related fees and/or interest are charged off if a customer does not make
payment of at least 15% of his or her outstanding balance within 60 days of the due date. Under the agency business model, the
amount of the unpaid payday cash advances and installment loans and the related fees and/or interest are generally charged off 60 days
after the due date. Unpaid payday cash advances of customers who file for bankruptcy are charged off upon receipt of the bankruptcy
notice. Although management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance for
doubtful accounts and accrual for excess bank losses may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the Company's
assumptions used in assessing their adequacy.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, including improvements that significantly extend useful lives, are recorded at cost. Cost includes major
expenditures for improvements and replacements that extend useful lives and interest costs associated with significant capital
expenditures. Maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. Depreciation is calculated for financial reporting purposes using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: building, 40 years; aircraft, 20 years; land
improvements, 7 years; leasehold improvements, office equipment and furniture, 3 to 5 years; and software, 3 to 5 years. When
property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts, and the resulting gains or losses are included in income.
The carrying value of property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. The Company assesses recoverability by determining whether the net book
value of assets will be recovered through projected undiscounted future cash flows. If the Company determines that the carrying value
of assets may not be recoverable, it measures any impairment based on the projected discounted future cash flows or estimated sale
proceeds to be provided from the assets as compared to the carrying value. The Company records impairment losses in the period in
which it identifies such impairment. The Company had no such impairment losses in 2003. The Company recorded in the fourth
quarter 2004 an impairment of assets expense of approximately $1.3 million to write-off the undepreciated costs of the remaining 86
centers located in Georgia. See Note 12 for further discussion of the Company's Georgia operations. The Company recorded in the
third quarter 2005 an impairment of assets expense of approximately $0.4 million to write-off the undepreciated costs of
underperforming centers identified for future closure and approximately $1.5 million in connection with the sale of one of its aircraft.
The Company recorded in the fourth quarter 2005 an impairment of assets expense of approximately $1.0 million to write-off the
undepreciated costs of the 117 centers located in North Carolina. See Note 12 for further discussion of the Company's North Carolina
operations.
The Company accounts for internally developed software costs in accordance with SOP 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed for or Obtained for Internal Use, which requires the capitalization of certain costs incurred in
connection with developing or obtaining software
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for internal use. The Company capitalizes internal use software if that software meets the following criteria:

The software is acquired, internally developed or modified solely to meet the Company's internal needs, and

No substantive plan exists or is being developed to market the software externally.
If these two criteria are met, the Company will capitalize labor costs of full-time and temporary employees working directly on the
development or modification of internal use software and hardware and software purchased specifically for the internal use software.
Capitalized costs are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years when the software is complete and ready for its
intended use.
Cash Overdrafts
The Company has included in accounts payable book overdrafts of $4.7 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2004 and 2005,
respectively.
Operating Leases
The Company's center leases typically have a lease term of three years and contain lessee renewal options and cancellation
clauses in the event of regulatory changes. Because of the economic penalties associated with relocating its centers, combined with the
loss of customers and additional capital requirements, the Company typically renews its leases for one or more options periods.
Accordingly, the Company amortizes its leasehold improvements over the shorter of their economic lives, which are generally five
years, or the lease term that considers renewal periods that are reasonably assured.
Concentration of Risk
The Company marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances, and, beginning in July 2005, installment loans under
either the standard or agency business model, to a broad base of individuals in 37 states in the United States during the year ended
December 31, 2005. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, total revenues within five states accounted for
approximately 44%, 42% and 41%, respectively, of the Company's total revenues.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed when incurred.
Pre-opening Costs
New center pre-opening costs are expensed when incurred.
Center Closing Costs
Center closing costs represent management's estimate of severance payments, costs to clean and vacate the premises, losses
related to the write-off of leasehold improvements and signage, and lease cancellation expense related to closing a center. A liability
for severance payments, which are paid in accordance with the Company's severance policy, is recognized when management
(i) decides to close a center and this plan is unlikely to change, (ii) determines that an employee cannot be relocated to another center
and (iii) informs the employee of the termination and the benefits that will be paid. The severance payment is recognized at the time
the termination is communicated to the employee or, if the employee is required to continue service in order to receive the benefit,
ratably until the center closes. Costs to terminate the lease are recorded at the earlier of the date the lease is terminated or the lease's
cease-use date. All other expenses are recorded when incurred.
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Income Taxes
Effective October 1, 2001, AACACI filed an election to convert to Subchapter S status. Certain subsidiaries also converted to
Subchapter S status as part of this election. The Company terminated these elections on December 21, 2004. For the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004, approximately 91% of total revenues were attributable to companies that had elected Subchapter S
status.
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method for those subsidiaries that remained C corporations for all
periods presented and for the period December 21, 2004 through December 31, 2004 for the Company. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying value of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the related temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in the period that includes the enactment date.
Derivative and Hedging Activities
The Company has occasionally used derivative financial instruments for the purpose of managing exposure to adverse
fluctuations in interest rates. While these instruments are subject to fluctuations in value, such fluctuations are generally offset by the
change in value of the underlying exposures being hedged. The Company does not enter into any derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes.
In order to limit its exposure to interest rate fluctuations, the Company had an interest rate swap agreement in May 2001 that
converted a portion of its variable rate debt outstanding under its credit facility to a fixed rate of 4.78% plus the margin. The notional
amount of this swap was $12.5 million at December 31, 2003. The swap notional amount amortized by $2.5 million per month and
matured on May 7, 2004. The interest rate swap was accounted for as a cash flow hedge. The fair value was recorded on the balance
sheet with changes in the fair value recorded in other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity.
Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
for the period excluding unvested restricted stock. Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period, after adjusting for the dilutive effect of restricted stock and stock
options. Unvested shares of restricted stock of 233,329 and 391,488 at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively, and options to
purchase 1,200,000 shares of common stock that were outstanding at December 31, 2005 were not included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share since the effect of including these options would be anti-dilutive.
The following table presents the reconciliation of the denominator used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

Reconciliation of denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstandingbasic
Effect of dilutive options and unvested restricted stock
Weighted average number of common shares outstandingdiluted
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2004

2005

68,667
120

69,126


83,124


68,787

69,126

83,124

Edgar Filing: Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. - Form 10-K
Stock-Based Compensation Plans
The Company's stock-based compensation plans include the Stock Option Plan of Advance America, Cash Advance
Centers, Inc., which was terminated in November 2002 (the "Former Plan"), the 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan, which was approved by
the Company's Board of Directors in 2004, and a Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and a Restricted Stock Agreement, both of
which are between the Company and the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer and were approved by the Company's
Board of Directors in 2005.
For the Former Plan, the Company followed the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
CompensationTransition and Disclosure. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company applied the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in accounting for the Former
Plan for the year ended December 31, 2003. Accordingly, compensation cost at the date of grant for stock options was measured as the
excess, if any, of the fair value of the Company's stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee was required to pay to
acquire the stock. If compensation cost at the date of grant for the Former Plan had been determined based on the fair value at the grant
date for awards under the plan consistent with the method established by SFAS No. 123, the Company's net income and earnings per
share for the year ended December 31, 2003 would approximate the pro-forma amounts below (in thousands, except per share data):
2003

Net income, as reported
Stock-based compensation included in reported net income(1)
Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method for all awards(1)

$

96,175
3,547
(166)

Pro-forma net income

$

99,556

$

1.40
1.45
1.40
1.45

Earnings per share
Basicas reported
Basicpro-forma
Dilutedas reported
Dilutedpro-forma
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
basic
diluted

68,667
68,787

(1)
The Company's compensation adjustments are not net of tax for the year ended December 31, 2003 due to AACACI's S
corporation status for that year.
During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company redeemed or provided for the redemption of all remaining options outstanding
under the Former Plan.
Under the Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan, the 2005 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and the 2005 Restricted Stock
Agreement (the "Current Plans"), the Company has granted shares of restricted stock (in 2004 and 2005) and options to purchase the
Company's common stock (in 2005). For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised),
Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123 (R)"). As required by SFAS No. 123 (R), the Company uses the fair value method of
accounting for compensation cost for its restricted stock and stock options. Accordingly, compensation cost was measured at the grant
date based on the fair value of the awards and will be recognized over each award's respective service period. See Note 11 for the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 123 (R) on the Company's results of operations and financial condition as well as other disclosures
required by SFAS No. 123 (R).
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Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related notes to financial statements.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant estimates include the determination of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, accrual for excess bank losses, accounting for income taxes, self-insurance accruals for workers' compensation and medical
insurance and fair value of goodwill under required impairment analysis.
Risks and Uncertainties
The Company's future operations involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company's future
operating results and cause actual results to differ materially from expectations include, but are not limited to: application of laws and
regulations to the Company's business, as more fully disclosed in Note 2; the Company's ability to manage credit risk; continued
access to revolving credit facilities; and interest rate fluctuation on variable rate debt. The Company manages these risks through
political and legal efforts, continual evaluation of payday cash advance loss experience and, occasionally, entering into interest rate
hedging instruments, respectively.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
For certain of the Company's financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, advances and fees receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short maturities.
Treasury Stock
The Company's Board of Directors periodically authorizes the repurchase of common stock. The Company's repurchases of
shares of common stock are recorded as "Common stock in treasury" and result in a reduction of stockholders' equity. When treasury
shares are reissued, the Company uses a first-in, first-out method. Gains on sales of treasury stock not previously accounted for as
constructively retired are credited to additional paid-in-capital. Losses on sales of treasury stock are charged to additional paid in
capital to the extent that previous net "gains" from sales or retirements are included therein, otherwise to retained earnings.
Business Segment
SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, ("SFAS No. 131"), established standards
for reporting information about operating segments. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which
separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or group, in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performance. For purposes of disclosure required by SFAS No. 131, the Company operates in
one segment, retail financial services.
Insurance Recoveries
As a result of the named Hurricanes during the last half of 2005, the Company incurred property and equipment losses and the
interruption of its business at certain centers. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a receivable for insurance recoveries as of
December 31, 2005 of $1.0 million, which is included as an other receivable in advances and fees receivable, net. Of this amount,
approximately $0.8 million was recorded as a reduction of the provision for doubtful accounts and agency bank losses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2003, Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ("FIN
46"), was issued. In December 2003, a revised version of FIN 46 ("FIN 46R") was issued. FIN 46R addresses reporting and disclosure
requirements for Variable Interest Entities ("VIE"). It defines a VIE as an entity that either does not have equity investors with voting
rights or has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. FIN 46R requires
consolidation of a VIE by the enterprise that has the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership, referred to as the primary
beneficiary. It also requires additional disclosures for an enterprise that holds a significant variable interest in a VIE, but is not the
primary beneficiary. See Note 16 for the impact of adopting FIN 46R on the Company's results of operations and financial condition
as well as other disclosures required by FIN 46R.
In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error
CorrectionsA Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3 ("SFAS No. 154"). SFAS No. 154 applies to all
voluntary changes in accounting principle and changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting
principle. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting
principle unless it is impracticable. In addition, SFAS No. 154 carries forward without change the guidance contained in APB Opinion
No. 20, Accounting Changes, for reporting a correction of an error in previously issued financial statements and a change in
accounting estimate. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 in January 2006 to have a material impact on its
financial condition or results of operations.
Revisions to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
The Company has revised the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 to properly
present the provision for agency bank losses related to off-balance sheet receivables. The effect of the revision is to decrease 2003 and
2004 net cash provided by operating activities by $18.1 million and $22.1 million, respectively, and to decrease 2003 and 2004 net
cash used in investing activities by the same amounts. The revision does not affect the net change in cash and cash equivalents for any
of the periods presented and has no effect on the Company's consolidated statements of income or any related earnings per share
amounts for any of the periods presented.
Reclassifications
Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
2. Regulatory Requirements
The Company's business is regulated under numerous state laws and regulations, which are subject to change and which may
impose significant costs or limitations on the way the Company conducts or expands its business. As of December 31, 2005, 39 states
and the District of Columbia had specific laws that permitted payday cash advances or allowed a form of payday cash advances under
small loan laws. As of December 31, 2005, the Company operated in 34 of these 39 states under the standard business model and in
one of these states under the agency business model.
The Company does not conduct business in the remaining four of these 39 states or in the District of Columbia because the
Company does not believe it is economically attractive at this time to operate in these jurisdictions due to specific legislative
restrictions such as interest rate ceilings, an unattractive population density or unattractive location characteristics. The remaining 11
states did not have laws specifically authorizing the payday cash advance business. As of December 31, 2005, the Company operated
in one of these 11 states under the agency business model, serving as marketing, processing
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and servicing agent through its centers for a lending bank that makes payday cash advances and installment loans to their customers in
those states.
The Company's centers are individually licensed under these state laws. Certain states have minimum net worth or minimum asset
level requirements for each company conducting a payday cash advance business in the state.
Although states provide the primary regulatory framework under which the Company offers payday cash advance services,
certain federal laws also impact the business. The Company's payday cash advance services are subject to federal laws and regulations,
including the Truth-in-Lending Act ("TILA"), the Equal Credit Opportunity Act ("ECOA"), the Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA"),
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act ("FDCPA"), the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act ("GLBA") and the regulations promulgated for each.
Among other things, these laws require disclosure of the principal terms of each transaction to every customer, prohibit misleading
advertising, protect against discriminatory lending practices, proscribe unfair credit practices and prohibit creditors from
discriminating against credit applicants on the basis of race, sex, age or marital status. The GLBA and its implementing regulations
generally require the Company to protect the confidentiality of its customers' nonpublic personal information and to disclose to the
Company's customers its privacy policy and practices.
The Company's marketing efforts and the representations it makes about payday cash advance services also are subject to federal
and state unfair and deceptive practices statutes. The Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") enforces the Federal Trade Commission Act
and the state attorneys general and private plaintiffs enforce the analogous state statutes. These statutes generally prohibit unfair or
deceptive conduct. The FTC has not initiated any formal actions against the Company.
The lending banks for which the Company has acted as marketing, processing and servicing agent are subject to federal and state
banking regulations. As state-chartered banks, the lending banks are subject to supervision by the FDIC. Additionally, the lending
banks are subject to regular examination by other state and federal regulatory authorities. Because of the Company's contractual
relationships with the lending banks, the Company's own activities regarding the lending banks' payday cash advances are also subject
to examination by the FDIC and these other regulatory authorities. To the extent an examination involves a review of the lending
banks' payday cash advances and related processes, a regulatory authority may require the Company to provide information, grant
access to its centers, personnel and records and alter its business practices or prevent the lending banks from providing payday cash
advances using agents such as the Company.
Violations of the statutes and regulations described above may result in actions for damages, claims for refund of payments made,
certain fines and penalties, injunctions against certain practices and the potential forfeiture of rights to repayment of loans.
3. Marketing, Processing and Servicing Arrangements
As part of the agency business model, the Company is party to marketing, processing and servicing agreements
("MP&S Agreements") with the lending banks that offer payday cash advances and, as of July 2005, installment loans. The Company's
marketing, processing and servicing duties typically include the following:
a)
taking applications from prospective customers of the lending bank;
b)
submitting the applications for approval or denial to the lending bank's independent, third-party credit scoring
agent;
c)
depending on whether the application is approved or denied, providing the customer with a lending bank
contractual agreement or an adverse action letter;
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d)
collecting repayments from the lending bank's customers and depositing them in the lending bank's bank accounts;
e)
if repayment is not received from a customer, commencing collection activities to collect on the amount owed to
the lending bank; and
f)
undertaking various marketing efforts on behalf of the lending bank.
In Pennsylvania, North Carolina and Arkansas, the Company is compensated under these MP&S Agreements by the lending
banks for marketing, processing and servicing the payday cash advances and, as of July 2005, installment loans the lending banks
make to their customers. The Company was previously a party to MP&S Agreements with lending banks offering payday cash
advances in Texas and Michigan, which agreements were terminated in June and/or July 2005, and the Company no longer operates in
Texas or Michigan under the agency business model. Although the Company markets, processes and services payday cash advances
and, now, installment loans made by the lending banks under the agency business model, each lending bank is responsible for
evaluating each of its customers' applications and determining whether the payday cash advance or installment loan is approved. The
Company is not involved in the lending banks' payday cash advance or installment loan approval process or the determination of their
approval procedures or criteria, and the Company generally does not fund or acquire any payday cash advances or installment loans
from the lending banks. The payday cash advances and installment loans are repayable solely to the lending banks and are assets of the
lending banks; accordingly, they are not included in the Company's balance sheet. On September 15, 2005, the lending bank for which
the Company markets, processes and services payday cash advances and installment loans in its 117 centers in North Carolina
suspended its payday cash advance and installment loan originations. On December 22, 2005, the Commissioner of Banks ordered that
the Company's North Carolina subsidiary immediately cease and desist operations of payday advances. In accordance with the
Commissioner of Bank's Order, the North Carolina subsidiary ceased all business operations on December 22, 2005.
Prior to July 2005, each lending bank with whom the Company had entered into a MP&S Agreement was contractually obligated
for the losses on payday cash advances in an amount established as a percentage of the interest and/or fees charged by the banks to
their customers. The Company's marketing, processing and servicing fee increased by the lending bank's contractual obligation for
losses. If the amount of the lending bank's uncollected payday cash advances and installment loans exceeded the lending bank's
contractual obligations, the Company was potentially obligated to pay the lending bank the outstanding amount of the advances and
loans plus the lending bank's fees and/or interest receivable on the advances, less the lending bank's contractually obligated portion of
the losses. The outstanding balances of the lending banks' advances, installment loans and fees receivable serviced by the Company
were approximately $61.8 million and $21.9 million at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Beginning in July 2005, the
lending bank offering payday cash advances and installment loans in North Carolina and Arkansas became responsible for any and all
losses associated with its payday cash advances and installment loans, while the lending bank offering payday cash advances and
installment loans in Pennsylvania continued to be contractually obligated only for losses in an amount established as a percentage of
the interest and/or fees charged by the bank to its customers.
During 2001, the Company entered into a note agreement in which the Company loaned a lending bank $3.0 million for five
years. Monthly principal payments of $50,000 plus interest were due through 2006. The note bore interest at 8% per annum, increasing
by 2% each year. During 2002, a regulator filed an enforcement action regarding this lending bank's payday lending activities. In
March 2003, the Company paid this lending bank $6.3 million to terminate the two existing contracts to market, process and service on
behalf of the bank in Pennsylvania and North Carolina. The lending bank repaid the note in full.
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4. Advances and Fees Receivable, Net
Advances and fees receivable, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):
2004

Payday advances receivable
Fees and interest receivable
Returned items receivable
Loans and fees receivable of consolidated variable interest entity
Lending bank receivable
Other
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Unearned revenues
Advances and fees receivable, net

2005

$

137,309
21,942
25,705

10,762
1,833
(29,221)
(13,321)

$

165,212
25,945
35,244
24,905
2,342
3,350
(45,585)
(17,945)

$

155,009

$

193,468

5. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Accrual for Excess Bank Losses
Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Beginning balance
Provision for doubtful accounts
Charge-offs
Recoveries

$

18,091
46,552
(51,873)
10,251

$

23,021
67,169
(73,839)
12,870

$

29,221
99,460
(105,411)
22,315

Ending balance

$

23,021

$

29,221

$

45,585

Changes in the accrual for excess bank losses were as follows (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Beginning balance
Provision for agency bank losses
Charge-offs
Recoveries

$

3,863
18,129
(24,531)
6,162

$

3,623
22,067
(29,323)
6,852

$

3,219
15,600
(23,761)
6,315

Ending balance

$

3,623

$

3,219

$

1,373

The provision for agency bank losses consists of those losses for which the lending banks under the agency business model are
contractually obligated and an estimate by which actual losses will differ from the lending banks' contractual obligation (which is
referred to as provision for excess bank losses).
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6. Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):
2004

Land and land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Software
Building
Aircraft
Construction in progress

$

2005

1,479
34,467
62,511
10,861
5,293
10,294
6,766

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

$

1,479
39,145
67,206
17,260
5,293
2,790
3,486

131,671
(59,424)

Property and equipment, net

$

72,247

136,659
(71,669)
$

64,990

7. Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of assets acquired and, prior to January 1, 2002, was being amortized over
fifteen years under the straight-line method. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, as of
January 1, 2002. As a result, effective January 1, 2002, the Company no longer recorded approximately $10 million of amortization
each year relating to its existing goodwill. The Company tests its goodwill for impairment annually or if there is a significant change
in the business environment. The results of the 2003, 2004 and 2005 tests indicated there was no impairment.
8. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
2004

Employee compensation
Health and dental insurance
Severance
Workers' compensation
Legal
Construction in progress
Branch closing costs
Accounting and tax
Property, sales and franchise taxes
Other
Total

2005

$

9,678
3,364
248
3,521
827
1,818
55
550
585
2,381

$

8,819
3,352
905
4,120
583
3,071
2,235
1,362
676
4,772

$

23,027

$

29,895

9. Revolving Credit Facility and Long-Term Debt
Revolving Credit Facility
On July 16, 2004, the Company amended and restated its prior credit facility. This facility, as subsequently amended (the "2004
Facility") provides the Company with a $265 million revolving line of credit, including the ability to issue up to $20 million in letters
of credit and to spend up to $50 million on the repurchase of the Company's outstanding common stock. The maturity date of the 2004
Facility
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is July 16, 2009. The Company has the option to (i) increase the 2004 Facility by an additional $10 million and (ii) extend the maturity
date to July 16, 2010, in each case upon satisfaction of certain covenants and conditions. In connection with this amendment, the
Company incurred $3.1 million in loan origination costs in 2004 that were capitalized in other assets and are being amortized over the
remaining term of the 2004 Facility.
The 2004 Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the Company's assets and contains various financial covenants that
require, among other things, the maintenance of a minimum net worth and certain leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios and also
restricts the encumbrance of assets and the creation of indebtedness. The 2004 Facility also includes cross default provisions where an
event of default with respect to any other indebtedness in excess of $1 million in the aggregate could cause all amounts outstanding
under the 2004 Facility to become due and payable. The Company was in compliance with all covenants at December 31, 2004 and
2005.
Borrowings under the Facility consisted of Base Rate Loans or Eurodollar Loans, or a combination thereof. Base Rate Loans bore
interest at the greater of the Federal Funds Rate plus 1/2 of 1% or the Prime Rate in effect on such day plus an amount that varied based
upon the Company's Consolidated Senior Leverage Ratio (the Margin). Eurodollar Loans bore interest at the 1-Month, 2-Month,
3-Month or 6-Month LIBOR rate plus the Margin.
In order to limit its exposure to interest rate fluctuations, the Company had an interest rate swap agreement that converted a
portion of its variable rate debt outstanding under the prior credit facility to a fixed rate of 4.78% plus the Margin. The notional
amount of this swap was $12.5 million at December 31, 2003. The swap notional amount amortized by $2.5 million per month and
matured on May 7, 2004.
The weighted average interest rate was 6.35% and 7.38% for the 2004 Facility at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Total commitment fees paid were $0.2 million, $0.5 million, and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and
2005, respectively.
The carrying value of the revolving credit facility approximated its fair value at December 31, 2004 and 2005.
The Company had approximately $14.6 million in letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2005.
Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):
2004

Mortgage payable
Note payable

$

Total long-term debt
Less current portion

6,521
610

2005

$

7,131
(471)

Long-term debt

$

6,660

6,188
500
6,688
(503)

$

6,185

The Company's corporate headquarters building was constructed and financed through a special purpose entity ("SPE") in 2001,
which was controlled and owned by the Company's Chairman of the Board and certain of the Company's stockholders. Prior to
December 21, 2004, the Company had no ownership interest in the SPE; however, the SPE was consolidated under prior accounting
literature and continued to be consolidated in accordance with FIN 46 until the Company's acquisition of the
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SPE. The SPE owns the Company's headquarters building and related land subject to a mortgage. The mortgage is payable to an
insurance company and is secured by the Company's corporate headquarters building and related land. The mortgage is payable in
180 monthly installments of approximately $66,400, including principal and interest, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 7.30% over its
term. The mortgage matures on June 10, 2017. The carrying amount of the corporate headquarters (land, land improvements and
building) was $5.6 million at December 31, 2004 and $5.4 million at December 31, 2005.
The fair value of the long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis and was approximately $7.1 million and
$6.6 million at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Interest expense consists of the following (in thousands):
2003

Interest expense:
National Cash Advance subordinated debt
Stock repurchase subordinated debt
Notes payable to stockholders
Mortgage payable
Credit facility
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Capitalized interest on internally developed software
Other

$

Total interest expense

$

2004

5,144
2,874
1,994
510
4,552
1,065
(242)
86
15,983

$

$

2005

4,791
2,725
2,346
498
6,113
906
(259)
45
17,165

$




488
2,731
981
(91)
222

$

4,331

The National Cash Advance subordinated debt, which was unsecured and subordinate to the credit facility, was issued in
connection with the Company's acquisition of National Cash and was amended on September 30, 2002. The maturity date and interest
rate for $30.7 million of this debt was extended from October 15, 2004 to October 15, 2007 and increased from 10% to 13% effective
October 1, 2002, respectively. This debt was repaid on December 21, 2004. The remaining $11.5 million of the National Cash
Advance subordinated debt was not amended, bore interest at a rate of 10% and was repaid upon its maturity on October 15, 2004.
The stock repurchase subordinated debt, which was unsecured and subordinate to the credit facility, was issued in connection
with purchases of common stock that is now included in Treasury Stock, and was amended on September 30, 2002. The maturity date
and interest rate for $16.4 million of this debt was extended from October 15, 2004 to October 15, 2007 and increased from 10% to
13% effective October 1, 2002, respectively. Approximately $3.8 million of the remaining stock repurchase subordinated debt was not
amended, bore interest at a rate of 10% and was repaid upon its maturity date on October 15, 2004. The remaining $2.8 million of the
stock repurchase subordinated debt was amended to increase the interest rate from 10% to 13% and was repaid on December 21, 2004.
The notes payable to stockholders (the "Notes"), which were unsecured and subordinate to the credit facility and the National
Cash Advance subordinated debt, were amended on September 30, 2002. The maturity date was extended from December 31, 2004 to
October 15, 2007 and the interest rate was increased from 8.25% to 13% effective October 1, 2002, respectively. These Notes were
repaid on December 21, 2004.
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Revolving credit facility and long-term debt maturities for the next five years and thereafter are (in thousands):
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter
Total

$

503
507
542
38,479
477
4,113

$

44,621

10. Income Taxes
Income tax expense consisted of the following (in thousands):
2003

Current
Federal
State

$

2004


865

$

1,101
4,098

865
1,060

Deferred
Total

$

1,925

2005

$

5,199
8,842
$

36,359
7,223
43,582
194

14,041

$

43,776

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the Company's effective income tax rate follows:
2003

Statutory income tax rate
S corporation income not subject to tax
Conversion to C corporation status
State income taxes, net
Other
Effective income tax rate
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2004

2005

35.0%
(33.3)

0.2
0.1

35.0%
(29.9)
6.4
2.8
0.2

35.0%


4.4
1.2

2.0%

14.5%

40.6%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
(in thousands):
2004

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses
Bad debts
Net operating loss carryforwards
Other

$

2005

2,762
1,819
845
35

$

4,113
2,491
631
46

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Goodwill
Depreciation
Prepaid expenses
Book vs tax basis difference for aircraft

5,461

7,281

(7,877)
(1,882)
(1,590)
(3,257)

(10,743)
(3,731)
(1,477)
(669)

Total deferred tax liabilities

(14,606)

(16,620)

Net deferred tax liability

$

(9,145)

$

(9,339)

From October 1, 2001 through December 20, 2004, AACACI was treated for federal and certain state income tax purposes as an
S corporation under the Internal Revenue Code and comparable state laws. As a result, AACACI's earnings were taxed for federal and
most state income tax purposes directly to AACACI's stockholders rather than to AACACI. On December 21, 2004, AACACI revoked
its status as an S corporation and is now taxed as a C corporation. As a result of the revocation of its S corporation status, AACACI
recorded a net deferred tax liability and corresponding income tax expense on the revocation date of $8.4 million.
Until the Company files its final income tax return as an S corporation, the amount of deferred income tax liability recorded as a
result of the Company's conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation remains an estimate. Any change in this deferred income
tax liability will result in a change in income tax expense when the final S corporation income tax return is filed. This should occur in
the third quarter of 2006.
As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes
totaling approximately $3.4 million and $0.8 million, respectively, which will begin to expire in 2014. A valuation allowance has not
been recorded because management believes it is more likely than not that the entire deferred tax asset will be realized. At
December 31, 2005, the Company had credit carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes totaling approximately
$0.4 million, which will begin to expire in 2010.
11. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
Former Plan
The Company's Former Plan provided for the granting of stock options to certain officers and key employees to purchase shares
of common stock in the Company. Options granted under the Former Plan vested ratably over a four-year period and expired ten years
from the date of grant. No stock options were granted after 2001 under the Former Plan.
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The stock options granted under the Former Plan were at the estimated fair value of the stock at the grant date. A summary of the
stock option activity and weighted average exercise prices under the Former Plan follows:
2003
Exercise
Price

Options

Outstanding, beginning of period
Granted
Purchased
Forfeited

858,475

858,475


Outstanding, end of period

$

3.13

$

3.13



Options exercisable

The fair value of each option granted under the Former Plan was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model using the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest rate of 4.5%, expected volatility of 0% and an
expected life of 4.8 years.
During 2003, the Company purchased or provided for the redemption of the remaining outstanding options under the Former
Plan. Total consideration for the options, including administrative costs, was $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
which amount is included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income as options purchase expense.
Current Plans
In 2004, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123 (R)"). Accordingly, the Company
measures the cost of its share-based employee compensation under its Current Plans at fair value and recognizes such cost in the
financial statements over the requisite service period.
The Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan provides for the granting of restricted shares, stock options or other stock awards to
certain directors, officers and other key employees of the Company. In December 2004, the Company issued 233,329 shares of
restricted stock under this plan based on the Company's initial public offering price of $15 per share. The shares vest in three equal
annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant.
During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company issued an additional 54,823 restricted shares under the 2004 Omnibus
Stock Plan. These restricted shares vest in three- or five-year equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant.
In August 2005, the Company granted to its President and Chief Executive Officer, nonqualified stock options to purchase
250,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $13.83 per share. These options vest in five equal annual
installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant and are within the Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.
The weighted-average fair value of the options granted in August 2005 was $5.53 per option. The fair value was estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: dividend yield of 2.6%, weighted average
risk-free interest rate of 3.94%, expected volatility of 51% and a weighted average expected life of 5.41 years. These options expire
ten years from the date of grant.
Additionally, in October 2005, the Company granted to its President and Chief Executive Officer, a nonqualified stock option to
purchase 700,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $12.11 per share, and granted him 250,000 shares of
restricted common stock. These options
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and restricted shares vest in eight equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant and are subject to various
terms and restrictions in the related Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and Restricted Stock Agreement. These stock options and
restricted shares are outside the terms of the Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.
Additionally, in October 2005, the Company granted to its Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, a nonqualified
stock option to purchase 250,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $12.11 per share. These options vest
in eight equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant and are within the Company's 2004 Omnibus Stock
Plan.
The weighted-average fair value of the 950,000 options granted in October 2005 was $4.73 per option. The fair value was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: dividend yield of 3.6%,
weighted average risk-free interest rate of 4.48%, expected volatility of 50% and a weighted average expected life of 6.86 years. These
options expire ten years from the date of grant.
The grant date fair value of all shares of restricted stock was based on the market value of the Company's common stock on the
dates of grant. These amounts are being amortized and charged to expense ratably over each award's respective vesting period. All
stock options were granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company's common stock on the dates of grant. The
weighted-average fair values of all stock options are being charged to expense ratably over each award's respective vesting period.
A summary of the Company's authorized and available shares, activity under its Current Plans and the weighted average stock
option exercise prices follows:
Outstanding

Restricted
Stock

Authorized

Stock
Options

Available
For Grant

Outstanding at December 31, 2003
Authorized
Granted
Exercised
Canceled


4,250,000






233,329



Outstanding at December 31, 2004
Authorized
Granted
Exercised
Canceled

4,250,000
950,000




233,329

304,823

(81,109)



1,200,000



Outstanding at December 31, 2005

5,200,000

457,043

1,200,000

There were no options exercisable as of December 31, 2005.
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Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price








4,250,000
(233,329)









4,016,671
950,000
(1,504,823) $

81,109
3,542,957

$



12.47


12.47
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A summary of the Company's restricted stock activity and the weighted average grant-date fair values follows:
Weighted
Average
Fair Value

Shares

Nonvested at December 31, 2003
Granted
Vested
Forfeited


233,329



Nonvested at December 31, 2004
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

233,329
304,823
(65,555)
(81,109)

Nonvested at December 31, 2005

391,488


15.00



$

15.00
12.04
15.00
15.00
$

12.69

The total grant-date fair value of restricted shares vested during the year ended December 31, 2005 was approximately
$1.0 million and the total market value of these shares on the date vested was approximately $0.8 million.
A summary of the stock-based compensation cost included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2004

2005

Stock-based compensation expense:
Restricted stock
Stock options

$

49


$

1,053
186

Total stock-based compensation expense

$

49

$

1,239

As of December 31, 2005, the total compensation cost not yet recognized related to nonvested stock awards under the Company's
Current Plans is approximately $10.5 million. The weighted average period over which this expense is expected to be recognized is
approximately 6.5 years.
12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings
The Company is involved in several active lawsuits, including lawsuits arising out of actions taken by state regulatory authorities,
and are involved in various other legal proceedings with state and federal regulators. The use of the terms "the Company" in this
Note 12 includes the parent Company and the respective subsidiary where the context so requires.
A Georgia statute, effective May 2004, essentially prohibits payday cash advance services in the state and effectively restricts the
Company's ability to act as a marketing, processing and servicing agent for a lending bank in the state. In April 2004, the Company,
along with a lending bank, BankWest, and other banks and agents involved in providing payday cash advances in Georgia, filed an
action in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Georgia against the Attorney General of Georgia and the Georgia
Secretary of State ("BankWest vs. Baker"), seeking a declaration that the Georgia anti-payday cash advance law is unconstitutional,
preempted by federal law and should not be enforced. The District Court denied the request. As a result, BankWest and the Company's
Georgia subsidiary
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suspended operations in Georgia in 2004. The District Court's order was appealed to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh
Circuit, and in June 2005 a two judge majority of a three judge panel affirmed the District Court's order. In December 2005, the
Eleventh Circuit granted Petitions for Rehearing En Banc, vacated the majority's opinion and set the matter for oral argument in
June 2006.
On July 27, 2004, John Kucan, Welsie Torrence and Terry Coates, each of whom was a customer of Republic Bank & Trust
Company ("Republic"), the lending bank for whom the Company marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances in North
Carolina, filed a putative class action lawsuit in the General Court of Justice for the Superior Court Division for New Hanover County,
North Carolina against the Company and William M. Webster, IV, the Company's Vice Chairman, alleging, among other things, that
the relationship between the Company's North Carolina subsidiary and Republic was a "rent a charter" relationship and therefore
Republic was not the "true lender" on the payday cash advances it offered. The lawsuit also claims that the payday cash advances were
made, administered and collected in violation of numerous North Carolina consumer protection laws. The lawsuit seeks an injunction
barring the subsidiary from continuing to do business in North Carolina, the return of the principal amount of the payday cash
advances made to the plaintiff class since August 2001, the return of any interest or fees associated with those advances, treble
damages, attorneys' fees and other unspecified costs. On December 30, 2005, the court issued an Order granting defendants' motion for
arbitration, staying the proceedings and denying class certification. The plaintiffs have appealed this Order to the North Carolina Court
of Appeals.
On August 6, 2004, Tahisha King and James E. Strong, who were customers of BankWest, the lending bank for whom the
Company marketed, processed and serviced payday cash advances in Georgia, filed a putative class action lawsuit in the State Court of
Cobb County, Georgia against the Company, Mr. Webster and other unnamed officers, directors, owners and "stakeholders," alleging
various causes of action including that the Georgia subsidiary made illegal payday loans in Georgia in violation of Georgia's usury
law, the Georgia Industrial Loan Act and Georgia's Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act. The complaint alleges that
BankWest was not the "true lender" on the advances that were marketed, processed and serviced for BankWest in Georgia and the
Company was the "de facto" lender. The complaint seeks compensatory damages, attorneys' fees, punitive damages and the trebling of
any compensatory damages. The Company removed the state court action to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
Georgia, Atlanta Division, however the action was remanded back to the State Court of Cobb County in December 2005. The action
will now proceed in state court.
The Company's Georgia subsidiary is involved in another case in Georgia that, although not a class action lawsuit, contains
essentially the same allegations as the King and Strong case. On March 10, 2003, Angela Glasscock, a customer of BankWest, filed an
adversary proceeding in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Georgia alleging that the Georgia subsidiary was
making payday cash advances in Georgia in violation of the Georgia Industrial Loan Act. BankWest intervened into the case and
subsequently both the subsidiary and BankWest filed a motion for summary judgment which was granted in September 2005. In its
holding, the court ruled that BankWest, was the "true lender." Plaintiffs have appealed this ruling and briefing is being completed.
Although the amount in controversy in the case is only $350, the underlying claims of Ms. Glasscock, if validated by the appellate
court, could serve as a basis for future claims against the Company.
The Company, the Company's subsidiary, McKenzie Check Advance of Florida, LLC ("McKenzie") and certain officers,
directors and employees are defendants in a putative class-action lawsuit commenced by former customers, Wendy Betts and Donna
Reuter, in Florida. This putative class action was filed by Ms. Betts and Ms. Reuter in February 2001 in the Circuit Court of Palm
Beach County and alleges that McKenzie, by and through the actions of certain officers, directors and employees, engaged in unfair
and deceptive trade practices and violated Florida's criminal usury statute, Consumer Finance Act, and Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations Act. The suit
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seeks unspecified damages, and McKenzie or the other defendants could be required to refund fees and/or interest collected, refund the
principal amount of payday cash advances, pay multiple damages and pay other monetary penalties. Defendants' motion for summary
judgment was originally granted as to Ms. Betts' claims but later reversed by a Florida appellate court. This decision is currently on
appeal to the Florida Supreme Court. Ms. Reuter's claims were originally dismissed and defendants' motion to compel arbitration was
granted by the state trial court. This ruling is currently on appeal to the Florida Supreme Court. The Florida Supreme Court stayed the
appeal of Ms. Reuter's claims pending the U.S. Supreme Court's review of Buckeye Check Cashing, Inc., v. Cardegna, et al.
("Buckeye"), which held that a substantially similar arbitration agreement was unenforceable. On February 21, 2006, the U.S. Supreme
Court reversed the Florida Supreme Court's holding in Buckeye. The U.S. Supreme Court held that where a contract contained an
arbitration clause, any challenge to the validity of the contract is a question for an arbitrator rather than a state or federal court. The
Company believes the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Buckeye should be binding on Ms. Reuter's claims and that the Florida
Supreme Court will reach a decision that is consistent with the U.S. Supreme Court's ruling in Buckeye.
A second Florida lawsuit was filed in August 2004 in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County by former customers Gerald Betts
and Ms. Reuter against the Company, the Company's subsidiary, Advance America, Cash Advance Centers of Florida, Inc. and certain
officers and directors. The allegations are nearly identical to those alleged in the first Betts and Reuter lawsuit. The Company has filed
motions to dismiss, to stay the proceedings pending determination of dispositive actions by the Florida Supreme Court in the original
Betts and Reuter case and to compel arbitration. Proceedings in this case have been stayed pending the disposition of the appeals in the
original Betts and Reuter case.
In August 2004, the North Carolina Attorney General's Office in conjunction with the Commissioner of Banks for North Carolina
issued a subpoena to the Company to produce documents, respond to written questions and have a corporate representative appear for
a deposition regarding the relationship between the Company's North Carolina subsidiary and the lending bank in North Carolina,
Republic, to determine whether operations in North Carolina are in compliance with North Carolina law. On February 1, 2005, the
Commissioner of Banks initiated a contested case against the Company's North Carolina subsidiary for alleged violations of the North
Carolina Consumer Finance Act. On December 22, 2005, at the conclusion of the contested case, the Commissioner of Banks ordered
that the Company's North Carolina subsidiary immediately cease and desist operating. A Notice of Appeal to the North Carolina State
Banking Commission was immediately filed and is pending. In accordance with the Commissioner of Bank's Order, the Company's
North Carolina subsidiary ceased all business operations on December 22, 2005.
On February 10, 2006, the Company joined four other payday lenders in a lawsuit against the New Mexico Attorney General
requesting immediate injunctive relief from the enforcement of the Proposed Rules and Regulations Governing the Extension of Credit
for Small Loans. The Proposed Rules recently promulgated by the Attorney General attempt to severely limit the payday loan industry
in New Mexico. If the Company is unsuccessful in its attempt to obtain temporary or permanent relief from the Proposed Rules, the
Company will be unable to operate profitably in New Mexico.
In 2005, the United States Department of Labor initiated three investigations from its district offices in the field regarding the
payment of overtime wages to certain employees. The Company has been cooperating with these ongoing investigations that could
result in the payment of back wages, civil monetary penalties and other enforcement action.
In addition to the cases discussed above, the Company is also involved in other litigation and administrative proceedings. This
litigation includes employee claims for workers' compensation, wrongful termination, harassment, discrimination, payment of wages
due and customer claims relating to collection practices and violations of state and/or federal consumer protection laws. The
consequences of an adverse ruling in any current or future litigation or proceeding could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations and financial condition. The amount of loss, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.
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Other Commitments and Contingencies
The Company's marketing, processing and servicing agreements with the lending banks contain certain indemnification
provisions. These provisions provide for indemnification by the Company for costs to the banks related to legal and regulatory actions
surrounding payday cash advance activities.
The Company is self-insured for certain elements of its employee benefits, including workers' compensation, but limits its
liability through stop-loss insurance. Self-insurance liabilities are based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but not
reported.
Substantially all center locations and certain office equipment are leased from third party lessors under operating leases. Total
rent expense in 2003, 2004 and 2005 was $37.2 million, $48.8 million and $58.2 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2005,
minimum future lease commitments under the operating leases having non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are (in
thousands):
Operating
Lease

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter
Operating lease obligations

$

53,644
38,339
20,986
8,134
2,565
334

$

124,002

The Company enters into agreements with vendors to purchase furniture, fixtures and other items used to open new centers.
These purchase commitments typically extend for a period of two to three months after the opening of a new center. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company's purchase obligations totaled approximately $1.9 million.
13. Related Party Transactions
The Company's corporate headquarters building was constructed and financed through a SPE in 2001, which was controlled and
owned by the Company's Chairman and certain of the Company's stockholders. The SPE was determined to be a VIE and had been
consolidated in accordance with FIN 46. The Company acquired the SPE on December 21, 2004 through the issuance of 38,730 shares
of common stock and assumption of the mortgage payable.
Prior to December 21, 2004, the Company leased two jet aircraft from Wyoming Associates, Inc. ("Wyoming"), an enterprise
owned by the Company's Chairman. Wyoming was determined to be a VIE. The Company's leasehold interest in aircraft owned by
Wyoming was deemed to be a variable interest in aircraft owned by Wyoming; however, the Company was not deemed to be the
primary beneficiary. The Company leased, on a month-to-month basis, certain aircraft of Wyoming but did not provide guarantees
related to the aircraft; therefore, the Company was not exposed to the losses of Wyoming. The Company acquired these two jet aircraft
on December 21, 2004 through the issuance of 686,217 shares of common stock, which the Board of Directors determined to be the
fair value of the two aircraft.
Beginning in December 2003, the Company also leased a plane from a stockholder and former director. The Company terminated
the lease as of September 1, 2004.
The Company has entered into operating leases for centers and office space with companies controlled by or affiliated with the
Company's Chairman and members of his family.
During 2005, the Company periodically leased, on an hourly basis, an airplane owned by a company controlled by the Company's
Chairman and Vice-Chairman.
Additionally, two companies controlled by the Company's Chairman provided pilots, fuel and other operating services for the
Company's aircraft.
Finally, under a time-share arrangement, the Company's Vice Chairman used one of the Company's aircraft for private purposes
in exchange for the Company's use of an aircraft owned by the Company's Chairman and Vice Chairman.
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Expenses related to all transactions with related parties consisted of the following (in thousands):
2003

Aircraft
Center leases
Office and warehouse space leases
Legal and other
Total

2004

2005

$

1,368
203
34


$

2,021
206
32


$

579
53
59
2

$

1,605

$

2,259

$

693

On October 31, 2005, the Company completed the sale of one of the aircraft to a non-related party. As a result of this transaction,
the Company recorded a loss of approximately $1.5 million in 2005. For tax purposes, the Company recognized a gain of
approximately $5.4 million in the fourth quarter 2005.
14. Capital Stock
At December 31, 2003, authorized capital stock of the Company consisted of 10,000 shares of common stock without par value.
Effective August 11, 2004, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which increased the authorized
common stock to 250 million shares and also authorized 25 million shares of par value $.01 per share preferred stock. In addition, the
Board of Directors declared a 500,000-to-1 stock split of the common stock affected in the form of a stock dividend. The Company
also converted its no par common stock into par value $.01 per share common stock. Effective November 23, 2004, the Board of
Directors declared a 0.908439145-to-1 reverse stock split of the common stock. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.
On December 21, 2004, the Company completed the sale of 14.3 million shares of its common stock at an initial public offering
price of $15 per share. The net proceeds of $194.9 million were used to repay borrowings under the Company's revolving credit
facility and debt with related parties.
On May 4, 2005, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a program authorizing the repurchase by the
Company of up to $50 million of its currently outstanding common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company
repurchased, pursuant to its stock repurchase program, 1,963,033 shares of its common stock at a cost of approximately $25.7 million.
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15. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)
Quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 is presented below ($ in thousands, except per
share data):
2005
Three months ended,
March 31

Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees.

$

June 30

105,156
33,227

$

114,693
35,624

Sept 30

$

153,161
19,476

Dec 31

$

156,943
11,786

Total Year

$

529,953
100,113

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency
bank losses

138,383

150,317

172,637

168,729

630,066

(10,091)

(30,567)

(36,340)

(38,062)

(115,060)

Net revenues
Total center expenses

128,292
82,394

119,750
85,512

136,297
90,598

130,667
84,879

515,006
343,383

Center gross profit
Total corporate and other expenses

45,898
13,709

34,238
15,109

45,699
18,018

45,788
17,018

171,623
63,854

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

32,189
12,451

19,129
8,384

27,681
11,352

28,770
11,589

107,769
43,776

Income before income of consolidated
variable interest entity
Income of consolidated variable interest entity

19,738


10,745


16,329
(476)

17,181
(527)

Net income
Net income per common share
basic
diluted

63,993
(1,003)

$

19,738

$

10,745

$

15,853

$

16,654

$

62,990

$
$

0.24
0.24

$
$

0.13
0.13

$
$

0.19
0.19

$
$

0.20
0.20

$
$

0.76
0.76

2004
Three months ended,
March 31

Fees and interest charged to customers
Marketing, processing and servicing fees.

$

June 30

95,315
32,845

$

100,437
30,038

Sept 30

$

115,656
36,208

Dec 31

$

119,451
40,238

Total Year

$

430,859
139,329

Total revenues
Provision for doubtful accounts and agency
bank losses

128,160

130,475

151,864

159,689

570,188

(10,960)

(19,093)

(29,064)

(30,119)

(89,236)

Net revenues
Total center expenses

117,200
76,784

111,382
76,600

122,800
77,081

129,570
83,775

480,952
314,240

Center gross profit
Total corporate and other expenses

40,416
15,856

34,782
16,004

45,719
17,966

45,795
19,790

166,712
69,616

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

24,560
819

18,778
703

27,753
792

26,005
11,727

97,096
14,041
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Net income
Net income per common share
basic
diluted

$

23,741

$

18,075

$

26,961

$

14,278

$

83,055

$
$

0.35
0.35

$
$
93

0.26
0.26

$
$

0.39
0.39

$
$

0.20
0.20

$
$

1.20
1.20
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16. Transactions with Variable Interest Entity
Beginning in July 2005, the Company ceased conducting business under the agency business model in its 208 centers in Texas,
and began conducting business in those centers through a wholly owned subsidiary registered as a CSO under Texas law. As a CSO,
the Company offers a fee-based credit services package to assist customers in trying to improve their credit and in obtaining an
extension of consumer credit through an unaffiliated third-party lender. In connection with commencing operations as a CSO in Texas,
the Company has entered into a CSO Agreement with an unaffiliated third-party lender. The CSO Agreement governs the terms by
which the Company refers customers in Texas to that lender, on a non-exclusive basis, for a possible extension of credit, processes
loan applications and commits to reimburse the lender for any loans or related fees that are not collected from such customers.
Under the CSO model, the third-party lender determines whether to approve the loan and establishes all of the loan underwriting
criteria. All of the terms, conditions and features of the loan agreements between the lender and the customers are determined by the
lender. The customer writes a personal check payable to the lender in the amount of the loan, including interest for the anticipated
duration of the loan and the CSO fee, which the Company holds on behalf of the lender pending repayment of the loan. Under the CSO
Agreement, the Company agrees to reimburse the lender for the full amount of the loans and all related fees that are not paid by the
customers.
When the loan becomes due, the customer returns to the CSO center to repay the loan, the Company returns the customer's check,
and the Company deposits the loan payment in the lender's account. If the customer does not return to the CSO center to repay the
loan, the Company may then begin collection efforts to obtain from the customer payment of the loan and any applicable late and
non-sufficient funds ("NSF") fees. If the Company is unsuccessful in collecting any payments for the lender, the Company will
reimburse the lender, and then may continue its collection efforts with respect to all amounts due by the customer. Under the CSO
Agreement, the Company is contractually obligated for all losses incurred by the lender with respect to loans it makes to customers
referred by the Company.
The Company has determined that the third-party lender's subsidiary is a variable interest entity ("VIE") under FIN 46R. The
Company has neither an equity interest nor voting rights in the lender's subsidiary and has no input into the management of the lender's
subsidiary. However, the Company has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of the VIE because the Company has committed
to reimburse the lender for the full amount of the loans and all related fees that are not paid by the customers. As a result, the Company
has consolidated the lender's subsidiary as of December 31, 2005.
The impact of the consolidation of this VIE on the Company's December 31, 2005 consolidated balance sheet was to increase
cash and cash equivalents by approximately $3.3 million, increase advances and fees receivable, net by approximately $17.8 million,
increase accrued liabilities by approximately $40,000 and increase non-controlling interest in variable interest entity by $21.1 million.
The impact of the consolidation of this VIE on the Company's consolidated statements of income for year ended December 31, 2005
was to increase net revenues by approximately $1.4 million and increase other center expenses by approximately $0.4 million, the net
effect of which was an increase in income of the consolidated variable interest entity of approximately $1.0 million.
17. Subsequent Events
On January 31, 2006, the Company granted to its Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, 100,000 shares of
restricted common stock. The restricted shares vest in eight equal annual installments beginning on October 27, 2006 and are within
and subject to the terms of the Company's existing 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.
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On February 17, 2006, the Company's Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.11 per share of common stock, payable
on March 10, 2006 to stockholders of record on February 27, 2006.
In February 2006, the FDIC instructed the lending banks in Pennsylvania and Arkansas to discontinue offering payday cash
advances and alternative credit products if they cannot adequately address the FDIC's concerns.
BankWest, the lending bank for which the Company markets, processes and services payday cash advances and installment loans
in Pennsylvania, has elected to cease its payday cash advance and installment loan originations as of the close of business on
March 27, 2006. The Company expects to continue, through August 2006, to service all of BankWest's payday cash advances and
installment loans that are outstanding as of March 27, 2006.
The following is a summary of financial information for the Company's operations in Pennsylvania for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

35,337
15,217

$

39,421
15,481

$

35,083
16,038

Center gross profit

$

20,120

$

23,940

$

19,045

In addition, Fidelity, the lending bank for which the Company markets, processes and services payday cash advances and
installment loans in Arkansas, has elected to discontinue offering installment loans in April 2006 and discontinue offering payday cash
advances in June 2006. The Company expects to continue, through September 2006, to service all of Fidelity's payday cash advances
and installment loans that are outstanding as of these dates.
The following is a summary of financial information for the Company's operations in Arkansas for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):
2003

2004

2005

Net revenues
Total center expenses

$

5,528
3,718

$

6,638
3,741

$

6,073
4,134

Center gross profit

$

1,810

$

2,897

$

1,939

The Company estimates that its net revenues will be reduced by approximately $2.3 million for each month that the Company is
not able to operate under the agency business model in Pennsylvania and $0.5 million for each month that the Company is not able to
operate under the agency business model in Arkansas. Furthermore, center expenses average approximately $1.3 million per month in
Pennsylvania and $0.4 million per month in Arkansas. Such expenses will continue to be incurred while the Company services payday
cash advances and installments loans that are outstanding when the lending banks stop originating additional advances and loans. The
Company estimates that severance, lease cancellation, write-down of the undepreciated costs of fixed assets and the cost to vacate the
premises will approximate $2.9 million if it becomes necessary to shut down operations in Pennsylvania and $0.7 million if it becomes
necessary to shut down operations in Arkansas. In 2005, the Company incurred approximately $2.7 million in expenses related to
closing its North Carolina centers. The amount of impairment of goodwill, if any, cannot be determined at this time.
The Company is studying alternative methods for conducting business in Pennsylvania and Arkansas, and the Company currently
has no plan to close its centers in those states.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of December 31, 2005. Based upon this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and such
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Our internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect our transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and
directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
ControlIntegrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
assessment, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.
Management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which appears in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."
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ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART III
ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Executive Officers
Our executive officers, their ages at March 13, 2006, and their positions with us are set forth below. Our executive officers are
elected by and serve at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
Name

Age

Position

Kenneth E. Compton
53
President and Chief Executive Officer
John I. Hill
52
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kenneth E. Compton has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since August 26, 2005. From February 1992 to
February 2005, Mr. Compton was President of the Global Automotive Group for Milliken & Company, an international textile and
chemical manufacturer headquartered in Spartanburg, South Carolina. From June 1974 to February 1992 Mr. Compton served
Milliken & Company in various management positions. Mr. Compton is currently an active member of the Board of Trustees for
Erskine College in Due West, South Carolina.
John I. Hill has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since January 2002. From July 1999 to
December 2001, Mr. Hill was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of DHI, Inc., a consolidation of four companies
providing staffing, security and contract services in sixteen states. Mr. Hill's other positions have included serving from April 1998 to
April 1999, as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Enterprise Computer Systems, a vertically integrated software and
business-to-business e-commerce provider to the shelter industry, from May 1996 to April 1998 as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Phoenix Wireless Group, a switching software and wireless local loop service provider in international markets
and from December 1992 to May 1996 as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Dial Call Communications, Inc., a cellular
provider. From 1979 through 1991, Mr. Hill worked with KPMG Peat Marwick.
Other Information
The information set forth under the captions "Election of our Board of Directors," "Executive and Director
CompensationSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" and "Corporate GovernanceMeeting and Committees of
the Board of DirectorsAudit Committee" in the proxy statement for our 2006 annual meeting is incorporated herein by reference.
We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our Directors, officers and employees, including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. You can find our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics by going to the following website address: http://aea.client.shareholder.com/downloads/CodeConduct.pdf. We will post on
our website any amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed by
the rules of either the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") or the New
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York Stock Exchange. You can also obtain a printed copy of any of the materials referred to above without charge by contacting us at
the following address and requesting a copy:
Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Secretary
135 North Church Street
Spartanburg, South Carolina 29306
Telephone: 864-342-5600

ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information contained under the captions "Executive and Director Compensation" and "Corporate GovernanceMeeting and
Committees of the Board of DirectorsCompensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation" in our Proxy Statement for our
2006 annual meeting is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
The information set forth under the caption "Principal Stockholders" in the Proxy statement for our 2006 annual meeting is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

The information set forth under the caption "Certain Transactions" in the Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual meeting is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Information contained under the caption "Appointment of Our Independent Auditors" in our Proxy Statement for our 2006 annual
meeting is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15.
(a)(1)

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Financial Statements

The information required by this Item is included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of Part II of this
report.
(a)(2)

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC have been omitted because they
are not required under the related instructions, are not applicable, or the information has been provided in the consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto, included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" at Part II of this Annual Report.
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(a)(3)

Exhibits:

The exhibits to this report are listed in the Exhibit Index included elsewhere herein. Included in the exhibits listed are the
following exhibits that constitute management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements of the Company:

10.2(a)

2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.

10.2(b)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement.

10.2(c)

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement.

10.3

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. and Kenneth E.
Compton, dated as of October 27, 2005.

10.4

Restricted Stock Agreement between Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. and Kenneth E. Compton, dated as
of October 27, 2005.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the registrant (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.'s Registration Statement, on Form S-1, Registration
No. 333-118227 (the "IPO Registration Statement")).

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Advance
America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2005).

4.1

Specimen common stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the IPO Registration
Statement).

10.1(a)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the IPO Registration Statement).

10.1(b)

First Amendment, dated as of November 29, 2004, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
July 16, 2004.

10.1(c)

Second Amendment, dated as of December 31, 2004, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
July 16, 2004.

10.1(d)

Third Amendment, dated as of May 11, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
July 16, 2004.

10.1(e)

Fourth Amendment, dated as of June 23, 2005, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
July 16, 2004.

10.2(a)

2004 Omnibus Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5(a) to the IPO Registration Statement).

10.2(b)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) to the IPO Registration
Statement).
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10.2(c)

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Advance
America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2005 (the "November
2005 8-K")).

10.3

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. and Kenneth E.
Compton, dated as of October 27, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the November 2005
8-K).

10.4

Restricted Stock Agreement between Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. and Kenneth E. Compton,
dated as of October 27, 2005 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the November 2005 8-K).

10.5

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the IPO Registration
Statement).

21.1

Subsidiaries of the registrant.

23.1

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 (Adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Advance America, Cash Advance Centers, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 (Adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).
(c) Financial Statement Schedules
None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 16th day of March, 2006.
ADVANCE AMERICA, CASH ADVANCE CENTERS, INC.
By: /s/ KENNETH E. COMPTON
Kenneth E. Compton
President and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ GEORGE D. JOHNSON, JR.
Chairman of the Board and Director

March 16, 2006

Vice Chairman of the Board and Director

March 16, 2006

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) and Director

March 16, 2006

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

March 16, 2006

Director

March 16, 2006

Director

March 16, 2006

Director

March 16, 2006

George D. Johnson, Jr.
/s/ WILLIAM M. WEBSTER, IV
William M. Webster, IV
/s/ KENNETH E. COMPTON
Kenneth E. Compton
/s/ JOHN I. HILL
John I. Hill
/s/ CLAIRE L. ARNOLD
Claire L. Arnold
/s/ STEPHEN K. BENJAMIN
Stephen K. Benjamin
/s/ ROBERT H. CHAPMAN, III
Robert H. Chapman, III
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/s/ THOMAS E. HANNAH
Director

March 16, 2006

Director

March 16, 2006

Director

March 16, 2006

Thomas E. Hannah
/s/ DONOVAN A. LANGFORD, III
Donovan A. Langford, III
/s/ W. OLIN NISBET
W. Olin Nisbet
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